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On behalf of the board of directors,
the annual report of China Ocean Industry Group Limited

| am pleased to present

(the“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 December 2018.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recorded
audited consolidated revenue of debit balance for the year
attributable to owners of the Company amounting to approximately
HK$468.03 million, and a loss attributable to shareholders of the
Company of approximately HK$1,545.44 million, representing an
increase of 152.61% compared to last year, respectively.

2018 was the first year for the Group to integrate resources with a
focus on Jiangxi Shipbuilding, and also a year of endless efforts in
keeping normal operation by the Group. Facing heavy burden left
by shipping building business, risk arising from the guidance fund
of Zhoushan Municipal Government and acceleration of financing
issues of the real economy, all businesses of the Group are under
huge pressure. In order to cope with risks, on the one hand, we
enhance the communication with governments and financial
institutions in order to get support and assistance, and on the other
hand, we streamline the frontlines of our strategies on the whole to
integrate resources by gathering competitive resources.

Presently, Jiangxi Shipbuilding has made progress in its
cooperation with stronger shipyards. The use of Jiangxi
Shipbuilding’s riverbank of the Yangtze River, yards and land
resources will enter into a new stage and a business system
featuring resource development and yard logistics services will
be gradually established, generating new income source for the
Group. Based on this, we have initiated negotiation with institutions
and partners with the support from governments at different levels
in an effort to seek resolutions addressing our debt risks.

In order to optimise asset-liability structure and shorten
management chain, the Group is seeking to exit from some
investments and dispose some assets. While carrying on such
task, the Group will perform merger and acquisition or extension
on associated upstream and downstream industries on the basis
of consolidating resources, with a hope to create a brand new
industrial chain, which can address the lack of liquidity of the
Group.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRS

Looking into 2019, we will have to change pressure into driving
force and keep our commitment to the real economy and
equipment business by maintaining our shipbuilding business,
equipment business and car-parking business and by developing
businesses such as logistics, transportation and supply chain.
In this regard, we will closely work with financial institutions,
investment institutions and business partners in order to raise
working capital via multiple ways for promoting business
development.

The structural reform of the Chinese economy and the support
from the state to the real economy are the reasons behind our
confidence in greater efficiency in the Group’s resource integration
and business extension, not failing shareholders’ eager anticipation
of us.

In closing, | would like to express my heartfelt appreciation to
our shareholders, investors and partners for their strong support.
| would also like to express my gratitude to our directors and all
Group employees for their diligence and valuable contributions.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OVERVIEW

China Ocean Industry Group Limited is engaged in the intelligent
car-parking and automotive electronics business, shipbuilding
business, manufacture and sales of steel structure business,
trading business and finance lease business.

The Group has been focusing on investment in the real economy
for more than a decade, especially shipbuilding business. While
committed to shipbuilding business in Jiangxi province, the Group
has also sought opportunities for alliance in shipbuilding business
in coastal areas such as Nantong and Zhoushan, in response to
difficulties in the shipbuilding industry. However, the continued
downturn in the global shipping and shipbuilding industries,
as well as the recent pressure on the real economy and private
enterprises in the PRC, have brought tremendous pressure to the
Group’s shipbuilding business and affected other businesses of the
Group. In 2018, the integration of the shipbuilding industry and
the redeployment of resources were the main works of the Group.
In addition to the acceleration of the disposal of ships with delayed
delivery, and application of the partnership construction for ships
under construction, the Group also handled the historical issues of
the shipbuilding business by steps, to shake off the burden as soon
as possible, which created a good environment for its business
reorganization.

The intelligent car-parking and automotive electronics business
and the manufacture and sales of steel structure business
invested by the Group in the course of business transformation
were affected by factors such as difficult and expensive financing
and rising costs. At the same time, due to the tight cash flow of
shipbuilding business and related guarantee issues, the business
shrank. Especially for the manufacture and sales of steel structure
business, despite the large business order volume, the customer’s
accounts receivables were recovered slowly and the labor cost
grew fast. Meanwhile, the banks’ premature recovery of loans
resulted in mounting financial pressure, which affected the normal
development of the business. The Group strove to stabilize the
basic production order, reduce risks and enhance sustainability
by measures such as renting out the premises, suspending the
proprietary business and laying off staff.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIREsTm R DT

Generally speaking, the development of China’s real economy has
been affected by many unfavorable factors in the recent period.
Since the end of last year, China has been adjusting the policies,
and the development environment of the real economy is expected
to be further improved, which will also have a positive impact on
the Group'’s business.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recorded an
external revenue of debit balance of approximately HK$468.03
million (2017: HK$349.24 million), which was abnormal mainly
due to the reversal of revenue arising from the failure to take
delivery of certain vessels by buyers. The delay in delivery of the
six vessels is a thorny issue that the Group has been trying to
resolve for years. The shipbuilding business of Jiangxi Shipbuilding
is the core business that the Group has been focusing adjustment
efforts for many years. Affected by rising labor costs, increasing
financing costs, depressed market conditions and other factors,
the shipbuilding business has become an increasingly heavy
encumbrance for the Group’s overall business. The Group’s
strategy is to dispose of the existing undelivered vessels as soon as
possible, seek cooperation with advanced shipyards and revitalize
the spare land, plant, coastline and other resources. The Group
will dispose of the aforementioned vessels involved in the revenue
reversal as soon as possible to relieve the burden and create
conditions for the restructuring of the shipbuilding business and
the consolidation of shipbuilding assets.

During the year under review, the gross loss of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$357.46 million (2017: gross loss of
HK$322.39 million), the increase was mainly due to the losses in
shipbuilding business as compared to last year.

The Group's finance cost increased from approximately
HK$173.49 million to approximately HK$271.84 million, mainly
due to the interest incurred on prepayment of vessels and the
increase in the finance cost.

During the year under review, the share of loss of joint venture
amounted to approximately HK$472.15 million, which was due to
the provision of bad debts of the Group for investment risks arising
from the guided fund which was jointly set up by the Group and
a platform company invested by Zhejiang Zhoushan Municipal
Government.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Overall, the Group recorded a loss attributable to shareholders of
approximately HK$1,545.44 million (2017: loss of HK$611.79
million) during the year ended 31 December 2018, increasing
substantially as compared to last year, mainly due to the significant
increase in the share of loss of joint venture, and the adverse
impact on the performance from factors such as the impairment
of rescinded vessels, the impairment of goodwill and intangible
assets, the adjustment of steel structure business and the increase
of finance expenses.

SHIPBUILDING BUSINESS

The shipbuilding business recorded external revenue of debit
balance of approximately HK$626.37 million (2017: debit balance
of HK$78.99 million) during the year under review, which is
negative mainly due to the return of the income from the four
vessels abandoned.

Shipbuilding business is the core business of the Group, but due
to the impact of the overall downturn in the shipbuilding industry,
coupled with the practical difficulties faced by the real economy,
it is imperative to carry out the restructuring of the shipbuilding
business. Disposal of delay delivery of these vessels and provision
for significant impairments are the beginning of the restructuring
and the throes that the Group must bear.

In order to completely change the encumbrance of the shipbuilding
business to the Group, the Group will continue to promote
cooperation with leading shipbuilding enterprises with a view to
restructuring assets of Jiangzhou Shipbuilding. Meanwhile, the
Group committed to expand the logistic, storage and shipping
business leveraging on its location advantages and shoreline of
Yangtze River, and related work is in progress.

BIEES MR DM

BENS ~EERBE_—N\F+=A
=+ —HIFEHSRRELEELL,545.448
BATL(ZZ—tF 5186117988 %T) - &
EFERLEARBIEM FEEDEAECEZER
PEHERBELA HEMMRE BENEREE
WA MERERABRUNYEEREASRHAE
I EBEER TR E -

EM R

EMEB MERFE SIS E R ETT B ERA
626.37B&BIL (ZE— L& {§H 478998
BET) WARA  ZEOEMMKE  WARE
ek

EMEBRASENROER BEXREMERERE
BEAMTE NEERKERERERRRE &
SEEMRTGNERZELTT BEEEETEY
RATAEAR - REA BRI E 2R - R E BRI
W hRARBE VAR HEE -

RBEREEMEBHARENEN - AEE#
BHEE I EMEROENAE LELBETM
EMEE RENAMBORLEBZENMETIRFE
BR ARYR 2R MERBEXRY HET
EEAEETZH -

PEETEEHRRAT F3F 2018

9



10

Management Discussion and Analysis
BIREsTm R DT

INTELLIGENT CAR-PARKING AND
AUTOMOTIVE ELECTRONICS BUSINESS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the intelligent car-
parking and automotive electronics business recorded an external
revenue of approximately HK$135.34 million (2017: HK$120.43
million) with an increase of 12.38% as compared to last year. The
Group's intelligent car-parking business and automotive electronics
business are basically stable, but also should be expanded jointly
through the industry. The Group will restructure the business
and equity in accordance with the different circumstances of its
subsidiaries in due course, with a view to better adapting to the
changes in the market.

MANUFACTURE AND SALES OF STEEL
STRUCTURE BUSINESS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the steel structure
business recorded an external revenue of approximately HK$21.21
million (2017: HK$281.02 million), representing a decrease of
92.45% as compared with last year. The manufacture and sales
of steel structure business is a new major business developed
by the Group, enjoying broad market and large business volume.
However, due to the delayed settlement of amounts for contract
work and adverse changes in financing environment, there
is great pressure on funds. At the same time, as the Group’s
manufacture and sales of steel structure business is adjacent to
the main channel of the lower reaches of the Yangtze River, and
there are plans to build a new bridge across the Yangtze River
from the plant area, some unfavorable social factors occurred and
thus affected the business and development of the Company to a
certain extent. In order to stabilize the situation, the Group changed
its business model and leased the production site to large state-
owned enterprises to maintain its production capacity for further
development, which resulted in a significant drop in sales revenue.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

With the help of the local government, the unfavorable factors are
gradually being resolved. Benefiting from the prosperity of domestic
infrastructure construction, the manufacture and sales of steel
structure business will still have great development potentials.
The Group has started to strengthen cooperation with large state-
owned infrastructure construction enterprises, and are gradually
recovering orders.

FINANCE LEASE BUSINESS

The finance lease company established in Zhoushan with joint
contribution by the Group and the government investment platform
company is in stable operation. In order to improve the debt
situation, the Group will dispose this business.

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

As disclosed in the Auditor's report on pages from 65 to 80 of
this annual report, the Auditor do not express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group. Because of the
significance of the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer
of Opinion section of the Auditor's report, the Auditors have
not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to
provide a basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated financial
statements. Such qualification are mainly the results of the issues
surrounding the Six Vessels which have not been delivered to
the Two Customers according to the schedule as set out in the
respective shipbuilding contracts and the going concern of the
Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIREsTm R DT

The Six Vessels

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 3
January 2019 in respect of the latest progress of the Four Vessels,
the issues surrounding the Four Vessels have been resolved
following the handing down of the arbitral awards. The relevant
figures of revenue, cost of sales, contract assets and contract
liabilities of the Four Vessels have already been properly reflected
in the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2018. As disclosed in the said announcement, the one of the
Four Vessels which have been rescinded (“Rescinded Vessel”)
shall be disposed of by way of public auction. Relevant framework
agreement was entered into on 3 January 2019 by the Company,
Jiangxi Shipbuilding and Jiangsu Yangzi Xinfu Shipbuilding Co., Ltd
CI&BTE\EMAR 2R, which is an indirect subsidiary of
Yangzijiang Shipbuilding (the “Framework Agreement”). As at the
date of this report, the Rescinded Vessel is still going through the
legal procedures of public auction and is expected to be finished in
the first half year of 2019. In respect of three of the Four Vessels,
the Company has identified two potential purchasers who are
interested in three of the Four Vessels. The Company will use its
best endeavour to fight for the terms which is in the best interests
of the Company and its shareholders as a whole. The negotiations
are expected to close on or before the third quarter of 2019.

And for the remaining Two Vessels, the Management and
the management of the Jiangzhou Shipbuilding has been
negotiating with the German Customer in relation to the continue
construction agreement of the Two Vessels. The Directors has also
communicated with the agent of the German customer in the PRC,
and that agent has recommended another shipbuilding company in
Wuhu, Anhui Province in the PRC to be the co-builder to resume
the construction of the Two Vessels.

The Management has from time to time negotiated with the
Rescinded Customer in relation the Two Vessels. However, no
specific agreements and/or documents was made available to the
Auditor to justify the final result of the Two Vessels despite there is
certain progress in the negotiation. In view of the prolonged delay
in the delivery of the orders of the Two Vessels and no documents
to ascertain if there is any possible contingent liabilities, there
remains uncertainties in relation to the relevant figures.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Management has spared no efforts in working out solutions for
the Two Vessels during 2018. It is expected that before the end of
financial year 2019, all the Four Vessels and the Two Vessels will
be disposed of.

The Management is of the view that and upon discussion with
the Auditor, after entering into relevant acquisition contracts of
the Four Vessels, the net realisable value of the Four Vessels
could be reasonably estimated and necessary evidence could be
provided to the Auditor to address the disclaimer opinion on the
vessels, and other items that are based on the net realisable value
of the Four Vessels. The Audit Committee has critically reviewed
the qualification in relation to the Four Vessels expressed by the
Auditor and has discussed it with the Management. No member
has expressed any disagreement to the Management’s view. The
Audit Committee is of the view that concerns of the Auditor can be
addressed after entering into relevant acquisition contracts. The
Management (including the Audit Committee) believes that after
settling all vessels, the relevant qualifications would be addressed
and no qualification will appear in the annual results for the coming
year(s).

Uncertainties relating to going concern

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group reported
loss attributable to the owners of the Company of approximately
HK$1,545,435,000 and had significant net cash used in operating
activities for the year ended 31 December 2018. As of that date,
the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
approximately HK$3,376,522,000 and the Group had net liabilities
of approximately HK$2,178,756,000, in which total borrowings
amounted to approximately HK$3,385,253,000, while its bank
balances and cash amounted to approximately HK$10,005,000
only. The Auditor was uncertain of the ability of the Group to
maintain adequate future cash flow and qualified about the
assumptions made by the Directors in preparing the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis.

In addition, the Group defaulted on the repayment of certain
borrowings and payables on their respective due dates during the
year ended 31 December 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIREsTm R DT

The Management has taken certain operating and financing
measures into consideration and formed the view that the
consolidated financial statements should be prepared on a going
concern basis.

The Company has been taking positive steps to address the
qualification in relation to going concern, including but not limited
to:

(a)  The Management has been negotiating with the management
of the Jiangzhou Shipbuilding and the German Customer in
relation to the continue construction agreement of the Two
Vessels. The Directors has also communicated with the agent
of the German customer in the PRC, and that agent has
recommended another shipbuilding company in the PRC
to be the co-builder to resume the construction of the Two
Vessels.

(b) Reference is made to the announcement of the Company
dated 28 February 2019 in relation to the disposal of 20%
equity interest of Zhejian Ocean. It is expected that the
maximum consideration of approximately RMB170,000,000
(approximately HK$199,801,000).

(c) asdisclosed on page 44 in the 2018 Results Announcement,
on 23 November 2018, the Company, Yangzijiang
Shipbuilding (Holdings) Ltd. (“Yangzijiang Shipbuilding”), the
Company, Jiangxi Shipbuilding and Wuxi Tianshi Education
Goods Co., Ltd. (EHKXAXE B MER 7)) entered
into the Investment Agreement pursuant to which the parties
agreed to, among other things, establish a company in
the PRC (“Mining Co”). The Group is expected to receive
a loan in the amount of RMB250,000,000 (approximately
HK$285,000,000) from one of the cooperating parties.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

(d) negotiate with its bank creditors with the help of Jiangxi
Government, and with the support from government for the
real economy and private enterprises as an opportunity, to
extend the borrowings of the Group from short term to long
term, which will reduce the net current outflow pressure
of the Group and the current liabilities of the Group will be
reduced, and the bank creditors promised that they won't
reduce the facility amount, won't force to repay the loan and
won't take legal actions.

(e) negotiate with certain suppliers and creditors to extend
payment due date in order that the liabilities will be classified
as non-current liabilities; and to

() explore fund raising opportunities, either by way of equity
or debt financing. The Group is considering raising funds
by way of issue of convertible note of approximately
HK$50,000,000 in the coming 12 months.

The Audit Committee understands the qualification in relation to
going concern raised by the Auditor and has discussed it with
the Management. The Audit Committee shared the same view
with the Management. Especially, deliberations were focused on
the uncertainty and difficulty faced by the shipbuilding business.
Notwithstanding this, the Audit Committee acknowledged the
potential business development of the intelligent car parking
business and the steel structure engineering and installation
business in the future. These two segments of business would
enable to broaden the revenue stream of the Group and together
with the Company’s continued effort in transforming its business.
Nevertheless, the Audit Committee believes that investing in the
Mining Co will help to increase revenue so as to release the loan
pressure on the Company. The Audit Committee is of the view that
the Group could address the going concern qualification.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIREsTm R DT

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had bank balances and
cash (including pledged bank deposits and restricted cash) of
approximately HK$12.27 million (31 December 2017: HK$15.52
million) of which HK$2.27 million (31 December 2017: HK$0.25
million) was pledged; short-term borrowings of HK$3,385.25
million (31 December 2017: HK$1,932.32 million); convertible
bonds payable amounted to approximately HK$168.14 million (31
December 2017: HK$148.97 million) represented the fair value
of principal amount of HK$189.00 million (31 December 2017:
HK$189.00 million). The gearing ratio defined as non-current
liabilities and short term borrowing divided by total shareholders’
equity was (1.59) at 31 December 2018 (31 December 2017:
(3.10)).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FUND RAISING FROM ISSUE OF SHARES/
CONVERTIBLE BONDS

The Company did not conduct any fundraising through issue of
shares/convertible securities during the year ended 31 December
2018. However, the following convertible securities/right to
subscribe for convertible securities remained outstanding during
the year ended 31 December 2018:

1. 2016 Subscription Agreement

On 6 December 2016, the Company and Macquarie Bank
Limited (“Macquarie”) entered into a subscription agreement
pursuant to which Macquarie has conditionally agreed to
subscribe for, and the Company has conditionally agreed
to issue, convertible notes in aggregate principal amount of
up to HK$400 million, which is to be issued in 4 tranches
with each trance in principal amount of HK$100 million
and with interest rate at 2% per annum (“2016 Convertible
Notes”). As at the date of this report, the first tranche of
2016 Convertible Notes has been redeemed by the Company
in August 2017 and the remaining 3 tranches in aggregate
principle amount of HK$300 million have yet to be issued by
the Company.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIREsTm R DT

2017 Convertible Bonds

On 10 November 2017, the Company issued a 2-year
convertible bond in principal amount of HK$189 million
with 10% interest rate (“2017 Convertible Bonds”) to
Pacific Ocean Marine Limited (“Pacific Ocean”) pursuant
to the relevant subscription agreement dated 10 August
2017 (amended and supplemented on 10 October 2017).
Upon full conversion of the 2017 Convertible Bonds at
the initial conversion price of HK$0.07 per share, a total
of 2,700,000,000 shares would be issued, representing
approximately 16.53% of the total enlarged number of issued
shares by the allotment and issue of conversion shares. As
the date of this report, no conversion shares were issued
under the 2017 Convertible Bonds. The net proceeds of
HK$189 million from the issuance of the 2017 Convertible
Bonds has been fully utilised as follows: HK$170 million was
used for repayment of debts and HK$19 million was used for
general working capital.

The shareholders’ dilution impact in the event of the
allotment and issue of Conversion Shares upon full
conversion of the Convertible Bonds at the initial Conversion
Price of HK$0.070 per Share are as follows:
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Immediately after full conversion

Shareholder B3R At the 31 December 2018 of the Convertible Bonds (Note 2)
ETRRES
RZB-NE+=A=+-H 2HERE (HH2)
No. of Approximate No. of Approximate
Shares percentage Shares percentage
B &R BAaBAH B! R
Mr. Li Ming FREE 1,241,482,954 9.10% 1,241,482,954 7.60%
Lead Dragon Limited (Note 1) Lead Dragon Limited ( Af7£1) 542,005,000 397% 542,005,000 3.32%
Mr. Zhang Shi Hong REREE 227,600,000 1.67% 227,600,000 1.39%
Mr. Zhang Weibing RESRE 30,000,000 0.22% 30,000,000 0.18%
Pacific Ocean Marine Limited KEEBEERAA 0 0% 857,142,857 5.25%
Forward Fund SPC-Double Forward Fund SPC-Double

Management Fund SP Management Fund SP 0 0% 1,842,857,143 11.28%
Public Shareholders RERBE 11,595,750,886 85.04% 11,595,750,886 70.98%
Total: Bt 13,636,838,840 100.00% 16,336,838,840 100.00%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Notes:

1. Lead Dragon Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Li Ming, the chairman and
an executive Director.

2. The shareholding structure set out in this column is shown for
illustration purposes only. The Conversion Rights shall only be
exercisable so long as not less than 25% of the then total number
of issued Shares as enlarged by the issue of the Conversion Shares
are being held in public hands and will not result in the relevant
Bondholder, its associates and parties acting in concert with it will,
in aggregate, control or be interested in 30% or more of the voting
rights of the Company unless: (i) a whitewash waiver is obtained in
accordance with the requirements of the Takeovers Code; or (ii) a
general offer is made in accordance with the requirements of the
Takeovers Code.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018, approximately HK$0.24 million (31
December 2017: HK$0.25 million) of deposits, HK$301.21
million (31 December 2017: HK$309.03 million) of property, plant
and equipment and HK$208.17 million (31 December 2017:
HK$221.80 million) of prepaid lease payments were pledged to
banks or other parties to secure borrowings, bills payable and
facilities granted to the Group. The pledge on the bank deposits
will be released upon the settlement of relevant bills payables and
borrowings.

As at 31 December 2018, the Company pledged the entire
equity interest of a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
Jiangxi Jiangzhou Union Shipbuilding Ltd., to secure a bank
borrowing amounting to RMB107.41 million (31 December 2017:
RMB107.41 million).

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN
EXCHANGE RATES AND ANY RELATED
HEDGES

The income and expenditure of the Group were denominated
in Renminbi, Hong Kong Dollars and United States Dollars. As
at 31 December 2018, the Group did not hedge its exposure to
foreign exchange risk profile as the Group could not find a suitable
instrument to manage this exposure. The Board will continue to
consider the appropriate hedging measures.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIREsTm R DT

NEW BUSINESS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Partial disposal of subsidiary

On 10 July 2017, China Ocean Shipbuilding Holdings Limited
(“Vendor”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and
NIBO Trading Company Limited (“Purchaser”), an independent
third party, entered into a disposal agreement (“Disposal
Agreement”). Pursuant to the Disposal Agreement, the Vendor
agreed to sell and the Purchaser agreed to purchase the shares
of China Ocean Shipbuilding (Hong Kong) Limited (“China
Ocean HK”), representing 40% of the total number of issued
shares of China Ocean HK (“Sale Shares”), at a consideration of
RMB200,000,000.

On 6 January 2018, Zhejiang Ouhua Shipbuilding Company
Limited (“Zhejiang Ouhua”), the Purchaser, China Ocean HK, the
Vendor and Jiangxi Jiangzhou Union Shipbuilding Co., Ltd (“Jiangxi
Shipbuilding”) entered into the debt restructuring agreement
(“Debt Restructuring Agreement”).

Completion under the Disposal Agreement took place on 5 July
2018. The Debt Restructuring Agreement was completed on 2 May
2018.

Details regarding the disposal are disclosed in the Company’s
announcements dated 5 July 2018.

Save as disclosed elsewhere under the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis”, there was no new
business, material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and
associated companies during the year under review.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS AND EXPECTED SOURCES
OF FUNDING

On 23 November 2018, the Company, Yangzijiang Shipbuilding
(Holdings) Ltd. (“Yangzijiang Shipbuilding”), the Company, Jiangxi
Shipbuilding and Wuxi Tianshi Education Goods Co., Ltd. (#£$5
KAZEEBMARAT) entered into the Investment Agreement
pursuant to which the parties agreed to, among other things,
establish a company in the PRC (“Mining Co”) and to reorganise
the shipbuilding business and assets of Jiangxi Shipbuilding.

On 23 November 2018, the Company entered into the following
Cooperation Agreements:

(1) the First Cooperation Agreement with Shenzhen Sufa
United Industry Co., Ltd. GRIITT BB A B EEGREAF])
(“Shenzhen Sufa”), pursuant to which, among other things,
Shenzhen Sufa irrevocably agreed to (either alone or with its
designated nominee(s)) subscribe for not less than RMB50
million of the registered capital of Mining Co, representing
10% of the registered capital of Mining Co; and

(2) the Second Cooperation Agreement with Beijing Zhongrun
Tianxia Enterprise Management Center (dt AR E KX T
EEIE A () (“Beijing Zhongrun”), pursuant to which,
among other things, Beijing Zhongrun irrevocably agreed
to subscribe for RMB25 million of the registered capital
of Mining Co, representing 5% of the registered capital of
Mining Co, and agreed to provide the Loan in the amount of
RMB250 million (“Loan”) to the Company.

In view of the Investment Agreement and the Cooperation
Agreements, the maximum capital contribution to the Mining Co
by the Company shall be RMB75 million, which is expected to be
satisfied by the Loan obtained from Beijing Zhongrun.

Details regarding the Investment are disclosed in the Company’s
announcements dated 23 November 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Save as discussed elsewhere under the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis”, the Group had no future
plans for material investments as at the date of this report.

The Company, however, will continue to seek investments in
companies or projects that could bring synergy to the Group
should the targets or opportunities arise. In addition, the Company
may also invest in new business projects only if such investment
isin favourable to the future development of the Group. Given the
current uncertain market conditions, the Company may obtain
funding for new projects through fund raising or loans while
reserving the internal resources for its core businesses.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group had around 400 employees as at 31 December 2018.
It has been the Group’s policy to ensure that the pay levels of its
employees are rewarded on a performance related basis within the
general framework of the Group’s salary and bonus system. The
Group has participated in a mandatory provident fund scheme for
its employees in Hong Kong. Shares options may also be granted to
eligible persons of the Group.

LITIGATION AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2018, the material pending litigations and
contingent liabilities are set out as follows:

(a) At 31 December 2018, the Group has not paid the social
security fund for and on behalf of its employees which
expose the Group to the risk of being imposed the penalty
by the relevant government authority. The social security
fund accrued up to 31 December 2018 of approximately
RMB41,482,000 in aggregate, were recorded as “Trade and
other payables” in the consolidated statement of financial
position (31 December 2017: RMB40,835,000).
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(b)

(c)

Management Discussion and Analysis

A repayment agreement was signed between Jiangxi
Shipbuilding and the relevant government authority on 26
January 2015 in respect of the settlement of the unpaid
social security fund. Per the agreement, all outstanding
amounts should be repaid before December 2019. The
Directors considered that if the Group could settle the unpaid
social security fund according to the repayment agreement,
no penalty would be imposed by the relevant government
authority.

At 31 December 2018, the Group has not paid the housing
provident fund contributions for and on behalf of its
employees which expose the Group to the risk of being
imposed the penalty by the relevant government authority.
The housing provident fund contributions accrued up to
31 December 2018 of approximately RMB6,785,000 in
aggregate, were recorded as “Trade and other payables”
in the consolidated statement of financial position (31
December 2017: RMB7,270,000).

The Directors are of the opinion that the possibility to the risk
of being imposed the penalty by the relevant government
authority is remote.

On 3 December 2015, Merge Limited and other shareholders
of Zhejiang Ocean as counter guarantors (collectively referred
to the “Counter Guarantors”) entered into the counter
guarantee agreement with Zhoushan Marine Comprehensive
Development and Investment Co., Ltd (#FIL/EF44 %
WA AR AT ) (the “Guarantor”), pursuant to which the
Counter Guarantors shall, in proportion to their respective
shareholding in Zhejiang Ocean and upon demand of the
Guarantor, indemnify the Guarantor for all liabilities and
expenses which may be incurred by the Guarantor under
any guarantee given or to be given by the Guarantor in favour
of Zhejiang Ocean during the period from 1 January 2015
to 31 December 2020 in respect of loan agreements and
asset securitization agreements entered into by Zhejiang
Ocean (the “Guarantee”), up to an aggregate amount of
RMB900,000,000, together with any interests, penalty,
compensation and related fees and expenses which may be
payable by the Guarantor under the Guarantee. Accordingly,
the maximum amount which Merge shall indemnify the
Guarantor is 20% of the aforesaid aggregate amount, being
RMB180,000,000.
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BIEES MR DM

(d)

(e)

()

As disclosed in the Company’s circular dated 24 February
2017 (the “VSA Circular”), the financial guarantee of
approximately HK$229,527,000 represent the back-to-back
corporate guarantees provided by Huakai Heavy (which
became the Company’s subsidiary on 11 April 2017 upon
completion of the Acquisition of Huakai Heavy Group)
in favour of Huatai Heavy Industry Limited in 2014 (the
“Corporate Guarantee”) which remained outstanding as at
31 December 2018. The relevant information including the
details of the relevant guarantee agreements are disclosed
in the VSA Circular. Due to the failure of two ship owners to
fulfill its payment obligation under the relevant shipbuilding
contracts, Huatai Heavy Industry Limited had cancelled the
relevant export and import cooperation agreements with
the vessel agency companies. Pursuant to the terms of the
export and import co-operation agreements and the civil
mediation agreements, Huatai Heavy Industry Limited was
liable to refund the prepaid amount received from the vessel
agency companies (the “Prepaid Amounts”).

The Vendor of Huakai Heavy undertake to use the
consideration payable to indemnify Huakai Heavy for all
losses and liabilities incurred by Huakai Heavy under the
Corporate Guarantee.

In 2018, a partner filed litigation to the Intermediate
People’s Court of Nantong City against Nantong Huakai for
outstanding liabilities. At the end of the reporting period,
the litigation was judged and the outstanding payable of
the principal payment and the relevant interests accrued of
approximately RMB37,478,000 in aggregate.

In 2018, a supplier filed litigation to the People’s Court
of Rugao City against Nantong Huakai for outstanding
liabilities. At the end of the reporting period, the litigation
was mediated and the outstanding payable of the principal
payment and the relevant interests accrued of approximately
RMB48,000,000 in aggregate.
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(g)

(h)

(i)

(k)

Management Discussion and Analysis

In 2018, a supplier filed litigation to the People’s Court of
Chongchuan District against Nantong Huakai for outstanding
liabilities. At the end of the reporting period, the litigation
was judged and the outstanding payable of the principal
payment and the relevant interests accrued of approximately
RMB8,400,000 in aggregate.

In 2018, a supplier filed litigation to the Intermediate
People’s Court of Shenyang City against Nantong Huakai
for outstanding liabilities. At the end of the reporting period,
the litigation was judged and the outstanding payable of
the principal payment and the relevant interests accrued of
approximately RMB5,000,000 in aggregate.

In 2018, a shipbuilding administrator filed litigation to the
Intermediate People’s Court of Zhoushan City against Jiangxi
Shipbuilding and China Ocean Shipbuilding Holdings Limited
for bankruptcy revocation, involving litigation amounts of
RMB257,611,000. At the end of the reporting period, the
litigation was not in trial yet.

In 2018, a shipbuilding administrator filed litigation to the
Intermediate People’s Court of Zhoushan City against Jiangxi
Shipbuilding and Jiujiang Jinhu Equipment Manufacturing
Company Limited for bankruptcy revocation, involving
litigation amounts of RMB63,930,000. At the end of the
reporting period, the litigation was not in trial yet.

In 2018, an independent third party filed litigation to the
People’s Court of Ruichang City against Jiangxi Shipbuilding
for outstanding liabilities, involving litigation amounts of
RMB12,000,000. At the end of the reporting period, the
litigation was not in trial yet.

In 2018, a contractor filed litigation to Wuhan Marine Court
against Jiangxi Shipbuilding for the failure to make payment
of service fees, involving the total amount of litigation of
approximately RMB6,691,000. At the end of the reporting
period, the litigation was not judged yet.

Other than disclosed above, the Directors are of the opinion that

the Group has no other material pending litigations and contingent
liabilities at 31 December 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EIBESm R DT
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS BAREE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&xT FHET
Contracted for but not provided in the consolidated BRTHERREE I IEHRE
financial statement: FHR A
Unpaid registered capital for the associates B N B 2 KRBT E R 100,560 103,260
Unpaid registered capital for the subsidiaries i AR REGEME AR 604,428 636,240
Unpaid registered capital for a joint venture —fEAE B E ARG M
B 114,000 120,000
Capital expenditure in respect of the acquisition of BREBIEME BB REE
property, plant and equipment ZEBRYH 28,023 29,498
847,011 888,998
EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD EHRPEBIE

DISPOSAL OF AN ASSOCIATE

On 28 February 2019, Merge Limited (“Merge”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, and the China Medical Services
Holdings Limited (“China Medical”) entered into a share purchase
agreement. Pursuant to this share purchase agreement, Merge has
conditionally agreed to sell and the China Medical has conditionally
agreed to purchase the 20% equity interest of Zhejiang Ocean
Leasing Company Limited (“Zhejiang Ocean”) at a maximum
consideration of RMB170 million. Completion has not yet taken
place as at the date of this report.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Company has been focusing on manufacturing business
and has adopted diversification strategy in the past years.
Committing to focus on its core businesses and promote efficient
use of its resources, the Company will gradually divest of its non-
core businesses while exploiting and strengthening its wharf
construction and related logistics business, at the same time,
maintaining focus on its manufacturing and service business, in
order to generate more cashflow for the Company.

Details regarding the disposal are disclosed in the Company’s
announcements dated 28 February 2019.

PROSPECTS

The improvement of the external environment of the real economy
in the PRC will bring new opportunities to the Group’s businesses.
The Group will strive for a substantial breakthrough in the business
integration of Jiangzhou Shipbuilding in 2019 by effectively
integrating resources such as docks, coastlines and land. In order
to focus on the main business, the Group will dispose of a part of
business and assets, and on this basis, extend the industrial chain
through business expansion, industry mergers and acquisitions,
etc.

With regard to the risks faced by the Group’s investment in
Zhoushan, Zhejiang Province, we will make every effort to actively
and properly seek solutions to minimize risks.

In conclusion, although there are problems and difficulties in
the development of the real economy, the state is intensifying its
support for real economy and private enterprises, and the overall
policy will be beneficial to the development of the real economy.
The Group will seize the opportunity, through the introduction of
new partners, stronger communications and coordination with
the governments and financial institutions and reorganization of
debts, to expand sources for operating funds. Based on effective
integration of existing resources we will expand its business base in
order to enhance its sustainable business capability.
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Report on Corporate Governance
EXELCRS

The Group has recognized the importance of transparency and
accountability, and the Board believes that shareholders can be
benefited from good corporate governance. The Company aims to
achieve good standard of corporate governance. During the year
ended 31 December 2018, the Company has complied with the
code provisions as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”), except for the deviations
from Codes Provision disclosed below.

Code provision A.6.7 stipulates that independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors should attend general
meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views
of shareholders; while code provision E.1.2 stipulates that the
chairman of the board should attend the annual general meeting,
and should also invite the chairmen of the audit, remuneration,
nomination and any other committees (as appropriate) to attend.

The chairman of the Board and the three independent non-
executive Directors were unable to attend the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 22 June 2018 due to their
other business commitments. An executive Director chaired the
meetings whereas other attended Board members were already of
sufficient calibre and number for answering questions raised by the
shareholders.

Pursuant to code provision C.1.3, where the directors are aware
of material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the issuer’s ability to continue as a going
concern, they should be clearly and prominently disclosed and
discussed at length in the Corporate Governance Report.
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Report on Corporate Governance

The auditors of the Company issued a disclaimer of opinion over
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern due to the
conditions indicate the material uncertainties which may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern and therefore it may be unable to realise its assets and
discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. They
are: (i) the Group reported loss attributable to the owners of the
Company of approximately HK$1,545,435,000 and had significant
net cash used in operating activities for the year ended 31
December 2018; (i) as of that date, the Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by approximately HK$3,376,522,000;
(iii) the Group had net liabilities of approximately
HK$2,178,756,000, in which total borrowings amounted to
approximately HK$3,385,253,000, while its bank balances and
cash amounted to approximately HK$10,005,000 only; and (iv)
the Group defaulted on the repayment of certain borrowings and
payables on their respective due dates during the year ended 31
December 2018 and those creditors including banks had taken
legal actions against the Group to recover the debts.

The Board has adopted and considered different measures
with different dimensions to further improve its cash flow, e.g.
(i) diversifying the revenue stream of the Group by introducing
more segments; (ii) streamlining its operation by cutting staff; (iii)
revitalising shipbuilding assets of Jiangxi Shipbuilding by using
its spare resources for production, storage and transportation;
(iv) negotiating with banks to delay the repayment of debt or to
apply for additional instalment to decrease the Group’s financial
burden; (iv) seeking financial assistance from local government;
(v) negotiating with its suppliers and creditors to extend payment
due date; and (vi) disposing of its assets and business enable
the Group to restructure its core business and to obtain funds to
improve its financial position.

In view of the aforesaid, the Board, including the Audit Committee,
believes that the above measures, if materialised, will not only
bring to the Group a significant improvement on the financial
performance but also help to address the Disclaimer of Opinions
of the Auditor, and accordingly is of the view that the Group could
continue as a going concern.

For more details regarding the uncertainties relating to going
concern are disclosed in the session “Management Discussion
and Analysis” under the paragraph headed “DISCLAIMER OF
OPINION” set out in P.11 to P.16 of this report.
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Report on Corporate Governance
EXELCRS

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board’'s primary responsibilities are to formulate the
Company’s long-term corporate strategy, to oversee the
management and to evaluate the performance of the Group.

EExg

EFEZIRRERMIEARR ZERAEER
B EREEENMFEAEE I RE-

The Board meets regularly throughout the year to discuss the EESeREBREAFEATHEENTREAEE 2
overall strategy as well as the operation and financial performance BRESEARCERMERRE - BE_S—N\F
of the Group. For the year ended 31 December 2018, the +ZA=Z1+—BUHFE ARAFHBITI2NES
Company has held 12 board meetings in total. The individual BEZ - BEREFENLEBERESNWNT
attendance of each Director is set out below:

Board Meetings 2018 AGM

—E-N\F

Name HA EZEg3 BRREFKRSE
Executive directors: HITES:
Mr. Li Ming (Chairman) ZEREE (FFE) 12/12 0/1
Mr. Zhang Shi Hong RERFTE (TTEAER)

(Chief Executive Officer) 11/12 1/1
Mr. Zhang Weibing REREE 11/12 0/1
Mr. Liu Jin 2E R E 11/12 0/1
Non-executive director: FHITES:

Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen FAZEREE (BEEE)

(Honorary Chairman) 12/12 1/1
Mr. Lin Lie MREE (RZE—\F

(appointed on 3 September 2018) NA=ZBEZE) 1/2 0/0
Independent non-executive directors: BYFHITES:

Mr. Hu Bai He HRAE A% A4 12/12 01
Ms. Xiang Si Ying HBELZL 12/12 0/1
Ms. Xiang Ying mBERZ T 12/12 0/1
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When the Board considers any material transaction in which a
substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest, a
board meeting is held and Independent Non-executive Directors
who have no material interest in the transaction will be present
at such board meeting. At the meeting, the Director who has an
interest in the transaction is required to abstain from voting.

Every Director shall ensure that he/she can contribute sufficient
time and effort to the corporate affairs of the Company once he/she
accepts the appointment.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The Board appointed Mr. Li Ming as the Chairman, who is
responsible for the leadership and effective running of the Board
to achieve its primary responsibilities. With the support of the
executive directors, the Chairman seeks to ensure that all directors
are properly briefed on issues arising at board meetings and that
all directors receive adequate and reliable information on a timely
manner. The Chairman also encourages Directors to be fully
engaged in the Board’s affair and make contribution in performing
the Board's functions. The board appointed Mr. Zhang Shi Hong as
Chief Executive Officer, who is vested with executive responsibilities
over the business directions and operational decisions of the
management and performance of the Group.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board comprises four executive directors, two non-executive
directors and three independent non-executive directors as at
the date of this report. The independent non-executive directors
constitute over one-third of the Board. In addition, one of the
independent non-executive directors possesses appropriate
accounting qualifications and financial management expertise.
The Directors are considered to have a balance of knowledge and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the business of
the Group. The independent non-executive directors also serve
the important function of ensuring and monitoring the basis of an
effective corporate governance framework. The Board considers
that each independent non-executive director is independent
in character and judgment and that they all meet the specific
independent criteria as required by the Listing Rules.
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EXELCRS

DIVERSIFICATION OF THE BOARD

In determining the composition of the Board, the Company
seeks to achieve board diversity through the consideration of a
number of factors and measurable criteria, such as age, education
background, industry experience, geographical location and
duration of service. The Nomination Committee has reviewed the
composition of the Board in accordance with the Listing Rules and
concluded that the composition of the Board is in compliance with

the diversification requirements of the Listing Rules.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the requirement of the Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
the Board confirmed that the Company has received written
confirmation from each of all three independent non-executive
directors of their independence and considers them to be
independent throughout the year.

Under Code Provision A.4.3 of the CG Code, if an independent
non-executive Director serves more than 9 years, his/her further
appointment should be subject to a separate resolution to be
approved by the Shareholders. As such, although each of Ms.
Xiang Si Ying, Mr. Hu Bai He and Ms. Xiang Ying will be serving
as an independent non-executive Director for more than nine
years at the coming annual general meeting in 2019, the Board
considers that each of Ms. Xiang Si Ying, Mr. Hu Bai He and Ms.
Xiang Ying is a person of integrity and independent in judgement
and character. They are independent of management and free
from any business or other relationships or circumstances which
could materially interfere with the exercise of their independent
judgement. The Board considers that each of Ms. Xiang Si
Ying, Mr. Hu Bai He and Ms. Xiang Ying meets the independent
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and is of the
view that their independence is not affected by their long service
with the Company.
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TERMS OF APPOINTMENT OF NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the non-executive directors is appointed for an initial term
of not more than two years commencing from his/her date of
appointment and is renewable successively for a term of two years
until termination. Each of them is subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election by shareholders at annual general meeting in
accordance with the Bye-laws.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’
SECURITIES TRANSACTION

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rule regarding Directors’
securities transactions. Based on specific enquiry of all the
Directors of the Company, the Directors have complied with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code for the year ended
31 December 2018.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has set up a Nomination Committee to ensure that
there are fair and transparent procedures for the appointment, re-
election and removal of directors to the Board. The Nomination
Committee comprises the Chairman of the Board and three
independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Li Ming, Mr.
Hu Bai He, Ms. Xiang Si Ying and Ms. Xiang Ying. The Chairman
of the Nomination Committee is Ms. Xiang Ying. The terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee are consistent with the
terms set out in the Code. The Nomination Committee has adopted
a nomination policy which sets out the procedures and criteria for
nomination of directors. The nomination of directors should take
into consideration of the nominee’s qualification, experience, ability
and potential contributions to the Company.
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EXELCRS

The nomination policy aims to set out the principles which guide
the Nomination Committee to identify and evaluate a candidate for
nomination to (i) the Board for appointment or (ii) shareholders
of the Company for election as a director of the Company. The
Nomination Committee will also take into account the diversification
of the Board and the nomination policy when identifying suitably
qualified candidates for the Board and would review the policies
regularly to ensure their continuing effectiveness. The nomination
policy sets out the criteria and procedures in making nominations,
including but not limited to, skills, experience and professional
expertise; diversity; commitment and standing. When the candidate
to be nominated as an independent non-executive director, he/she
must satisfy the independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. Mr. Lin Lie was nominated for directorship in 2018.
The nomination policy can be found and accessible on the website
of the Company (www.irasia.com/listco/hk/chinaoceanindustry).

One meetings were held during the year ended 31 December
2018. All members attended the meetings. The members of the
Nomination Committee reviewed the details of proposed directors’
and made recommendation to the Board for the appointment of
directors subject to re-election during the year.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has set up the Remuneration Committee to ensure
that there are formal and transparent procedures for setting
up policies on the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee were consistent with the terms set out in the Code.
The Remuneration Committee comprises three independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Hu Bai He, Ms. Xiang Si Ying and
Ms. Xiang Ying and one executive director, namely Mr. Zhang Shi
Hong. The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Ms. Xiang
Ying.

Two meetings were held during the year ended 31 December
2018. All members attended the meetings. They made
recommendation to the Board regarding the Company’s
remuneration policy and the remuneration package of all directors
(excluding his own remunerations) of the Company. No Director
was involved in deciding his own remuneration during the year
under review.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The specific written terms of reference of the Audit Committee
which was re-adopted on 31 March 2016 in light of the
amendment of Listing Rules, is available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Audit Committee is
primarily responsible for (a) making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditor; (b) approving the remuneration and terms of engagement
of external auditor; and (c) reviewing financial information and
overseeing the financial reporting system, risk management and

internal control procedures.

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors, and the chairman of the Audit Committee, Mr. Hu Bai
He, possesses a professional accountancy qualification and has
substantial experience in accounting and financial matters.

Two meetings were held by the Audit Committee during the year
ended 31 December 2018. The individual attendance of each
member is set out below:
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Number of

committee

meetings attended

HEZES

Name of member REESR BREZXH
Mr. Hu Bai He FAMAAD S & 2/2
Ms. Xiang Si Ying HB R T 2/2
Ms. Xiang Ying ML 2/2
The Group’s interim report for the six months ended 30 June 2018 EZZEeEEBHAEEEE_Z—N\F A
and the annual report for the year ended 31 December 2018 had =STHEREAZHBRERBEE T - N\F

been reviewed by the Audit Committee and recommendation was
provided to the Board for approval.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the auditors of the
Company received approximately HK$1,785,000 for audit services
and approximately HK$580,000 for other services (including
agreed-upon procedures on interim results and disbursement).
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EXELCRS

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards.

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that
the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it
is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

In order to achieve enhanced corporate governance of the
Company, the Board has undertaken constant review of the
policies for corporate governance of the Company, the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements. During this year, the Board
performed the duties relating to corporate governance matters such
as appointed external professionals to carry out internal control
review.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Directors are continually updated on the latest development
and changes in the Listing Rules, the Code and other regulatory
requirements in order to ensure the compliance with the same
by the Directors. Directors are also encouraged to participate in
professional development courses and seminars to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. The Directors namely Li Ming,
Zhang Shi Hong, Zhang Weibing, Liu Jin, Chau On Ta Yuen, Lin
Lie, Hu Bai He, Xiang Si Ying and Xiang Ying had provided a
record of training they received during the year to the Company.
According to the training records provided by the Directors, the
training attended by them during the reporting period was related
to Corporate Governance, regulatory development and training on
other relevant topics.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities to prepare
the consolidated financial statements of the Group and other
financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules and the
management has provided such explanation and information to
the Board to enable it to make an informed assessment of the
financial and other Board decisions. The Directors believed that
they have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently, made judgments and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable. The management has provided all members of the
Board with monthly updates on internal financial statements so as
to give the Directors a balanced and understandable assessment of
the Group’s performance, position and prospects.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

During the year, the group has complied with Principle C.2 of
the Corporate Governance Code by establishing appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems.
Management is responsible for the design, implementation and
monitoring of such systems, while the board oversees management
in performing its duties on an ongoing basis. Main features of the
risk management and internal control systems are described in the

sections below:

Risk Management System

The Group adopts a risk management system which manages
the risks associated with its business and operations. The system
comprises the following phases:

° Identification: Identify ownership of risks, business objectives
and risks that could affect the achievement of objectives.

° Evaluation: Analyze the likelihood and impact of risks and
evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

° Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure effective
communication to the board and on-going monitor the
residual risks.

EXEBRS

LEYSE: R

ERNEREERE ETMRAGRASEESEH
BHREMHGOUBEBEERZET MERBED
MEFSRHEAEREREHAGEST SRR
?fﬁﬁﬂ‘xﬁiﬁ@§$@‘)k%f’ﬁﬂj%D’%E"ﬁ°§$$H
B HEEKESENST BRI ERER I
T’Eﬁ%ﬁ/f\ﬁmﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁ‘ﬁ"ﬁ@)EJ MEE
SRENERESTNADUBRE  UEES
AEAEE RR ARARARELIERSH
AR o

| B 3 K P B B 4

FAAEEERETEEEATRIEC2EREA
BUBERAERZRABRERNABEIERG -E
BEBAEZXFEARZRT BRELEZE MEF
SEEREERERENTERE -ARERR
A EERERN T XS

MBPEI IR &

AREERG

AEEFEMNZBARERRNEIRHEEZER L &

il S SRR VN =

. AR R R E XS B IE R AR
BiZEIR 2R -

. i IR 2 T REME RS - WKL ET
HEBAES -

e TR ZERROEREE BREESEH

8 B I 15 48 L T R R B

PEETEEHRRAT F3F 2018

37



38

Report on Corporate Governance
EXELCRS

Internal Control System

The Company has in place an internal control system which
enables the Company to achieve objectives regarding effectiveness
and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial reporting and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The components
of the internal system are shown as follow:

o Control Environment: a set of standards, processes and
structures that provide the basis for carrying out internal
control across the Group.

° Risk Assessment: a dynamic and iterative process for
identifying and analyzing risks to achieve the Group's
objectives, forming a basis for determining how risks should
be managed.

° Control Activities: action established by policies and
procedures to help ensure that management directives to
mitigate risks to the achievement of objectives are carried
out.

o Information and Communication: internal and external
communication to provide the Group with the information
needed to carry out day-to-day contrals.

° Monitoring: ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain
whether each components of internal control is present and

functioning.

Based on the internal control reviews conducted in 2018, no
significant control deficiency was identified.
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Internal Audit

During the year, the audit committee appointed external
professional to conduct an internal audit review of the effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems. The
external professional is assigned with the task to perform reviews
on operational, financial and compliance aspects and will alert the
management on the audit review findings or irregularities, if any,
advise on the implementation of necessary steps and actions to
enhance the internal controls of the Group. The result of internal
audit reviews and agreed action plans are reported to the Audit

Committee and the Board.

Effectiveness of the Risk Management and
Internal Control Systems

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and ensuring review of the
effectiveness of these systems has been conducted annually.
Several areas have been considered during the Board’s review,
which include but not limited to (i) the changes in the nature
and extent of significant risks since the last annual review and
the Group’s ability to respond to changes in its business and the
external environment; (ii) the scope and quality of management’s
ongoing monitoring of risks and of the internal control systems.

The Board, through its review made by internal audit function
and Audit Committee, concluded that the risk management
and internal control systems were effective and adequate. Such
systems, however, are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. It is also considered that the resources, staff
qualifications and experience of relevant staff were adequate and
the training programs and budget provided were sufficient.
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EXELCRS

INSIDER INFORMATION AND
INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

In order to enhance the Group's system of handling inside
information, and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy,
completeness and timeliness of its public disclosures, the Group
also adopts and implements an inside information policy and
procedures. Certain reasonable measures have been taken from
time to time to ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent a
breach of a disclosure requirement in relation to the group, which
include:

° The access of information is restricted to a limited number
of employees on a need-to-know basis. Employees who are
in possession of inside information are fully conversant with
their obligations to preserve confidentiality.

o Confidentiality agreements are in place when the group
enters into significant negotiations.

o The executive directors are designated persons who speak

on behalf of the Company when communicating with external
parties such as the media, analysts or investors.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tong Yiu On, the Company Secretary of the Company,
confirmed that he has taken no less than 15 hours relevant
professional training during the financial year.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

Pursuant to the Dividend Policy of the Company, the Company may
consider to propose or declare dividends out of the Company’s
distributable reserve to the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”). Such declaration and payment of dividends
shall remain to be determined at the sole discretion of the Board,
subject to the requirements of all applicable laws and regulations
and the bye-laws and memorandum of association of the Company.

In deciding whether to propose or declare a dividend and in
determining the dividend amount and means of payment,
the Board shall take into account, among others, the Group’s
actual and expected financial performance, retained earnings
and distributable reserves, liquidity position, working capital
requirements, the capital and debt level, capital expenditure
requirements and future development and investment plans,
Shareholders’ interests, general economic conditions and other
internal or external factors that may have an impact on the
business or financial performance and position of the Group and
other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The Dividend Policy shall not constitute a legally binding
commitment by the Company and there is no assurance that
dividends will be proposed, declared or paid by the Company in
any particular amount at any time or from time to time. The Board
will from time to time review the Dividend Policy and may exercise
at its absolute and sole discretion to update, amend and/or modify
the Dividend Policy at any time as the Board deems The Dividend
Policy shall be reviewed and revised from time to time as and when
considered necessary by the Board.
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EXELCRS

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

The Company recognizes the importance of good communications
with all shareholders and investors. The Company’s annual general
meeting is a valuable forum for the Board to communicate directly
with the shareholders. All shareholders of the Company are given
at least 21 days’ notice for the date and venue of such annual
general meeting. Shareholders are encouraged to attend general
meetings. The Chairman and/or the Directors are available to
answer questions on the Group’s businesses at the meetings.
The Company provides information relating to the Company
and its business in its annual and half-year report and also
disseminates such information electronically through its website at
“www.irasia.com/listco/hk/chinaoceanindustry/” and the website of
the Stock Exchange.

As one of the measures to safeguard shareholders’ interests and
rights, separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on
each material matters, including the election of individual Directors,
for shareholder to consider and vote. All resolutions put forward at
general meetings will be voted by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules.

Convening a Special General Meeting (“SGM”) and
Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and Bye-laws of
the Company, Shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall have the right to submit a written
requisition requiring a SGM to be called by the Board. The written
requisition (a) must state the object(s) of the meeting; and (b)
must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the principal
office of the Company for attention of the Company Secretary, and
may consist of several documents, each signed by one or more
requisitionists. Such requisitions will be verified with the Company’s
Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar and upon its confirmation that
the requisition is proper and in order, the Company Secretary will
ask the Board to convene a SGM by serving sufficient notice to all
Shareholders.

CHINA OCEAN INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

BERREARRRER

AAARBINETEBRERKEEETS
MEBBIEEM -ARAAZRERERE B
EreRHEERREERRCBEEHRE -
ARG BREGERKI2IAAM UE
MEERRBFRAGZRITAARME - K
REBEBRREERRAG -FHE R, RE
ERRGLEEERAEEEB 2HE- X
RAEFERFFERSHPRHEFUALRLQA
REEBZ2ER WUBEFEABEBEBI
[ www.irasia.com/listco/hk/chinaoceanindustry/ | &

BB EMERER -

EREFR —BREREREN G REN 2 AR
ARERERASLUNSHEAETH(BREE
[ERES) RE2BILORBRUHBERE BRK
ReMBRAG LIRE 2B RBRGBGRE L
MARRARETARR -

BRARRFI RS ([RERIFHIARE])
RERRAKELEERZIR

REBRE-NN—FREERARRZAFH
Al REZFRLARHBERR RS BEBRASD
Rto2Z2—010%) ARBRAE LREZ %
SZEERREBRERE@MH R UFEKEFS
BRBRFEHIAE - E@HR@AFIARNEHNE
B R(OVEHEFARBALEARARR 2 EH
ER (FRRFARRRWE) - XAl AR
RAKXHER MEBOH-BHEREFAR
F-ARFRBEARRBZEERNBFELD
RBREZE WEAARKEERBZELEE 1A
WEHBEREFTSRTEREREHBAE U
BRBRFHIARE -



Report on Corporate Governance

If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a SGM for
a day not more than two months after the date of deposit of a
proper requisition, the requisitionists or any of them representing
more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them may
convene a SGM, but any SGM so convened shall not be held after
the expiration of 3 months from the said date of deposit of the
requisition. A meeting convened by the requisitionists shall be
convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in
which meetings are to be convened by Directors.

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, either any number
of the registered Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth
(5%) of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company (“Requisitionists”), or
not less than 100 of such registered Shareholders, can request
the Company in writing to (a) give to the Shareholders entitled
to receive notice of the next annual general meeting notice of
any resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to
be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate to the Shareholders
entitled to have notice of any general meeting any statement of
not more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to
in any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that
meeting. The requisition signed by all the Requisitionists must be
deposited at the principal office of the Company for attention of the
Company Secretary with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s relevant expenses and not less than six weeks before
the meeting in case of a requisition requiring notice of are solution
or not less than one week before the meeting in the case of any
other requisition. Provided that if, after a copy of the requisition
requiring notice of a resolution has been deposited at the principal
office of the Company, an annual general meeting is called for a
date six weeks or less after the copy has been deposited, such
requisition though not deposited within the time required shall be
deemed to have been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.
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EXELCRS

Right to Put Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board. All
enquiries shall be in writing and sent by post to the principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong for the attention of the
Company Secretary.

MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION AND
BYE-LAWS OF THE COMPANY

During the reporting period, no amendment had been made to the
Memorandum of Association and Bye-Laws of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Li Ming
Chairman
29 March 2019
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The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 48 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 81 of the annual report.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out
on page 85 of the annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in Note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution of the shareholders at the
annual general meeting on 22 June 2018, the Company’s
authorised share capital was increased from HK$1,000,000,000
divided into 20,000,000,000 of HK$0.05 each to
HK$2,500,000,000 divided into 50,000,000,000 ordinary shares
by creation of 30,000,000,000 new shares.

As at 31 December 2018, the authorised share capital of the
Company was HK$2,500,000,000 divided into 50,000,000,000
shares of par value of HK$0.05 each, of which 13,636,838,840
shares had been allotted and issued as fully paid or credited as
fully paid.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of the Group’s borrowings as at 31 December 2018 are
set out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company did not have any reserves available for distribution
(2017: Nil).

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
balances in a company’s contributed surplus and share premium
accounts are available for distribution. However, the company
cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
contributed surplus and share premium accounts if:

(a) the company is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay
its liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of the assets of the company would

thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium accounts.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 328 of the
annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018 is set out under the sections headed “Chairman’s
Statement”, “Five Year Financial Summary”, “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report. Those discussions
form part of this Report of the Directors.

Further discussion and analysis matters as required by Schedule
5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), including are view of the business of the Group, discussion
and analysis of the Group's performance during the year and the
material factors underlying its results and financial position, and an
indication of the outlook of the business of the Group, are set out
under sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this Annual Report. Those discussions
form part of this Report of the Directors.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group complies with the requirements under the Companies
Ordinance, the Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQ") for the disclosure of information and
corporate governance. The Group also complies with the
requirements of Employment Ordinance and ordinances relating
to occupational safety for the interest of employees of the Group.
Important events affecting the Group occurred after 31 December
2018 are mentioned in the section “Events After the Reporting
Period”. As at 31 December 2018 and up to the date of this
report, the Board was unaware of any non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations which had a significant impact on the
Company.
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Environmental Policies And Performance

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. The Group
encourages environmental protection and promotes awareness
towards environmental protection to the employees. It implements
green office practices such as double-sided printing and copying,
promoting using recycled paper and reducing energy consumption
by switching off idle lightings and electrical appliances.

The Group will review its environmental practices from time to
time and will consider implementing further eco-friendly measures
and practices in the operation of the Group’s business to move
towards adhering the 3Rs — “Reduce”, “Recycle” and “Reuse”

and enhance environmental sustainability.

Please refer to the separately published Environmental, Social
and Governance Report of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2018 prepared in accordance with Appendix 27
to the Listing Rules for detailed discussion of the Company’s
environmental policies and performance.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Impact of Local and International Regulations

The business operation of the Group is also subject to government
policy, relevant regulations and guidelines established by the
regulatory authorities. Failure to comply with the rules and
requirements may lead to penalties, amendments or suspension
of the business operation by the authorities. The Group closely
monitors changes in government policies, regulations and markets
as well as conducting studies to assess the impact of such
changes.

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations and business
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties
directly or indirectly pertaining to the Group’s businesses. Details of
the principal risks and uncertainties are set out in Notes 5, 6 and 7
to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.
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Relationship with Suppliers, Customers,
Employees and Other Stakeholders

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its business partners, suppliers, customers,
employees and other stakeholders to meet the Group’s immediate
and long-term goals.

Accordingly, the Group’s senior management have kept good
communication, promptly exchanged ideas and shared business
update with the stakeholders when appropriate. The Group
also creates a framework for motivating staff and a formal
communication channel in order to maintain healthy relationships
with its employees and other stakeholders. Save as disclosed
elsewhere under the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis”, during the year, there were no material and significant
dispute between the Group and its business partners, suppliers
and/or customers.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Li Ming — Chairman

Mr. Zhang Shi Hong — Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Zhang Weibing

Mr. Liu Jin

Non-executive director:

Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen — Honorary Chairman
Mr. Lin Lie (appointed on 3 September 2018)
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Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Hu Bai He
Ms. Xiang Siying
Ms. Xiang Ying

In accordance with Clause 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr.
Zhang Shi Hong, Mr. Liu Jin, and Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen and Ms.
Xiang Ying will retire by rotation and are eligible for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Furthermore, under bye-law 86(2) of the Company’'s Bye-laws,
any Director appointed during the year to fill a casual vacancy
or as an addition to the existing board shall hold office until the
first general meeting after his appointment (in the case of filling a
casual vacancy) or until the next following annual general meeting
of the Company (in the case of an addition to the existing Board).
Accordingly, Mr. Lin Lie will hold office until at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and being eligible, will offer himself for re-
election.

All of the remaining directors will continue in office.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive directors in writing an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the
Company considers all the independent non-executive directors to
be independent.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Brief biographical details of directors as at the date of this report
are set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Ming, aged 56, was appointed as a Director in February
2009 and is the Chairman of the Group. Mr. Li graduated from
Jiangxi Finance Institute (now known as Jiangxi University of
Finance and Economics) majoring in planning statistics. Prior to
joining the Company, Mr. Li held senior positions in a number
of well-known companies in the People’s Republic of China and
had extensive experience in management and business planning.
Mr. Li has served as a non-executive director of DST ROBOT
Co. Ltd (Stock Code: A090710), a company listed on Korean
Stock Exchange, since March 2015 and as an independent non-
executive director of Skyworth Digital Holdings Limited (Stock code:
00751), a company listed on Hong Kong Stock Exchange, since
March 2017. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Li did not hold any
directorship in other public companies the securities of which are
listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas over the
last three years.

Mr. Zhang Shi Hong, aged 50, was appointed as a Director in
December 2007 and is the Chief Executive Officer of the Group.
Mr. Zhang has over 18 years of experience in finance, credit
management and investment management. He has worked for
the head office of the Bank of China for around nine years, mainly
responsible for credit management. He also pursued investment
management in various institutions in the People’s Republic of
China. Mr. Zhang holds a Master’'s degree in Economics.

Mr. Zhang Weibing, aged 53, was appointed as a Director in
November 2017. Mr. Zhang holds a bachelor degree in economics,
a master degree in finance from Peking University and a doctoral
degree in finance from Sichuan University. He has over 27 years
of working experience in financial securities industry. Mr. Zhang
was appointed as as an executive director and then chairman of
Titan Petrochemicals Group Limited, a company listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1192), in July 2015
and September 2016 respectively, Mr. Zhang has resigned from
both position in March 2018. Mr. Zhang has extensive experience
in corporate governance, initial public offering, mergers and
acquisitions, equity bond financing and investment.
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Mr. Liu Jin, aged 50, was appointed as a Director in September
2015. Mr. Liu obtained a Diploma in Business Administration
from Singapore Institute of Management and a Master Degree of
Business Administration from Hong Kong Baptist University. Mr.
Liu is also a Certified Dealmaker endorsed by the China Mergers &
Acquisition Association. Mr. Liu has nearly 20 years’ experience in
the investment industry. He held senior positions in brokerage firm,
investment companies and private equity management companies
and has extensive experience in corporate finance matters, such
as corporate management, risks management, mergers and
acquisitions, corporate advisory and initial public offering in the
People’s Republic of China.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen, aged 71, was appointed as a Director in
September 2007 and was re-designated as the non-executive
Director and Honorary Chairman of the Group in June 2015.
Mr. Chau graduated from Xiamen University majoring in Chinese
language and literature. Mr. Chau has been an executive director
of ELL Environmental Holdings Limited and an independent non-
executive director of Good Resources Limited, Come Sure Group
(Holdings) Limited, Redco Properties Group Limited and Hua Long
Jin Kong Company Limited, the shares of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). Save as disclosed above, Mr. Chau did not hold
any directorship in other public companies the securities of which
are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas over
the last three years. Mr. Chau is currently a member of the Chinese
People Political Consultative Conference of the People’s Republic
of China and holds the office of its deputy officer of the Social and
Legal Affairs Committee. He is also the vice chairman of Hong
Kong Federation of Fujian Associations. Mr. Chau was awarded the
Bronze Bauhinia Star by the Hong Kong Government of Special
Administration Region in 2010.

Mr. Lin Lie, aged 24, was appointed as a non-executive director
in September 2018. Mr. Lin majored in finance at a prestigious
university in the United States and has extensive experience
in global investment management. He currently serves as the
managing director of several financial technology development and
asset management companies based in Hong Kong, Shanghai and
Taiwan.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Hu Bai He, aged 56, appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in May 2008. Mr. Hu was graduated from Jiangxi
University of Finance and Economics. He is a senior accountant,
certified public accountant, certified public valuer and certified
tax agent in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). He
has extensive experience in finance and accounting field. Mr.
Hu is currently the general manager of Peking Certified Public
Accountants. Before he joined Peking Certified Public Accountants
in 1993, he has had over seven years working experience with
Ministry of Finance of the PRC. Mr. Hu has been an independent
non-executive director of China Tian Yuan Healthcare Group
Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, since August 2016.
Save as disclosed above, Mr. Hu did not hold any directorship in
other public companies the securities of which are listed on any
securities market in Hong Kong or overseas over the last three
years.

Ms. Xiang Siying, aged 56, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in May 2008. Ms. Xiang holds an MBA
degree from the London Business School. She has extensive
experience in all sectors of corporate finance, restructuring and
merge and acquisitions practice. From 2010 to April 2016, Ms.
Xiang was an executive director of CDH Investments, a leading
private equity firm in China. Prior to joining CDH, she had worked
for China International Capital Corporation Limited since returning
to China in early 2004. Before that Ms. Xiang had long career with
International Finance Corporation, the private investment arm of
the World Bank Group in Washington, United States of America.
Ms. Xiang served as an independent non-executive director of
Titan Petrochemicals Group Limited (Stock Code: 01192) from
July 2015 to July 2018, she was appointed as an independent
non-executive director and then the chairman of Huili Resources
(Group) Limited (Stock Code: 01303) in September 2017 and
March 2019 respectively. The shares of the aforesaid companies
are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Save
as disclosed above, Ms. Xiang did not hold any directorship in
other public companies the securities of which are listed on any
securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in the last three years.
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Ms. Xiang Ying, aged 64, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in August 2009. Ms. Xiang was graduated and
obtained her Bachelor's degree in economics from Zhongnan
University of Economics and Law. Ms. Xiang is a qualified lawyer
and a certified public accountant in the People’s Republic of
China. She also holds qualifications to act as a senior lecturer in
Economic Law. Ms. Xiang has significant experience in the fields of
mergers and acquisitions, financial services and risk management.
Ms. Xiang has served as an independent director of Guangdong
National Technology Co., Ltd, the shares of which are listed on
Shenzhen Stock Exchange. During the period from 31 August
2011 to 25 November 2012, she was appointed as an independent
director of Anxin Trust & Investment Co. Ltd., the shares of
which are listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange. Ms. Xiang was an
independent director of Guangdong Sky Dragon Ink Group Co. Ltd,
the shares of which are listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange, from
July 2010 to July 2013. Save as disclosed above, Ms. Xiang did not
hold any directorship in other public companies the securities of
which are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas
in the last three years.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executives in the share capital of the Company
or its associated corporations, as defined in Part XV of the SFO and
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) were as follows:

(i) Interest in ordinary shares of the company
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Approximate
Number of percentage of
ordinary the issued
Name Long/Short position Capacity shares held shares held
FE2Z REEEREfTRGZ
] #E/ %R L) EBRREE BRERL
Li Ming (Note 1) Long position Beneficial owner 1,241,482 954 9.10%
87 (F95EL) A ERfAA
Long position Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2) 542,005,0000 3.97%
A REAEER (ME2)
Total 1,783,487,954 13.07%
it
Zhang Shi Hong (Note 3) Long position Beneficial owner 227,600,000 1.67%
K& (FE3) e ERfAA
Zhang Weibing (Note 4) Long position Beneficial owner 30,000,000 0.22%
£ (M) e ERfAA
Note 1:  Mr. Li Ming is an executive director of the Company. Mzl . ZFAEEARRNARZHITES

Note 2:  These shares are held by Lead Dragon Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands whose entire issued share
capital is solely and beneficially owned by Mr. Li Ming.

Note 3: Mr. Zhang Shi Hong is an executive director of the Company.

Note 4: Mr. Zhang Weibing is an executive director of the Company.

MizE2 : &5 {DHLead Dragon Limited# 748 &2
AR EBELZES MK K250 %17
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(ii) Rights to acquire shares in the Company

As at 31 December 2018, the directors of the Company
had interests in share options to subscribe for shares in the
Company as follows:

BEXRQTRMD ZER

—N\E+=ZA=+—H 'Zli"ﬁ%
EHRAEREZESUARBAR ARG T
T

Company/Name of Number of

Name of Director associated corporation Nature of interest underlying shares Exercise price
IR AQF/HEEEEE ERE HERAHE e
Chau On Ta Yuen Company Personal interest (Note 1) 45,000,000 HK$0.2117& T
BZER /NG| fEARER (H31)

Zhang Shi Hong Company Personal interest (Note 1) 16,000,000 HK$0.2117% 7T
NN NS BARER (1)

Hu Bai He Company Personal interest (Note 1) 1,000,000 HK$0.2117% 7T
A NG| AR (FiEEL)

Xiang Siying Company Personal interest (Note 1) 1,000,000 HK$0.2117% 7T
ERE /NG| fEARER (H31)

Xiang Ying Company Personal interest (Note 1) 1,000,000 HK$0.2117% 7T
A58 Vi /N) BARER (1)

Notes: B3 -

1. Such number of Shares represents the underlying shares of the 1. ZERNEEARBERARBAN T —ZF~A

options granted on 7 May 2014 under the share option scheme of the
Company adopted on 27 June 2012.

Save as disclosed in this report, none of the Directors or
their associates had any personal, family, corporate or other
interests in the equity or debt securities of the Company or
any of its associated corporations.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme adopted on
27 May 2002 (the “2002 Scheme”) are set out in Note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements. The term of 2002 Scheme is ten
years from its date of adoption. It has expired on 26 May 2012.
During the year ended 31 December 2018, options to subscribe
for 46,449,780 shares were granted under the 2002 Scheme have
lapsed. There were no outstanding options granted pursuant to the
2002 Scheme as at 31 December 2018. At the Company’ annual
general meeting held on 27 June 2012, an ordinary resolution was
proposed to approve the adoption of a new share option scheme
(the “2012 Scheme”), which has taken effect after the resolution
was passed and the Company obtained the listing approval
granted by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Particulars
of the 2012 Scheme are set out in Note 42 to the consolidated
financial statements. During the year ended 31 December 2018,
options to subscribe for 550,000,000 shares granted under the
2012 Scheme have lapsed. As at 31 December 2018, options
to subscribe for 326,000,000 shares granted under the 2012
Scheme remained outstanding.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

The Company did not conduct any fundraising through issue of
shares/convertible securities during the year ended 31 December
2018. However, the following convertible securities/right to
subscribe for convertible securities remained outstanding during
the year ended 31 December 2018:

1. 2016 Subscription Agreement

On 6 December 2016, the Company and Macquarie Bank
Limited (“Macquarie”) entered into a subscription agreement
pursuant to which Macquarie has conditionally agreed to
subscribe for, and the Company has conditionally agreed
to issue, convertible notes in aggregate principal amount of
up to HK$400 million, which is to be issued in 4 tranches
with each trance in principal amount of HK$100 million
and with interest rate at 2% per annum (“2016 Convertible
Notes”). As at the date of this report, the first tranche of
2016 Convertible Notes has been redeemed by the Company
in August 2017 and the remaining 3 tranches in aggregate
principle amount of HK$300 million have yet to be issued by
the Company.
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2. 2017 Convertible Bonds

On 10 November 2017, the Company issued a 2-year
convertible bond in principal amount of HK$189 million
with 10% interest rate (“2017 Convertible Bonds”) to
Pacific Ocean Marine Limited (“Pacific Ocean”) pursuant
to the relevant subscription agreement dated 10 August
2017 (amended and supplemented on 10 October 2017).
Upon full conversion of the 2017 Convertible Bonds at
the initial conversion price of HK$0.07 per share, a total
of 2,700,000,000 shares would be issued, representing
approximately 16.53% of the total enlarged number of issued
shares by the allotment and issue of conversion shares. The
net proceeds of HK$189 million from the issuance of the
2017 Convertible Bonds has been fully utilised, as follows:
HK$170 million was used for repayment of debts and HK$19
million was used for general working capital.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, no convertible notes
were issued under the convertible notes.

Details of the convertible notes are set out in the Note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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ARRANGEMENTS FOR DIRECTORS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Directors’ Interests in
Shares and Underlying Shares” and “Share Option Scheme” in this
report, at no time during the year under review was the Company,
its holding company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable a director of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as the information disclosed in Note 46 to the consolidated
financial statements, no transactions, arrangements or contract of
significance to which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a director of the Company or an entity connected
with a director had material interests, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors of the Company subject to re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, which is not determinable by
the employer within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensations.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2018, the following persons, other than a
Director or chief executive of the Company, had interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register (the “Register”) maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO. Other than as
disclosed below, the Company has not been notified of any other
interest or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company as at 31 December 2018.

FERR

RZZ—NF+ZA=+—8  TIAL(GER
NREIBEFRRSTRAB)RAR ARG R
IR0 R BB RL 8RN AN A BIRIRRE 5 M ER B R0
3BFMEFE2ECM ([BLM]) Rz sk
KA BRI EESN AR R E R E R
RZZE—NF+ZA=+—BARF RN KB
Bty 2 A b s SRR

Approximate

Number of percentage of the
Long/Short underlying issued shares held
Name position Nature of Interests share held  at 31 December 2015
fR-2-E%
+=ZA=t-H
BEZ BRERTROZ
#H #e/ %R BEME HERG A BRE L
Macquarie Group Limited Long Beneficial owner 1,666,666,666 12.22%
HaE ERBAA
Forward Fund SPC - Double Long Beneficial owner 1,842,857,143 13.51%
Management Fund SP
HaE ERBAA
Full House Asset Management Long Asset Manager 1,842,857,143 13.51%
Company Limited (Note 1)
Full House Asset Management e BEEEA
Company Limited (P 1)
Pacific Ocean Marine Limited Long Beneficial owner 857,142 857 6.29%
A BEEBRAT HaE ERBAA
Notes B 5

% Full House Asset Management Company Limited is the investment manager of
Forward Fund SPC — Double Management Fund SP.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employee of the Company is set up
by the executive directors on the basis of their merit, qualifications
and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by
the Board of Directors, having regard to their responsibility to the
Company, their qualifications, experiences and past remuneration,
the Company’s performance and current market conditions. The
Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
directors and eligible employees. Details of the scheme is set out in
Note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save for the Share Option Scheme as disclosed in the section
headed “Share Option Scheme” and the convertible notes as
disclosed in the section headed “Convertible Notes” above, no
equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares or that require the Company to enter into any
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares
were entered into by the Company during the year ended 31
December 2018 or subsisted at the said period.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate amount of purchase attributable to the Group’s
largest supplier and five largest suppliers taken together accounted
for 21.93% and 45.66%, respectively, of the Group’s total
purchase for the year.

The aggregate amount of turnover attributable to the Group's
largest customer and five largest customers taken together
accounted for 30.36% and 50.18%, respectively of the Group’s
total turnover for the year.

None of the directors, their associates or shareholders of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the directors own more than
5% of the Company'’s issued share capital) has an interest in any of
the Group's largest supplier and customer.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group has recognized the importance of transparency and
accountability, and the Board believes that shareholders can be
benefited from good corporate governance. The Company aims to
achieve good standard of corporate governance. The Company has
complied with the code provisions as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). Further
information on the Company’s corporate governance practice is set
out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 28 to 44.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors was interested in any business apart from the
Group’s business, which competed or was likely to compete either
directly or indirectly with business of the Group during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Save as disclosed in Note 46 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report, there was no significant
connected party transaction or continuing connected transaction
entered into by the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018
that require disclosure under chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this
report, there was sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the
Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The bye-laws of the Company provides that each director, the
company secretary and other officers of the Company shall be
entitled to be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets
and profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they shall or may
incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or
omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty,
in their respective offices or trusts. In addition, the Company has
maintained appropriate directors and officers liability insurance in
respect of relevant legal actions against directors of the Company.

Such permitted indemnity provisions have been in force throughout
the year ended 31 December 2018 and is currently in force at the
time of approval of this report.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

Save for employment contracts, no contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any principal
business of the Company were entered into or subsisted during the
year ended 31 December 2018.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed in Note 51 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report, there is no material subsequent
event undertaken by the Company or by the Group after 31
December 2018 and up to the date of this report.

AUDITOR

Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Limited was appointed as the auditor
of the Company on 17 January 2012. The financial statements
had been audited by Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Limited who will
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-
appoint Messrs. Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Limited as auditors of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board
LI Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong
29 March 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BN S
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Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Limited

TO THE MEMBERS OF
CHINA OCEAN INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED
FRETIRERRAA

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements
of China Ocean Industry Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 81 to 327, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Because of the significance of the matters
described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our
report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these
consolidated financial statements. In all other respects, in our
opinion the consolidated financial statements have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirement of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BHBEISREERQTKRR
(RBEREZMHE L BRAF])

HERTER

AIZEED (AT (M) D RZRERTE
ETREBRRAR ([ERF]) REMBAR (4
WIEEE])IIHNFEBIEIRTE ZiRE MR
R AZERAMBHRREER_Z—N\F+_A
=t BZEAMBIREE  RBEEZBLF
ErzmeEakErARER KagRE
RAMFERERNER  AREES M BEREM T
(BREESABERBE) -

BAXLTH BEEEZGEMBHRRERBR-
ERAREP [BERTEREE] —HilE
HZE2MM RARERSED RE ZBZER
B URREGRAMBRRERBRER R
BEMIHE HMARRERAMBEHRRCERES
REVGPIZ BEREZ RRE -

PEETEEHRRAT F3F 2018

65



66

Independent Auditor’s Report

WIS ENER S
BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION BERTEREE
(a) Limitation of scope on prior year's scope (a) HEFVHE EHFRARIBE

limitation affecting opening balances,
comparative figures and related disclosures

As explained in our report dated 29 March 2018 on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2017, we were not provided with sufficient
evidence to enable us to assess as to the revenue and cost
of sales of the shipbuilding business for the year ended
31 December 2017 and the balance of the amounts due
to customers for contract work as at 31 December 2017
were fairly stated. We qualified our opinion on the Group's
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017 in respect of this limitation of scope
accordingly.

Any adjustments found to be necessary to the opening
balances as at 1 January 2018 may affect the results and
related disclosures in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018. The comparative figures for the year ended 31
December 2017 shown in these consolidated financial
statements may not comparable with the figures for the
current year.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION BMEXRREREE(H)

(CONTINUED)
(b) EMEHHWE HEXE &L

(b) Limitation of scope on revenue, cost of sales,

contract assets and contract liabilities of
shipbuilding business

Due to delays in shipbuilding production schedules, a
customer relating to two vessels (the “Vessel Customer”),
in accordance with the terms and conditions stated in the
relevant shipbuilding contracts, has the rights to issue
rescission notices (the “Rescission Notices”) to the Group
if the Vessel Customer cannot receive the vessels on or
before the agreed vessels delivery dates in accordance with
the terms and conditions stated in the relevant shipbuilding
contracts. If the Rescission Notices were issued by the Vessel
Customer, the Group is required to return all of the payments
received so far from the Vessel Customer, of an aggregate
amount of approximately HK$57,785,000 (equivalent to
approximately USD7,380,000) and to pay interests on such
amount calculated in accordance with the relevant terms
stated in the shipbuilding contracts (the “Interests”). The
management of the Group have been in negotiation with the
Vessel Customer since November 2016. We were unable to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence we consider as
necessary in order to assess whether the Vessel Customer
had exercised its rights to issue the Rescission Notices to
the Group and request for return of payments together with
Interests from the Group and thus the related revenue and
cost of sales should be reversed.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
(CONTINUED)

(b) Limitation of scope on revenue, cost of sales,

contract assets and contract liabilities of
shipbuilding business (Continued)

Similarly, if the abovementioned revenue and the related cost
of sales were reversed, we were unable to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence we consider as necessary as
to determine whether the work in progress vessels were
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Further,
the Group had not recognised any additional penalty to
be incurred due to the late delivery as the management of
the Group believes that these amounts cannot be reliably
measured taking into account the fact that the management
of the Group is still in negotiation with the Vessel Customer.

There were no other alternative audit procedures that we
could carry out to determine whether the related revenue
and cost of sales should be reversed during the year ended
31 December 2018 and the contract assets of approximately
HK$69,576,000 as at 31 December 2018 were fairly stated.

Any adjustment to revenue, cost of sales, contract assets
and additional provision for Interests and foreseeable loss
found to be necessary would affect the Group’s net current
liabilities and net liabilities as at 31 December 2018 and the
Group’s loss for the year then ended and related disclosures
to the consolidated financial statements.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION BMEXRREREE(H)

(CONTINUED)
7O AR A A R 2 3R R ME 2 SRR

(c) Limitation of scope of net realisable values of (c)

four vessels

As disclosed in Note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements, according to the arbitral awards dated 27
December 2018 (“Arbitral Awards”) issued by the London
Maritime Arbitrators Association (“Arbitrators Association”),
the Arbitration Association has made awards in favour of
the customer under the relevant shipbuilding contracts
in relation to the four vessels (“Shipbuilding Contracts”),
the Shipbuilding Contracts had been rescinded and
the accumulated revenue recognised and cost of sales
incurred in relation to the Four Vessels of approximately
HK$656,214,000 and HK$1,012,678,000 had been
reversed during the year ended 31 December 2018. The
cost incurred previously in relation to the Four Vessels had
been recognised as inventories of the Group of approximately
HK$213,519,000, net of written down of inventories of
approximately HK$799,159,000 as at 31 December 2018.

However, during the course of our audit, we have not been
able to obtain sufficient information and explanation from
the management of the Group that we consider necessary
in order to enable us to satisfy ourselves as to whether
the inventories at 31 December 2018 was fairly stated.
There were no other alternative audit procedures that we
could carry out to determine whether the written down
of inventories of approximately HK$799,159,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2018 was fairly stated and the
inventories of approximately HK$213,519,000 was stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value as at 31 December
2018. There were no other satisfactory audit procedures that
we could adopt to obtain appropriate audit evidence in this
regard.

Any adjustment to inventories found to be necessary would
affect the Group’s net current liabilities and net liabilities as
at 31 December 2018, and the Group’s loss for the year then
ended and related disclosures to the consolidated financial
statements.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
(CONTINUED)

(d) Limitation of scope on interests in associates

As stated in Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group has equity accounted for its interests in associates.
As at 31 December 2018, the aggregated carrying
amounts of the interests in associates was approximately
HK$201,094,000, and the Group’s share of loss of the
associates for the year ended 31 December 2018 was
approximately HK$35,092,000. In additions, there was
a receivable of approximately HK$10,365,000 due from
associates and amount due to associates of approximately
HK$16,920,000 as at 31 December 2018. However,
during the course of our audit, we have not been able to
obtain sufficient information and explanations from the
management of the associates that we considered necessary
in order to enable us to satisfy ourselves as to whether the
Group’s share of associates’ result for the year and thus the
carrying amount of the interests in the associates and the
receivable due from and payable to the associates included
in the Group's consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2018 are fairly stated and whether
the summarised financial information of the associates as
shown in the consolidated financial statements are properly
disclosed. There were no other satisfactory audit procedures
that we could adopt to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence in this regard.

Any adjustment to the amount of the above interests in
associates found to be necessary would affect the Group's
net liabilities as at 31 December 2018 and the Group’s
loss for the year then ended and related disclosures to the
consolidated financial statements.

CHINA OCEAN INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

BERTIEREE (F)

(d)

B & 1 5] #E 2 2 86 B PR

WGE M BREMA22MER: BS
E i H RS A RS AR AR R
T N\F+ZA=1+—8 RELE QRN
=R EARE X A£201,004,0008 7T T &
EEELHEARNBE_SE—\F+=A
=+—HI-FEEELA35,092,000/ T ©
N R=ZFE—N\F+=—_A=+—HHEE
Uk B 2 X B FXTE £910,365,000% 7T & FE £~
Bt 4%\ B) 7K I8 4916,920,00058 7T ° 2R 10 » 72
FZBREF  BMRGERBEARMNER
EESEMRBARANBEZRREN KRE
NEEHA BEEER-_ZT—-N\F+=A
—t+—HZEAEVBRRBERNY BE5E
FEIGEt S N R FEEBE T EME QAR
7o B T B DA % B A I B {1 Bt % 12 R RO 3R IB
RERARANE RERA M ERE AT A5
BRRUBERBMERTEZERE St
mE RAEERREMBEENEZERF
LESTD RIEENEZEE-

Y ERRB SR AN RSB LE
AE HEYE BEERA-T-N\F{o
A=+—-BMAKIER RERRE
A 1H 6 [ 0SB A R AR A BT IS SRR 1040
5 -



Independent Auditor’s Report

BB EhER S
BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION BERTEREE (F)
(CONTINUED)
(e) Limitation of scope on impairment on (e) E"%FE& SEEFEK DI
goodwill and intangible assets of intelligent REFEERE ZEERS

car parking and automotive device business
segment

As disclosed in Notes 20, 21 and 40 to the consolidated
financial statements, the goodwill and intangible assets
arising from intelligent car parking and automotive device
business segment were approximately HK$103,156,000 and
HK$100,506,000 respectively as at 31 December 2018.
The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) carried out
a full scope assessment of the recoverable amount of the
cash generating unit (“CGU") of intelligent car parking and
automotive device business segment to which goodwill and
intangible assets have been allocated. As a result of the
impairment assessments, the Directors considered that
impairment loss of HK$22,000,000 and HK$10,000,000,
respectively on the goodwill and intangible assets arising
from intelligent car parking and automotive device business
segment were provided for the year ended 31 December
2018. The impairment assessments on the recoverable
amount for the CGU performed by the Group were based on
value in-use calculations. The key assumptions for the value-
in-use calculations are those regarding the discount rates,
growth rate and the projected sales volume, selling prices
and direct costs used in the cash flow forecasts. However,
the management of the Company could not provide sufficient
audit evidence to verify the reasonableness of the above
assumptions used in the cash flow forecasts.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
(CONTINUED)

(e) Limitation of scope on impairment on
goodwill and intangible assets of intelligent
car parking and automotive device business
segment (Continued)

We are unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
we consider necessary as to the basis upon which the
Directors have formed in determining the recoverable
amounts of CGU of intelligent car parking and automotive
device business segment to which goodwill and intangible
assets have been allocated and thus to assess the valuation
of these assets. There were no alternative audit procedures
that we could perform to satisfy ourselves whether the
impairment loss recognised for the year ended 31 December
2018 was fairly stated. Any adjustment to the carrying
amounts of goodwill and intangible assets arising from
intelligent car parking and automotive device business
segment found to be necessary would affect the Group’s
net liabilities as at 31 December 2018, the Group’s loss
for the year then ended and the related disclosures to the
consolidated financial statements.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
(CONTINUED)

(f)

Limitation of scope on impairment on
goodwill and intangible assets of steel
structure engineering and installation
business segment

As disclosed in Notes 20, 21 and 40 to the consolidated
financial statements, the goodwill and intangible assets
arising from steel structure engineering and installation
business segment were approximately HK$Nil and
HK$16,360,000 respectively as at 31 December 2018.
The Directors carried out a full scope assessment of the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit (“CGU")
of steel structure engineering and installation business
segment to which goodwill and intangible assets have been
allocated. As a result of the impairment assessments, the
Directors considered that impairment loss of HK$47,740,000
and HK$16,000,000, respectively on the goodwill and
intangible assets arising from steel structure engineering
and installation business segment were provided for the year
ended 31 December 2018. The impairment assessments
on the recoverable amount for the CGU performed by the
Group were based on value-in-use calculations. The key
assumptions for the value-in-use calculations are those
regarding the discount rates, growth rate and the projected
sales volume, selling prices and direct costs used in the cash
flow forecasts. However, the management of the Company
could not provide sufficient audit evidence to verify the
reasonableness of the above assumptions used in the cash
flow forecasts.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
(CONTINUED)

(f)

Limitation of scope on impairment on
goodwill and intangible assets of steel
structure engineering and installation
business segment (Continued)

We are unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence we consider necessary as to the basis upon
which the Directors have formed in determining the
recoverable amounts of CGU of steel structure engineering
and installation business segment to which goodwill and
intangible assets have been allocated and thus to assess
the valuation of these assets. There were no alternative
audit procedures that we could perform to satisfy ourselves
whether the impairment loss recognised for the year ended
31 December 2018 was fairly stated. Any adjustment to the
carrying amounts of goodwill and intangible assets arising
from steel structure engineering and installation business
segment found to be necessary would affect the Group’s
net liabilities as at 31 December 2018, the Group’s loss
for the year then ended and the related disclosures to the
consolidated financial statements.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
(CONTINUED)

BERTIEREE (FE)

(8) W% BERKERANEHENRER

(g) Limitation of scope on impairment

assessment on property, plant and equipment
and prepaid lease payments

As disclosed in Notes 17 and 19 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group’s property, plant and equipment and
prepaid lease payments as at 31 December 2018 amounted
to approximately HK$442,726,000 and HK$358,964,000,
respectively. An impairment assessment was carried
out by the Directors on the Group’s property, plant and
equipment and prepaid lease payments. As a result of the
assessment, the Directors considered that no impairment
on the Group’s property, plant and equipment and prepaid
lease payments is required for the year ended 31 December
2018, as their recoverable amounts, were determined by the
Directors based on the value-in-use calculations, exceeded
their carrying values as at 31 December 2018. The key
assumptions for the value-in-use calculations are those
regarding the discount rates, growth rate and the projected
sales volume, selling prices and direct costs used in the cash
flow forecasts. However, the management of the Company
could not provide sufficient audit evidence to verify the
reasonableness of the above assumptions used in the cash
flow forecasts.

We are unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
we consider necessary as to the basis upon which the
Directors have formed in determining the recoverable
amounts of these property, plant and equipment and prepaid
lease payments and thus to assess the valuation of these
assets. There were no alternative audit procedures that we
could perform to satisfy ourselves whether any impairment
loss should be provided for the year ended 31 December
2018. Any adjustment to the carrying amounts of property,
plant and equipment and prepaid lease payments of the
Group found to be necessary would affect the Group’s
net liabilities as at 31 December 2018, the Group’s loss
for the year then ended and the related disclosures to the
consolidated financial statements.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
(CONTINUED)

(h) Limitation of scope on adoption of Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standard 9 Financial
Instruments (“HKFRS 9”)

As at 1 January 2018, the Group applied HKFRS 9 and
assessed the impact on the classification and measurement
of financial assets and liabilities and expected credit loss
(“ECL") for financial assets in accordance with HKFRS
9. The difference between the carrying amount as at 31
December 2017 and the carrying amount as at 1 January
2018 are recognised in the opening accumulated losses
and other components of equity. After the assessment
of the implication of the adoption of HKFRS 9 on all the
financial instruments, the Directors considered that there is
no significant impact on the classification and measurement
of the financial instruments. However, the Directors were
unable to provide us with satisfactory explanation about the
assessments, calculations, and adjustments made in respect
of the ECL upon the adoption of HKFRS 9 as at 1 January
2018 and 31 December 2018.

As a result of the circumstance described above, we are
unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to
determine whether opening balances of accumulated losses,
financial assets and liabilities (including but not limited to
the trade and bills receivables, other receivables, amount
due from an associate, finance lease receivable, trade and
other payables, contingent consideration payable, financial
guarantee contracts and provision for warranty) are properly
classified or adjusted in accordance with HKFRS 9 as at 1
January 2018 and the provision for credit loss allowance are
properly provided on financial assets as 31 December 2018
are free from material misstatements.

Any adjustments that might have been found to be necessary
in respect of the above matters have significant effect on
the Group’s accumulated losses as at 1 January 2018 and
31 December 2018, the Group’s net current liabilities and
net liabilities as at 31 December 2018, the Group’s loss
for the year then ended and the related disclosures to the
consolidated financial statements.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
(CONTINUED)

(i)

Limitation of scope on Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standard 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers and the related
Amendments (“HKFRS 15")

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively with the
cumulative effect of initially applying this standard recognised
at the date of initial application, 1 January 2018. Any
difference at the date of the initial application is recognised
in the opening accumulated losses. After the assessment of
the implication, the management of the Company considered
that there is no impact on the adoption of HKFRS 15.
However, the management of the Company were unable to
provide us with satisfactory explanation about whether the
accumulated losses and the related contract liabilities are
properly adjusted and recalculated in accordance to the
adoption of HKFRS 15. In additions, the management of the
Company recognised the provision of warranty and failed
to allocate the transaction price to separate performance
obligation in accordance with the approach stated in HKFRS
15.

As a result of the circumstance described above, we are
unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to
determine whether opening accumulated losses and contract
liabilities are properly classified or adjusted in accordance to
HKFRS 15 as at 1 January 2018, and the recognition and
classification of the revenue and the contract liabilities arose
from the contracts with customers are properly recognised
and classified for the year ended 31 December 2018 are free
from material misstatements.

Any adjustments that might have been found to be necessary
in respect of the above matters have a significant effect on
the Group’s accumulated losses as at 1 January 2018 and
31 December 2018, the Group’s net current liabilities and
net liabilities as at 31 December 2018, the Group’s loss
for the year then ended and the related disclosures to the
consolidated financial statements.

Independent Auditor’s Report

BN S

BERTIEREE (FE)

(i)

BERMBRELEUFISHRAT
F&#nhzs Rk ameEs ([&%
MBHRELAFLSH ) 2 HER
%l

ERECEPEATEMHHREELERELS
5 WA R AU ERNRARZERER
EREH-_F-N\F-A—BHER-BX
FER B M ERZ BN F R B ET '
RoLHEREKR BERRAEEERS
RABEV B HREEN BRI BT E -
A BERFREEESEERRTEER
HEAHNEERGCRERAMBREE
AIF 1M RAZ BABREHRAERR
PR AIEREE- 1IN BERREEED
HARERE ERERBEEEMBRSE
BRI BISHAATER R HESEEES
BHEME-

EREABR RFRERFITEDEE K
ERRBENEEFRIBREMANAR
REER-_ZE-N\E-A-BAREFEH
BHRELREBISHRZ /DAL AR
BE_T—\F+A=+—HILFEX
REIRDBEZREEPAONEREEE
FENEENANARNERIMDERSE
T EERHERRAL

Bh LA EIR T F A] BEAR AR R 0 B YA
HELgYH EEE_ZT-)\F-A—H8
RZZ2-N\F+RA=1+T—HNRFE
B BEBER-_Z-—N\F+=-A=+—
BORBRBFRAIAGESER S5E
BEZHLEFENBBEARGS M BEHREK
MRERBEAERTE -

=

PEETEEHRRAT F3F 2018

77



78

Independent Auditor’s Report
BB ENHR S

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
(CONTINUED)

()]

Material fundamental uncertainties relating to
going concern

As described in Note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group reported loss attributable to the
owners of the Company of approximately HK$1,545,435,000
and had significant net cash used in operating activities for
the year ended 31 December 2018. As of that date, the
Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
approximately HK$3,376,522,000 and the Group had net
liabilities of approximately HK$2,178,756,000, in which total
borrowings amounted to approximately HK$3,385,253,000,
while its bank balances and cash amounted to approximately
HK$10,005,000 only.

In additions, the Group defaulted on the repayment of certain
borrowings and payables on their respective due dates
during the year ended 31 December 2018. Those creditors
including banks had taken legal actions against the Group to
recover the debts as disclosed in Note 44 to the consolidated
financial statements.

These conditions indicate the existence of material
uncertainties which may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern and therefore
it may be unable to realise its assets and discharge its
liabilities in the normal course of business.

As explained in Note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, the consolidated financial statements have
been prepared by the Directors on a going concern basis,
the validity of which is dependent on the Group’s ability to
obtain sufficient future funding. Due to the uncertainty of
the Group’s ability to maintain adequate future cash flows,
we were unable to ascertain whether the assumptions made
by the Directors in preparing the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis are proper and
appropriate.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
(CONTINUED)

(j) Material fundamental uncertainties relating to
going concern (Continued)

Should the going concern assumption be inappropriate,
adjustments would be necessary to reclassify all non-
current assets and liabilities as current assets and liabilities
respectively, write-down the value of assets to their
recoverable amounts and to provide for further liabilities
which may arise. The consolidated financial statements
have not incorporated any of these adjustments. However,
the uncertainties surrounding the Group’s future cash
flows raises significant doubt about the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. We consider that appropriate
disclosures have been made in the consolidated financial
statements concerning this situation, but we are unable to
obtain adequate evidence concerning the Group’s ability to
meet any financial obligations as and when they fall due and
we consider that this material uncertainty relating to going
concern basis.

We consider the cumulative effect of the above matters on the
consolidated financial statements is so extreme that we have
disclaimed our opinion.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA") and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Section 90
of the Bermuda Companies Act and Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the HKICPA and to issue an auditor's report.
This report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
the terms of our engagement and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. However, because of the
matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section
of our report, we were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these
consolidated financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code.

Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)
Chan Chi Kei Ronald

Practising Certificate Number: P04255

Suites 313-316, 3/F., Shui On Centre
6-8 Harbour Road

Wan Chai

Hong Kong

29 March 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
IreESREMEERNETR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FHET
Revenue U %5 8 (468,032) 349,238
Cost of sales SH B A AR 110,573 (671,626)
Gross loss EE (357,459) (322,388)
Other income H kA 9(a) 9,901 26,820
Other gains and losses H bl 25 & B8 9(b) (3,812) 10,803
Change in fair value of contingent ERSRAREZ
consideration payable NEBEE 38 - (5,081)
Gain on settlement of contingent BEERMNIAREZ
consideration payable e 38 - 39,704
Change in fair value of investments RIEEBREZ
held for trading NEEE (22) (143)
Change in fair value of convertible FER AT ]mRES 2
bonds payables RNEBEES) 35 - (6,247)
Change in fair value of investment properties & &% 2 A FEEF) 18 - 1,730
Gain on early redemption of convertible 12 A HE [ FE 1<
bonds payables AR ES 2 KE 35 = 5,003
Gain on redemption of convertible bonds ZI| HAHE 3] fE 1<
payables upon maturity AR ES 2 KE 35 = 13,872
Selling and distribution expenses HE R D HMAX (7,433) (7,397)
Administrative expenses THRHX (220,616) (150,829)
Impairment losses BB EE 10 (215,740) (57,696)
Finance costs Bl & AR AR 11 (271,841) (173,491)
Share of (loss) profit of associates DB E AR (BE) &M 22 (35,092) 1,692
Share of loss of joint ventures DMhEEREER 23 (472,152) -
Loss before tax BRE AT BT 1B (1,574,266) (623,648)
Income tax credit Frisfiik e 12 27,556 2,696
Loss for the year REEFEE 13 (1,546,710) (620,952)
Other comprehensive income (expenses):  HZ2mEWK A (BIX) :
ltems that may be reclassified HETHEEHIEZ
subsequently to profit or loss: B&RZER:
Exchange differences arising on translation of #E GINEFEEEL 2
foreign operations ME N ZE78 58,114 (71,336)
Change in fair value of available-for-sale AHEEREZ
investment N EEE 29 = 9,240
Share of translation reserve of associates DS Qe 2 RE G (13,733) 3,110
Share of translation reserve of joint ventures 2 {E & &2 7 1 E (E# (8,297) 16,398
Other comprehensive income (expenses) FAREMAZEBA (FAX)
for the year, net of income tax Bk TSR 36,084 (42,588)
Total comprehensive expenses for the year FRZHFI XA (1,510,626) (663,540)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

ReiEBREMEENER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 FHET FHET
Loss for the year attributable to: FEAEFEREIE
— Owners of the Company . VNCIET DN (1,545,435) (611,790)
— Non-controlling interests — IR R (1,275) (9,162)
(1,546,710) (620,952)
Total comprehensive expenses attributable to: FE{5 & M 5957 44 %8 :
— Owners of the Company —ARRNREEA (1,509,693) (653,902)
— Non-controlling interests —FEIEAR RS (933) (9,638)
(1,510,626) (663,540)
Loss per share BREE
— Basic and diluted —ER R EE 16 (HK$0.113# T) | (HK$0.05% L)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
RS BIRNREREK

At 31 December 2018 R —ZE— NF+-_F=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M B RS 17 442,726 562,258
Investment properties "EME 18 21,914 25,104
Prepaid lease payments — non-current portion a8 € ZIE - 3ER BB 19 349,822 362,093
Goodwill HE 20 103,156 182,145
Intangible assets EREE 21 116,872 183,410
Interests in associates RN - ey 22 201,094 249919
Interests in joint ventures REELEZHER 23 5,531 485,980
Trade receivables Z 5 EBGIE - IER B B0
— non-current portion 25 - 1,391
Equity instruments at fair value through BAFEFAEM 2 E WS
other comprehensive income 2T A 29a 23,598 =
Available-for-sale investment AHEERE 29b - 24,840
Amount due from an associate JE U — R Bt & R B 5R08
— non-current portion —IEmEN D 22 5,805 6,110
Deferred tax asset RIERIBEE 36 459 130
1,270,977 2,083,380
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 24 327,173 134,988
Trade and bills receivables B o RBFHIEREREE 25 182,272 212,226
Contract assets BHREE 3la 90,328 =
Other receivables H b W sk 18 25 748,467 709,003
Prepayment TE T FRIE 25 191,751 271,458
Tax recoverable A [B] Y 7 18 6,007 5,725
Amount due from an associate JE g — Rl Bt & R R SR8 22 4,560 4,800
Prepaid lease payments FENHEERIE 19 9,142 9,243
Investments held for trading BEEEZIRE 26 32 54
Finance lease receivables JEUR B & T E A 27 3,695 9,353
Pledged bank deposits and restricted cash 2 IR ITE R K&
SR #IRE 28 2,265 248
Bank balances and cash RITHEHR AR 28 10,005 15,276
1,575,697 1,372,374
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 M E MR8 30 1,357,228 815,509
Amounts due to customers for contract work JEfT R E & 4 T2k 1E 31b - 336,169
Amounts due to related parties FE 1T B A A T 5/I8 46 721 811
Amounts due to directors BN EERIA 46 21,925 10,034
Borrowings BE 32 3,385,253 1,932,324
Contingent consideration payable FERT S ARE 38 - 170,552
Amounts due to associates XN /NCIE Q| 22 16,920 15,159
Provision for warranty IRFE R 33 2,034 4,171
Provision for financial guarantee SRR 45 = 217,843
Convertible bonds payables FER AT TR ES 35 168,138 _
Tax liabilities HIBAR - 6,183
4,952,219 3,508,755
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e B NI

At 31 December 2018 R —ZE— N\F+-_HF=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
e FET FHET
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAEFEE (3,376,522) (2,136,381)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HREERRBEE
LIABILITIES (2,105,545) (53,001)
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXRHE
Share capital fi& 7 34 681,842 681,842
Reserves & (3,120,036) (1,629,046)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ZN2A @A A B HE 2 (2,438,194) (947,204)
Non-controlling interests eI E S 37 259,438 51,074
TOTAL DEFICITS #8185 4b (2,178,756) (896,130)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FkRBAE
Other payables — non-current portion Hith e IBE—3EmEEH 30 5,070 5,337
Borrowings — non-current portion BE-FERBEH 32 - 581,856
Convertible bonds payables RS ES
— non-current portion —3ERENEB1D 35 = 148,965
Deferred tax liabilities BELEMIBAEE 36 68,141 106,971
73,211 843,129
(2,105,545) (53,001)

The consolidated financial statements on pages 81 to 327 were BEEEORT-NF=ZAZTNRRBRERE
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 FIEHNESIER/TE KAV BEHRE WAHT

March 2019 and are signed on its behalf by: VEEREREBRE:
LI Ming ZHANG Shi Hong
Z 8 [N
Director Director
EF EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

REERmBER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

Atributable to owners of the Company

ARAREAER
Share  Convertible ~ Investment Non-
Share Share  Confributed ~ Statutory Other ~ Translation option bonds  revaluation Accumulated controlling
capital  premium surplus reserve reserve Teserve Teserve reserve Teserve losses Total interests Total
‘ mER  REEfR
Ex  BROER HARR  EEBE  AbRE AERE BERERR B5ER R ZEE @it bR Eh
HKS000  HKS000  HKFOOO  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKFO0O0  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000
Tér TExr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TRn  TEr TR  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEn
(Noiea)  (Note b)
(Hia) (Wi
At 1 January 2017 RZZ-t5-A-H 600,138 1641990 3368411 42,363 13244 183,644 129910 11343 - (6,635507) (644 .464) 39712 (604,752)
Loss for the year rEEER - - - - - - - - - (61,790 (B1L790) (G620  (620952)
Other comprehensive (expenses) income: K482 (F1%0) ik
tems that may be reclassified ERIRENAEZ AR EE:
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences rising on BEBNERREE ERER
translation of foreign operations - - - S S (70,860) s S S - (70,860) (476)  (71,336)
Change in fair value of TRLEREIATESY
available-for-sale investment - - - - - - - - 9,240 - 9240 - 9,240
Share of translation reserve of associates ~ AEBERE 2 AERE - - - - - 3110 - - - S 3110 S 3110
Share of ranslation reserve of joint ventures HEA S0 £ 7 B E R - - - - - 16398 - - - - 16398 - 16398
Other comprehensive (expenses) REREMRE (FR)hE
income for the year, (MBHESR)
net of income tax - - - - - (51,352) - - 9240 - (@112 (A76)  (42,588)
Total comprehensive (expenses) KEE2E (AR
income for the year - - - = = (51,352) - - 9240 (611,790  (653902) (9638)  (663,540)
Redemption of equity component of BEAARES 2
convertible bonds upon maturity ) - - - - - - - (11,343) - 11,383 - - -
Recogniton of equity component of BRRTARES 2 BEH
issuance of convertiole bonds (Note 35) ~ (H2£35) - - - - - - - R - - R - R
Issuance of shares upon conversion of - NERTRRERELGRG
convertble bonds (Note 35) (Hit) 8179 2293 = = = = = = = -3 -3
Capital contribution from FERBRLE
a non-controlling shareholder - - - - - - - - - - - 21,000 21,000
Issuance of shares for settement of ERANERERIARE
contingent consideration payable 7355 204399 - - - - - - - - 294 - a9
Release of other reseve of associates RREBEARZ AMEE - - - - (56) - - - = % = = =
Release of other resenve of oint ventures ~ RAEREZ EFEE - - - - (5503) - - - - 5503 - - -
Transfer &z - - = 23l = = - = = 231) - - -
At 31 December 2017 RZE-tE+ZA=1-H 681842 1869321 3368411 259 7685 132292 129910 2121 9240 (7230626)  (947,204) 51,074 (8%6,130)
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

REERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company
EINCE N 1
Share  Convertible  Investment Non-
Share Share  Contributed  Statutory Other ~ Translation option bonds  revaluation Accumulated controlling
capital ~ premium surplus resene resenve reserve reserve resenve reserve losses Total interests Total
TR REEM
e RfEE A BH  EERE  HBREE  REEE BRERE E36R B RiER f FERER &t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tén FTEn TEx TER  TEr TEn TER TEr TEn TR TER  TEn  TEn
(Notea) ~ (Note b)
(Kda)  (Kzb)
At 1 January 2018 R=E-\§-A-B 681,842 1,869,321 3,368,411 42,594 7685 132292 129910 42,127 9,240 (7,230,626) (947,204) 51,074  (896,130)
Loss for the year TEEEE - - - - - - - - - (1,545,435) (1,545435)  (1,275) (1,546,710)
Other comprehensive income (expenses):
ltems that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on
translation of foreign operations - - - - - 51,172 - - - - 51,1712 342 58,114
Share of translation reserve of associates I 74 = = = = - (13733) - - - - (13733) - (13733)
Share of translation reserve of jont ventures HEAZLEZEERE - - - - - 8297 - - - - (829 - 8297
Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of income tax - - - - - 35,742 - - - - 35,742 342 36,084
Total comprehensive income (expenses)
for the year - - - - - 35742 - - - (1,545,435) (1,509,693) (933) (1,510,626)
Disposal of partial interest in a subsidiary
without losing of control (Note 50) - - - - 18,703 - - - - - 18,703 209,297 228,000
Lapse of share options (Note 42) - - - - - - (92:887) - - 92,887 - - -
At 31 December 2018 681,842 1,869,321 3,368,411 42594 26388 168034 37023 42127 9,240 (8,683,174) (2,438,194) 259,438 (2,178,756)
Notes: Fif 5 -
(a) There were a group reorganisation in 2001 and share consolidation in 2005 (a) R-FLE—FZEBRFARR-FTETAFR=TETN

(b)

and 2006, the aggregate amount of approximately HK$3,368,411,000 was
recorded in contributed surplus.

According to the relevant laws in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”),
the companies established in the PRC are required to transfer 10% of their net
profit after taxation, as determined under the relevant accounting principles
and financial regulations, to statutory reserve balance reaches 50% of their
registered capital. The transfer to this statutory reserve must be made before
the distribution of dividend to equity owners. Statutory reserve can be used to
offset previous years’ losses, if any, and is non-distributable other than upon
liquidation. The companies established in PRC are also required to maintain a
staff welfare and incentive bonus fund, while the amount and allocation basis
are decided by the enterprise.

CHINA OCEAN INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

(b)

F2ZRIEOF - #FE#I3,368,411,0008 T IR A B R
AfRo

WRIZFEARKFE ([ B ) IERAE R B
B R RIR AR IRAG BT & & SE B K BT £ R et E B
RACFII0%BIFEZEEFHE  BER LT HFEEFESD
HiTMAARAI50% BB E 20X E AL D RLE T
Bt A ABIEL X E /AR E—F R A E
B (E) BB TAEDIRZ - Rz
H) R FIINBMFFIE RS F R G/ EE - e AR AE
EHZERERE -




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

IReREMRER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHAIT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES e
Loss before tax Br T A & 18 (1,574,266) (623,648)
Adjustments for: LA
Share of loss (profit) of associates DMREEE R T 2 EE OaF)) 35,092 (1,692)
Share of loss of joint ventures DIEEEDECEE 472,152 =
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M- BEMEEITE 78,614 60,333
Change in fair value of investments BEEBEREC AT EEE)
held for trading 22 143
Change in fair value of contingent consideration &S AR(B 2 A F(E &
payables - 5,081
Change in fair value of investment properties "EYMEZ A FEES - (1,730)
Gain on settlement of contingent consideration BEENIARE 2 W=
payable - (39,704)
Loss on disposal of an associate HE—fBE N 2 BB - 1,215
(Gain) loss on disposal of investment property HEREYEL
(Wz) B8 (174) 224
Loss on disposal of investments held for trading ~ HEFEEERE 2 E18 - 149
Loss on disposal of property, HEWME BERREBES
plant and equipment 161 284
Change in fair value of convertible bonds FERAT]RES 2
payables NEBEES) - 6,247
Interest income FEHA (429) (877)
Finance costs B E AR 271,841 173,491
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TERAERIAREE 8,648 8,654
Amortisation of intangible assets B B 41,053 41,371
Impairment loss recognised on goodwill NEERRZREEE 69,740 40,771
Impairment loss recognised on intangible asset HEHEERRBRERIE 26,000 16,925
Gain on early redemption of IRAIMER RN AT IRRES
convertible bonds payables e - (5,003)
Gain on redemption of convertible bonds ZIHRME R R AT Rk E S 2
payables upon maturity W - (13,872)
Reversal of impairment loss recognised in BEgE S EKEIEER
respect of trade receivables WIEEE - (77)
Impairment loss recognised BEE b fE W GRIB MR
on other receivables REEE 120,000 ~
Written-down of inventories T & HWOR 799,159 -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

IREREMRER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

2018 2017
—E-—N\EF —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Operating cash flows before movements in RITEEESEBAI 2
working capital REBESRE 347,613 (331,715)
(Increase) decrease in inventories FE (g (982,905) 48,608
Decrease (increase) in trade and bills receivables & 5 & W R T8 % & Ik = 1%
A (38h0) 20,664 (263,511)
Decrease in deposits and other receivables e N H b e U SR IE R > 45,122 166,146
Decrease in prepayment T SRIER 66,134 189,503
Decrease in finance lease receivables JfE Ug & FE & R IE R 5,190 9,926
(Decrease) increase in amounts due to FET B B A T 5KI8
related parties (R4 ) & an (49) 352
Increase in amounts due to directors JETE = FIEE I 12,342 8,471
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 N E A e FRIAE AN 182,301 52,947
(Decrease) increase in provision for warranty REBERAE OB ) m (2,310) 641
Increase in amounts due to customers for FENBE A% TR FRIAL I
contract work - 317,599
Increase in contract assets G HIEEE N (409,689) -
Increase in amount due to an associate JE A5 — R Bt & R B SRIB IS 0 2,519 14,211
Cash (used in) from operations ke (frA)FEES (713,068) 213,178
Tax paid B #IE - (8,016)
Interest received =R 429 877
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM OPERATING REXK (MA)RBREFERH
ACTIVITIES (712,639) 206,039
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREEK
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME WE LR (30,009) (40,399)
Net cash outflow on capital injection/ TE BB ERRZ
acquisition of associates Be& R FaE - (53,682)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEME- - BEERREZ
equipment FriS 318 10,690 115
Proceeds from disposal of investment property HEREMERMBRE 1,667 1,421
Proceeds from disposal of investments LERIEEERE ZFFHRE
held for trading - 1,831
Net cash outflow on acquisition of subsidiaries WHENB AR 2 RE R FE - (91,085)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXKFARSTE (17,652) (181,799)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mEeIRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RE X
(Increase) decrease in pledged bank deposit and KRR TE R N RHIIR S
restricted cash (& Hn) w4 (2,030) 93,752
Settlement of convertible bonds payable upon BB E RN TR ES
maturity - (155,000)
Borrowings raised FIgEE 1,411,205 153,171
Repayment of borrowings EHEEE (434,839) (226,249)
Early redemption of convertible bonds payables & A1 ¥ [2] & 1~ AT #2 % & 55 - (62,980)
Interest paid BF B (232,252) (83,620)
Proceeds from issue of convertible bonds BT MR ER 2 N5 FE = 189,000
Capital injection from a non-controlling FEPERR AR R A —
shareholder into a subsidiary WEBAELEE - 21,000
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) FINANCING BMEXEMEB (A BELSFE
ACTIVITIES 742,084 (70,926)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND RERBSEEWIEM
CASH EQUIVALENTS (R 28 11,793 (46,686)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—A—BzBEER
AT 1 JANUARY REEEY 15,276 101,785
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [EXREB)TE (17,064) (39,823)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Rt+tZA=+—HzHRERK
AT 31 DECEMBER REEEY
represented by bank balances and cash BIRITHE R RIR S 10,005 15,276
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

1.

GENERAL

China Ocean Industry Group Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Act of Bermuda. The
Company's shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Exchange”). The addresses of
the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the Corporate Information section
to the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 48 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Other than those subsidiaries established in Hong Kong
whose functional currencies are Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$"), the functional currency of the Company and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively known as the “Group”)
was Renminbi (“RMB”).
statements are presented in HK$ for the convenience of the

The consolidated financial

shareholders as the Company’s shares are listed in Hong
Kong.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

In the preparation of the consolidated financial statements,
the directors of the Company (the “Directors”) have
considered the liquidity of the Group in future.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group reported
a loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$1,545,435,000, and as at that date, the
Group recorded net current liabilities and net liabilities of
approximately HK$3,376,522,000 and HK$2,178,756,000,
respectively.

CHINA OCEAN INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

REMBHRREREE (F)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

To improve the Group’s operation and financial position, the

Directors have been implementing the following operating

and financing measures:

(a)

The Group actively reorganised the shipbuilding
business, introduced leading shipbuilding companies
to integrate the shipbuilding business, and revitalised
the shipbuilding assets. The business integration of
Jiangxi Jiangzhou Union Shipbuilding Co., Ltd (“Jiangxi
Shipbuilding”) and the cooperation with leading
shipbuilding enterprises had commenced in March
2018 and work such as seeking relevant government
approvals and the execution of cooperation agreements
are now being carried out in an orderly manner. At
the same time, the revitalisation of spare resources of
Jiangxi Shipbuilding such as wharfs and lands is also
under way and the storage and logistics business along
Yangtze River is expected to commence operation
in the future. In addition, we also expect to carry out
new activities related to logistics through business
diversification or merge and acquisition to contribute
stable long-term cash flows to the Group;

The Group will dispose of part of its assets and
investment to obtain funds so as to improve its financial
position;

2.

REERAKE 2 ZERYBIRRN EF—
EETUTSHEERBERE:

(a)

(b)

AEEBBEEMEBETER.
SESEEMOREEMEBETT
BE UTHEMEELETRE —F
—N\F=ZRHERK ETETMNEE
EMAREERR (DIAEMR] O
EBEAURELEERTEENGE
e e - HEABT BRI S 1EHE
RESZTIFLEER FETT TN
EHRHRMEER  tHEFERNER
TEBEET RERTINERDR
BB EFRENE R B2YR
RN EG DA BRBEBLERS
HEOANET REETREHRTE

BEm:

AEEBHERNEERKRE B
Ba NEEMBAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

2. 2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(c) Under the government’s instruction and with the
supports for real economy and private enterprises from
all levels of government, the Group is negotiating with
lending banks in relation to loan restructuring to extend
repayment date and reduce finance costs;

(d) The Group is in contact with a number of investors to
issue new shares or convertible bonds;

(e)  The Group is in negotiation with certain suppliers and
creditors to extend payment due date.

Also, the Directors are of the opinion that, taking into account
the measures as above, the Group will have sufficient
working capital to meet its financial obligations as they
fall due in the next twelve months from this consolidated
financial statements were authorised to issue. Accordingly,
the Directors believe that the consolidated financial
statements should be prepared on a going concern basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IR FEEMIRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE
APPLICATION OF NEW AND 3. EREEAMBHREERN(IH
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG B BHRERER ) 2 HET %
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS A & {& 5] 2=
(“HKFRSs”)
New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are RAEFEBIERZEBMBER
mandatorily effective for the current year RER 2 #F 5T E R RIEFT A
The Group has applied the following new and amendments REBERAEFEERNEAUTHEASAS
to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified SR AGEMHE ST IEREEL ZHET
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time in the R RAEFT A :
current year:
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments EEMBHREE SmIA
95
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with BEEUBHREEL KETPANNKER
Customers and the related F155% BB
Amendments
HK(IFRIC)-Interpretation Foreign Currency Transactions and 58 (BBRUBRE IERHRBEARE
(“Int") 22 Advance Consideration ERREZEY)
— 2 BE25%
Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement ERMBREED  ARDAER AR
of Share-based Payment B2RBETA RGZNERGE
Transactions
Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial BEMBMELEL KABBUBREER
Instruments with HKFRS 4 BARBR AR BAFRBE K
Insurance Contracts —HEREANE
W ERIER
Amendments to Hong Kong ~ As part of the Annual BB AR ERBE AU BREER
Accounting Standards Improvements to HKFRSs ([EHgxEl])) Z—ZE-—HFEZT
(“HKAS") 28 2014-2016 Cycle FE28HIEFT A —NFREBEREBGE
2~
Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of EEGTER BB A
Investment Property FAOFKIERT A
Except as described below, the application of the new BRI CErilioN - RANFE AT BN BHRE
and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had R Z Fa] ER RIS T AE AEEE /TR
no material impact on the Group's financial performance BAFEZPBHERERMKAR HREGRE
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on MR B BRI ERERKERNTE

the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

3.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time
in the current year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18
Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively with
the cumulative effect of initially applying this standard
recognised at the date of initial application, 1 January
2018. Any difference at the date of initial application is
recognised in the opening accumulated losses (or other
components of equity, as appropriate) and comparative
information has not been restated. Furthermore, in
accordance with the transition provisions in HKFRS
15, the Group has elected to apply the standard
retrospectively only to contracts that are not completed
at 1 January 2018.

The Group recognises revenue from the following major
sources which arise from contracts with customers:

o provision of shipbuilding services

° provision of trading of electronic appliance

° provision of direct finance leasing, sale and
leaseback, advisory services and provision of
factoring services

° manufacturing and sales of car parking
equipment, investment, operation and

management of car parks and electronic
automotive devices
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

ERAEEMBREEA (&
EMBHRERER ) 2 HETE
AIRERT A (&)

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 3.
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

3.1 ERMBRELZUFISHK
HEF&EHH Wz (&)

S TS A R S R
B AR RRYE R R

3.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

o manufacturing and selling of steel structures °
and fittings for ship, marine equipment, mining
equipment, ro-ro equipment

ERAEEROEBRERBTBUG
BELEAEISRELNGITRRNE
PR e M HmRKE -

Information about the Group’s performance obligations
and the accounting policies resulting from application
of HKFRS 15 are disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements.

BEXEREENHHEERFIS
BELHEEBE

ARER-F—\F—A—BEAH
TR B R 2 O R T8
2R AERBYENEE T TR

ERe

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 15

The following adjustments were made to the amounts
recognised in the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position as at 1 January 2018. Line items
that were not affected by the changes have not been
included.

HGZ BN BRI BEXR L ZE

Impact on the consolidated statement of financial

position
Carrying
amounts Carrying
previously amounts
reported at under
31 December HKFRS 15 at
2017 Remeasurement 1 January 2018
R-ZE-N\F
—A—H
R-B—tF BREEBE®
+=ZA=+-H BEER
KRIZHMN F1555 1
RASE BN E RESE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FHET TAET
Current Liabilities REAE
Amounts due to customers EREFPANIENE
for contract work (336,169) 336,169 =
Contract liabilities EHEE - (336,169) (336,169)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

3.

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

3.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 15 (Continued)

The following tables summarise the impacts of applying
HKFRS 15 on the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2018 for each
of the line items affected. Line items that were not
affected by the changes have not been included.

Impact on the consolidated statement of financial

ERAEEMBREER (&
BB REER ) 2 HETE
A RERT A (&)

3.1 BRMBHREERFISHEK
HEF&EHH Wz (&)

BEAXEREENBEHREEREIS
RELHZEHE (F)

TRBEERETAMGHRELRE
IREAEBRR - N\F+_H
=t HZEEUBHIRRABRERTE—
BXZERENTE - REXEHY

EMNEBEYTBREERN-

HZ BRI X ZE

position
Amounts without
application of
As reported Adjustments HKFRS 15
REREHE
BB EER
LU AR FISRNSHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT
Current Assets REBEE
Amounts due from customers EREPAEHIENE
for contract work - 90,328 90,328
Contract assets EHEE 90,328 (90,328) -

3.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the
related amendments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments and the related consequential
amendments to other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces
new requirements for 1) the classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities, 2) expected credit losses (“ECL”") for financial
assets and 3) general hedge accounting.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RIS RMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE
3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 3. EREABAUKEREEAN([F

EMBHRERER ) 2 HETE
AIRERT A (&)

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

3.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the 3.2 BB ELERFEI R H

related amendments (Continued)

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance
with the transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9,
i.e. applied the classification and measurement
requirements (including impairment under ECL model)
retrospectively to instruments that have not been
derecognised as at 1 January 2018 (date of initial
application) and has not applied the requirements to
instruments that have already been derecognised as
at 1 January 2018. The difference between carrying
amounts as at 31 December 2017 and the carrying
amounts as at 1 January 2018 are recognised in the
opening accumulated losses and other components of
equity, without restating comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may
not be comparable as comparative information was
prepared under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement.

Accounting policies resulting from application of
HKFRS 9 are disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements.

TAKMEEBIER (&)

REBORBEAVBRELEANFES
SRR TE AT AN BREEL
FOWRER —_ZT—NF—HF—H
(BNERFERBER) mARK LR T
HEPERYERAEHE (BIEE
MEEBEBEERNTHRE)  BiXR
BRZE—N\F—A—HEKRL®ER
WIEEAMABRAE R —+F
TZA=T—HNEREERE=_ZF—N
F—A—AMNERAEMNEERHY
ZEET R I HE % A H fth 48 K EB 1D B
R ERERTTEY -

it B BRER AR T AE ER
BEEBGTEREISEA T A  #F
AR ERENLEBERAA LI

ERERMBRELERNEIRELMN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 3.
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

3.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the
related amendments (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 9

The table below illustrates the classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
and other items subject to ECL under HKFRS 9 and
HKAS 39 at the date of initial application, 1 January

ERAEEMBREER (&
EMBREED ) 2T E

A RAEET A ()

3.2 ERMBREEREIRLH
TAERMEEET (&)
BRI B BRI T A R
ELHHEHE

TREINREFEVHHRE LT
SR EE SR ERIFIR B ATEY
FEFRZEREELRSRARALAE
EEREBERERBER(ZT—N\F

2018. —A—B)zoERE-
Equity
instruments
at Fair Value
Through Other
Comprehensive
Available-for-sale Income
investment (“FVTOCI")
BROATLEFA
HiZ2EKEZ
AREERE EHTH
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B sE FTHET FAT
Closing balance at 31 December 2017 R-_Z—+F+_-_A=+—HZ
- HKAS 39 R
—BAGFERE395 24,840 =
Effect arising from initial application of & X JE B BB I 5 & %R 505
HKFRS 9: EECHE:
Reclassification: BENAE:
From available-for-sale Bt E (a) (24,840) 24,840
Opening balance at 1 January 2018 ~ R =ZT—\F—A— B 257
iR - 24,840
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

3.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the
related amendments (Continued)

(a) Available-for-sale (“AFS”) investments

(b)

From AFS equity investments to FVTOC/

The Group elected to present in OCI for the
fair value changes of all its equity investments
previously classified as available-for-sale. These
investments are not held for trading and not
expected to be sold in the foreseeable future.
At the date of initial application of HKFRS 9,
HK$24,840,000 were reclassified from available-
for-sale investments to equity instruments at
FVTOCI, of which HK$24,840,000 related
to unquoted equity investments previously
measured at cost less impairment under HKAS
39. There was no impact on the amounts
recognised in relation to these assets from the
application of HKFRS 9.

Impairment under ECL model

The Group applies HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to measure ECL which uses a lifetime ECL for all
trade and bills receivables. To measure the ECL,
trade and bills receivables and finance lease
receivables have been grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics and the historical
observed default rates adjusted by forward
looking estimates. The Directors have assessed
the additional ECL allowance on trade and bills
receivables and finance lease receivables and
considered is insignificant based on internal
credit rating on individual assessment and
therefore it did not result in an adjustment of
opening accumulated losses.

ERAEEMBREEA (&
EMBHRERER ) 2 HETE
AIRERT A (&)

3.2 ERMBREENFIRLH

T ARMEEEIERT (&)
(a) FTHRHHEERE

(b)

B EEmRERIZLF
BFFAR M2 E K a
AEEEENHEMEZEKES
PEERI D ERAIHEE 2T
BERAEEZ A TEEE - 2F
BEWIHFEEERE - ATEH
TR REREE - REEE
B EERFOFEME R ERB
Hi - 24,840,000/ LA AT HH &
BEEHDERRAFETA
Htt 2 AR 2 BRAT A He
24,840,000/ 7T 81 & B & 51 %
A 53955 I8 T~ 1R 1+ 42 A A RLR
BFfE2 2 IEETIRAR AR -
JIE FA 25 75 B 75 s 25 ZE RI B 057 3
RZEEERRNSEIEY
%& o

RHEEERER T 16 E
AEEEAB BV HREER
FIRMB LA ERBAEE
BE AT AR EE S
FEMHIA R RN RBERFSE
HIEREEER - Rt EREE
BEE EHRIGAREERE
EhEKBREREFRENHK
R{EERB RSB EBEM
BROE (KR MEFHELR
B)MoH EZERHGEESE
WOk TR B FE M 2R 18 e R M R B
MEFRBEBRIAREEBHER
BARBESEFGEOAGTEE
AR RABIMNEHMEEBIRY
TEX A EREHHHIR
AHEEELHEE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

3.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the
related amendments (Continued)

(b) Impairment under ECL model (Continued)
Loss allowances for financial assets at amortised
cost other than trade and bills receivable and
finance lease receivables mainly comprise
of other receivables, amounts due from an
associate, pledged bank deposits and restricted
cash and bank balances, are measured on
12-month ECL (“12m ECL") basis as there had
been no significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. For pledged bank deposits
and bank balances, the Group transacts with
reputable banks with high credit rating assigned
by international credit-rating agencies and
consider the risk of default is low and 12m ECL is
insignificant. For other receivables and amounts
due from an associate, the Group considers
there has been no significantly increase in credit
risk since initial recognition and hence the loss
allowance is assessed on 12m ECL basis.

Based on the assessment by the management
of the Company, the ECL on financial assets
at amortised cost is insignificant and therefore
it did not result in an adjustment of opening
accumulated losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IR FEEMIRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE
3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 3. EREEAMBHREERN(IH

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG B BRHRERER ) 2 HET %

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AR A&ET 2 (#&)

(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

3.3 Impacts on opening consolidated 33 ERAFEHENERNE
statement of financial position arising NZEMBERRBRVEE
from the application of all new standards
As a result of the changes in the Group’s accounting ELA i A B s BOREE) -
policies above, the opening consolidated statement B A IR HRERE FEH - T
of financial position had to be restated. The following RINHEEZHERNE IR E ERY
table show the adjustments recognised for each of the AR -AXEEEHTZENHEERT
line items affected. Line items that were not affected by H e
the changes have not been included.

31 December 1 January
2017 2018
(Audited) HKFRS 15 HKFRS 9 (Restated)
s —E-N\F
TZR=+—R EEUBEE BEUERE —-A—-H
(RER) %R SE 155 ERIE9% (=E5)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAEL TAEL TEL THET
Non-Current Assets kRBEE
Available-for-sale investment 7] & 1} &% & 24,840 - (24,840) -
Equity instruments BRTEFARMZE
at FVTOCI W RATA - - 24,840 24,840
Current Liabilities REBEE
Amounts due to customers  ENEF &4 TIEZKE
for contract work (336,169) 336,169 = =
Contract liabilities anaR = (336,169) = (336,169)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 3. FAERAUBHERA (&
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG BB EER ) 2 HFT%E
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS Al R A&ET 2 (#&)

(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)
New and amendments to HKFRSs in issued CHEMEERERZEBMBER
but not yet effective HEB ZH T ER R IEFT A
The Group has not early applied the following new and AEEWERFERTIEB/MEMKE
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not M2 BAMBRELL 2 FETEB RIEF]
yet effective: PN
HKFRS 16 Leases! BEEMBHmELEL HEE
F165
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts? EEMBHEEN  REREL?
F17%
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax 575 (BB KHRE MEHER 2 T
Treatments! EAIZREZESR)
—REFE3R
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of Business? BRUBMERER  EBNER
FEIRIEFTAR
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Feature with negative EEMBREERN  AEEREZRIER
Compensation’ FRIEETA F2
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets EEMBHERER REEFEHEBEANFAS
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its FIORREBEH SECELANEE
Associate or Joint Venture® ERFEBRBEIA  WELFE®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material® EREHENEIFER EXNTEES
and HKAS 8 BB G ER FE85
EHEN
Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or HAESHER STENEET  Ham s a(E!
Settlement! ERlL AN
Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interest In Associates BAESETER REE R RAERE
and Joint Ventures! E28RIEFT AN MR BER
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements on HKFRSs BEMBREEN  BEMBERSEN-Z
2015-2017 Cycle! BEIA —hFEE_ZT—+F
BB B!
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. g B=F—NF—HA— A ZEHBZ FEHRE
2 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which 2 ?:fﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%%ié: E-FF—-F—HAxXZ#FE
the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual B EEFEEBREAGE B2 EERE G
period beginning on or after 1 January 2020. REEWHEER -
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020. S BW—FE—FTF—A—HA2EFRFEE
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021. = ;f%ﬁ: —F—H— Az #RRzFEEE
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be g ;ié%ﬁﬁi HEs 2 % Fts 2 FREBIR AR -
determined.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issued
but not yet effective (Continued)

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs and
interpretations mentioned below, the Directors anticipate that
the application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs
and interpretations will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by
a customer. In addition, HKFRS 16 requires sales and
leaseback transactions to be determined based on the
requirements of HKFRS 15 as to whether the transfer of the
relevant asset should be accounted as a sale. HKFRS 16
also includes requirements relating to subleases and lease
modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are
removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model
where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have
to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for short-
term leases and leases of low value assets.

ERAEEMBREEA (&
EMBHRERER ) 2 HETE
AIRERT A (&)

ERMEHRERZERYH
HER ZHETER KRBT A
(%)

BT XAt BB P S| E A 2 #a] %
AR BEITARREIN EFHAEAME
Hp BB mEER 2 HFIER RER]
ARREBEARELOREE NG HEAM
BHRRELEEATE -

BB BHEEEREI6HHE
BB RELNEIEABRIBRERH
REBAMEARANSEESA—EZ
EHHER - BB RS LR E165R
B ERARESSEAEI7TREER
AEnRE-

RV HERELERNFISERIBEFMBREE
EEHAEPEFSNRDBERRBEL -
o FEEF B REENFISRREER
HERZRIEFEMHRE L F1HRE
REREREESSRESHEARNR
EMEE - BEVBRELEIHETE
EEROMREEBRMBE -

ABASHRENATREHENREH
EmED BB - B2 fR 2 A&
ABAERZEEENEREEEMBRE
WRE EERAEEMEEEEHEERIN -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issued
but not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability.
The lease liability is initially measured at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date.
Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest and
lease payments, as well as the impact of lease modifications,
amongst others. For the classification of cash flows, the
Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease payments as
investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for owned
use and those classified as investment properties while other
operating lease payments are presented as operating cash
flows. Upon application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in
relation to lease liability will be allocated into a principal and
an interest portion which will be presented as financing cash
flows by the Group.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an
asset and a related finance lease liability for finance lease
arrangement and prepaid lease payments for leasehold lands
where the Group is a lessee. The application of HKFRS 16
may result in potential changes in classification of these
assets depending on whether the Group presents right-of-use
assets separately or within the same line item at which the
corresponding underlying assets would be presented if they
were owned.

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable
to lessor, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to
require a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease
or a finance lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issued
but not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS
16.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of approximately
HK$14,203,000 as disclosed in Note 54 to the consolidated
financial statements. A preliminary assessment indicates that
these arrangements will meet the definition of a lease. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-of-
use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these
leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental
deposits paid as rights and obligations under leases to which
HKAS 17 applies. Based on the definition of lease payments
under HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments relating
to the right to use the underlying assets, accordingly, the
carrying amounts of such deposits may be adjusted to
amortised cost. Adjustments to refundable rental deposits
paid would be considered as additional lease payments
and included in the carrying amount of right— of-use assets.
Adjustments to refundable rental deposits received would be
considered as advance lease payments.

The application of new requirements may result in changes
in measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated
above. The Group intends to elect the practical expedient
to apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously
identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int
4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease
and not apply this standard to contracts that were not
previously identified as containing a lease applying HKAS 17
and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4. Therefore, the Group will not reassess
whether the contracts are, or contain a lease which already
existed prior to the date of initial application. Furthermore,
the Group intends to elect the modified retrospective
approach for the application of HKFRS 16 as lessee and
will recognise the cumulative effect of initial application to
opening accumulated losses without restating comparative
information.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

4. 4., TEETTHEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Exchange (the “Listing Rule”) and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (the “CO”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for investment properties
and certain financial instruments that are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2 Shared-Based Payment, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17 Lease,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties which
are transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated
so that at initial recognition the results of the valuation
technique equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follow:

- Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

- Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

- Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities (including
structured entities) controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved where the Company:

- has power over the investee;

- is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

- has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s relevant components of equity and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiaries, including re-
attribution of relevant reserves between the Group and the
non-controlling interests according to the Group’s and the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if
any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary attributable to owners of the Company. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9/
HKAS 39 or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition
of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

- deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recoghised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

- liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below); and

= assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed as at the acquisition date. If, after
re-assessment, the net amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess
is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation
are initially measured at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured
at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of
the consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration
that qualify as measurement period adjustments are
adjusted retrospectively. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the “measurement period” (which cannot
exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration
that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a
liability is remeasured at fair value at subsequent reporting
dates, with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains controls), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income and measured under HKFRS 9/HKAS 39 would be
accounted for on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had disposed directly of the previously held equity
interest.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted retrospectively during the
measurement period (see above), and additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date that,
recognised at that date.

if known, would have affected the amounts
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business (see the accounting policy above) less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups
of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination, which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.

A cash-generating unit (or a group of cash-generating units)
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is an indication
that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an
acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit
(or a group of cash-generating units) to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that reporting period. If the recoverable amount is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the
other assets on a pro-rata based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit (or a group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any of
the cash-generating unit within the group of cash-generating
units, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
When the Group disposes of an operation within the cash-
generating unit (or a cash-generating unit within a group of
cash-generating units), the amount of goodwill disposed of is
measured on the basis of the relative values of the operation
(or the cash-generating unit) disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit (or the group of cash-generating
units) retained.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Goodwill (Continued)

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of
an associate and a joint venture is described below.

Interests in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The
financial statements of associates and joint ventures used
for equity accounting purpose are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity
method, an investment in an associate or a joint venture is
initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate or joint venture. Changes in net
assets of the associate/joint venture other than profit or
loss and other comprehensive income are not accounted
for unless such changes resulted in changes in ownership
interest held by the Group. When the Group’s share of
losses of an associate or joint ventures exceeds the Group’s
interest in that associate or joint venture (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate or joint venture), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Interests in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

An interest in an associate or joint ventures is accounted for
using the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On acquisition
of the investment in an associate or a joint venture, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess
of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in
the period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate or a joint venture may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Interests in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in the investee with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. When
the Group retains an interest in the former associate or joint
venture and the retained interest is a financial asset within
the scope of HKFRS 9/HKAS 39, the Group measures the
retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is
regarded as its fair value on initial recognition. The difference
between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture
and the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds
from disposing the relevant interest in the associate or joint
venture is included in the determination of the gain or loss
on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associate or
joint venture on the same basis as would be required if that
associate or joint venture had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate
or joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on
the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of
the relevant associate or joint venture.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement to
fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Interests in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate or a joint venture but the Group continues to use
the equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss
the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from
the transactions with the associate or joint venture are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associate or joint venture
that are not related to the Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in Note 3)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in Note 3) (Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

° the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is
assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in Note 3) (Continued)

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a contract
are accounted for an presented on a net basis.

Contracts with multiple performance
obligations (including allocation of transaction
price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations, the Group allocates the transaction price to each
performance obligation on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or service
underlying each performance obligation is determined at
contract inception. It represents the price at which the
Group would sell a promised good or service separately
to a customer. If a stand-alone selling price is not directly
observable, the Group estimates it using appropriate
techniques such that the transaction price ultimately
allocated to any performance obligation reflects the amount
of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring the promised goods or services to
the customer.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on input method, which is
to recognise revenue on the basis of the Group’s efforts
or inputs to the satisfaction of a performance obligation
relative to the total expected inputs to the satisfaction of
that performance obligation, that best depict the Group’s
performance in transferring control of goods or services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Refund liabilities

The Group recognises a refund liability if the Group expects
to refund some or all of the consideration received from
customers.

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts
the promised amount of consideration for the effects of
the time value of money if the timing of payments agreed
(either explicitly or implicitly) provides the customer or the
Group with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of
goods or services to the customer. In those circumstances,
the contract contains a significant financing component.
A significant financing component may exist regardless of
whether the promise of financing is explicitly stated in the
contract or implied by the payment terms agreed to by the
parties to the contract.

For contracts where the period between payment and
transfer of the associated goods or services is less than
one year, the Group applies the practical expedient of not
adjusting the transaction price for any significant financing
component.

For advance payments received from customers before the
transfer of the associated goods or services in which the
Group adjusts for the promised amount of consideration
for a significant financing component, the Group applies a
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction between the Group and the customer at contract
inception. The relevant interest expenses during the period
between the advance payments were received and the
transfer of the associated goods and services are accounted
for on the same basis as other borrowing costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Existence of significant financing component
(Continued)

For contracts where the Group transferred the associated
goods or services before payments from customers in which
the Group adjusts for the promised amount of consideration
for significant financing components, the Group applies a
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction between the Group and the customer at contract
inception. The Group recognises interest income during the
period between the payment from customers and the transfer
of the associated goods or services.

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January
2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities, as described
below.

Goods, services, interests and dividends

Revenue from a contract to provide services is recognised
by reference to the stage of completion of the contract. The
stage of completion of the contract is determined as follows:

- installation fees are recognised by reference to the
stage of completion of the installation, determined as
the proportion of the total time expected to install that
has elapsed at the end of the reporting period;

- servicing fees are recognised by reference to the
proportion of the total cost of providing the service for
the product sold; and

- revenue from time and material contracts is recognised
at the contractual rates as labour hours and direct
expenses are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January
2018) (Continued)

Goods, services, interests and dividends (Continued)
The Group’s policy for the recognition of revenue from
construction services is described in the accounting policy
for construction contract below.

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and title has passed.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
rights to receive payment have been established.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue
from operating lease is described in the accounting policy for
leasing below.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at the amount of the Group’s net
investment in the leases. Finance lease income allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of
return on the Group's net investment outstanding in respect
of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases
are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as
a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than construction in progress)
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at costs less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised accumulated impairment loss. Costs include
professional fees. Such properties are classified to the
appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended
use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write-off the cost of
assets other than construction in progress less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate

accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their
fair values. All of the Group’s property interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are classified and accounted for as investment
properties and are measured using the fair value model.
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest
which includes both leasehold land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element
separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of each element have been transferred to the Group, unless
it is clear that both elements are operating leases in which
case the entire property is accounted as an operating lease.
Specifically, the entire consideration (including any lump
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the leasehold
land and the building elements in proportion to the relative
fair values of the leasehold interests in the land element and
building element at initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leasehold land and building (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
When the payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
leasehold land and building elements, the entire property is
generally classified as if the leasehold land is under finance
lease.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the
time value of money is material).

Provisions for the expected cost of warranty obligations under
the relevant sale of goods legislation are recognised at the
date of sale of the relevant products, at the directors’ best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the Group’s
obligation.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government
grants whose primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets
are recognised as a deduction from the carrying amount of
the relevant asset in the consolidated statement of financial
position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and
rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivables as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

The benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate of
interest is treated as a government grant, measured as the
difference between proceeds received and the fair value of
the loan based on prevailing market interest rates.

Construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract for shipbuilding
can be estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised
by reference to the stage of completion of the contract
activity at the end of the reporting period, as determined
by reference to the standard hours incurred up to the end
of the reporting period as a percentage of total estimated
standard hours for each contract. Variations in contract work,
claims and incentive payments are included to the extent
that the amount can be measured reliably and its receipt is
considered probable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Construction contracts (Continued)

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the
extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be
recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as expenses in
the period in which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total
contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

When contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits
less recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus
is shown as amounts due from customers for contract work.
For contracts where progress billings exceed contract costs
incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised
losses, the surplus is shown as amounts due to customers
for contract work. Amounts received before the related work
is performed are included in the consolidated statement
of financial position, as a liability, as advances received.
Amounts billed for work performed but not yet paid by the
customer are included in the consolidated statement of
financial position under trade receivables.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instruments. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date/settlement date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured
in accordance with HKFRS 15 since 1 January 2018.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest/dividend income which are derived from the Group’s
ordinary course of business are presented as revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in Note 3)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

° the financial asst is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at the date of initial application/initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in OCI if that equity investment is neither
held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by
an acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3
Business Combinations applies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in Note 3) (Continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in Note 3) (Continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost and debt instruments/receivables
subsequently measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired
(see below). For financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of
the financial asset from the next reporting period. If the credit
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so
that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the determination
that the asset is no longer credit impaired.

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOC/

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value recognised in OCl and
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve; and
are not subject to impairment assessment. The cumulative
gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on
disposal of the equity investments, and will be transferred to
accumulated loss.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly
represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in Note 3) (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included in the “change
in fair value of investments held for trading” line item.

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with Note 3)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assets which are subject to impairment under HKFRS
9 (including trade and bills receivables, contract assets,
finance lease receivables, other receivables, amounts due
from an associate, pledged bank deposits and restricted cash
and bank balances). The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as
the forecast of future conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with Note 3) (Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade and bills
receivables, contract assets and finance lease receivables.
The ECL on these assets are assessed individually for debtors
with significant balances and/or collectively using a provision
matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with Note 3) (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with Note 3) (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the
Group becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment
is considered to be the date of initial recognition for
the purposes of assessing the financial instrument for
impairment. In assessing whether there has been a
significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition
of financial guarantee contracts, the Group considers the
changes in the risk that the specified debtor will default on
the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally
or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay the Group in full (without taking into account
any collaterals held by the Group).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with Note 3) (Continued)
Definition of default (Continued)

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
of default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

° a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

° the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

° it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with Note 3) (Continued)
Weritten-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for
example, when the counterparty has been placed under
liguidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings,
or in the case of trade receivables, when the amounts are
considered the recoverability is remote, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with Note 3) (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is required to
make payments only in the event of a default by the debtor
in accordance with the terms of the instrument that is
guaranteed. Accordingly, the expected losses is the present
value of the expected payments to reimburse the holder for
a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts that the Group
expects to receive from the holder, the debtor or any other
party.

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts for which the
effective interest rate cannot be determined, the Group
will apply a discount rate that reflects the current market
assessment of the time value of money and the risks that are
specific to the cash flows but only if, and to the extent that,
the risks are taken into account by adjusting the discount
rate instead of adjusting the cash shortfalls being discounted.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level may
not yet be available, the financial instruments are grouped on
the following basis:

° nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group’s trade
and other receivables, are each assessed as a separate
group. Loans to related parties are assessed for
expected credit losses on an individual basis);

° past-due status;

° nature, size and industry of debtors; and

° external credit ratings where available.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with Note 3) (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
the constituents of each group continue to share similar
credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

For financial guarantee contracts, the loss allowances are
recognised at the higher of the amount of the loss allowance
determined in accordance with HKFRS 9; and the amount
initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative
amount of income recognised over the guarantee period.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade and bills receivables,
contract assets, finance lease receivables, other receivables,
where the corresponding adjustment is recognised through a
loss allowance account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)
Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL"), available-for-sale (“AFS”) financial assets and
loans and receivables. The classification depends on the
nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined
at the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
asset is (i) held for trading, (ii) it is designated as at FVTPL
or (iii) contingent consideration that may be received by an
acquirer as part of a business combination.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

- it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

- on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

- it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading (or contingent consideration that may be received
by an acquirer as part of a business combination) may be
designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

° the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated
as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with
any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised
in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial assets and is included in the “change in fair value
of investments held for trading” line item in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
Fair value is determined in the manner described in Note
7(c) to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as loans
and receivables or financial assets at FVTPL. The Group
designated listed equity securities as AFS financial assets on
initial recognition.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are
classified as AFS financial assets are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period except for unquoted
equity investments whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured. Changes in the carrying amount of AFS debt
instruments relating to interest income calculated using
the effective interest method, and changes in foreign
exchange rates, if applicable, are recognised in profit or
loss. Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised in
profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends
is established. Other changes in the carrying amount of
AFS financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investment
revaluation reserve.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade and bills receivables, contract
assets, other receivables, finance lease receivables, amount
due from an associate, pledged bank deposits and restricted
cash and bank balances and cash) are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS
9on 1 January 2018)

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
considered to be objective evidence of the impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS
9on 1 January 2018) (Continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

- breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

- disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments, observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will
not be reversed in subsequent periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS
9on 1 January 2018) (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade, bills and other receivables and finance
lease receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade, bills and other receivables
and finance lease receivables is considered uncollectible,
it is written-off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written-off are credited to
profit or loss.

When on AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the
period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS
9on 1 January 2018) (Continued)

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment losses
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investment
revaluation reserve. In respect of AFS debt investments,
impairment losses are subsequently reversed through profit
or loss if an increase in the fair value of the investment
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expired, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and is recognised in
profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition to measure
at FVTOCI upon application of HKFRS 9, the cumulative gain
or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation
reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to
accumulated losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

On derecognition of an AFS financial asset, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve is reclassified to accumulated loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method or at
FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial liability is (i) it is designated as at FVTPL or (ii)
contingent consideration that may be paid by an acquirer as
part of a business combination to which HKFRS 3 applies.

A financial liability other than contingent consideration
that may be paid by an acquirer as part of a business
combination may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

- such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

(Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued)

- the financial liability forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

- it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKFRS 9/HKAS 39 permits
the entire combined contract to be designated as at
FVTPL.

Upon application of HKFRS 9, for financial liabilities that are
designated as at FVTPL, the amount of change in the fair
value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability is recognised in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects
of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in
profit or loss. For financial liabilities that contain embedded
derivatives, such as convertible bonds payables, the
changes in fair value of the embedded derivatives are
excluded in determining the amount to be presented in other
comprehensive income. Changes in fair value attributable to
a financial liability’s credit risk that are recognised in other
comprehensive income are not subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss; instead, they are transferred to retained profits
upon derecognition of the financial liability.

Prior to application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018,
financial liabilities designated at FVTPL are stated at fair
value, with any gains or losses arising on changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any interest paid on
the financial liabilities and is included in the “change in
fair value of convertible bonds payables” and “change in
fair value of contingent consideration payable” line item
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
borrowings, amounts due to related parties, amounts due to
associates and amounts due to directors are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds contain equity component

The component parts of convertible bonds are classified
separately as financial liability and equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
A conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of
a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments is an
equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component
(including any embedded non-equity derivatives features) is
estimated by measuring the fair value of similar liability that
does not have an associated equity component.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined
by deducting the amount of the liability component from
the fair value of the compound instrument as a whole. This
is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax
effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In addition, the
conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity
until the conversion option is exercised, in which case, the
balance recognised in equity will be transferred to share
premium. Where the conversion option remains unexercised
at the maturity date of the convertible bonds, the balance
recognised in equity will be transferred to accumulated loss.
No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion
or expiration of the conversion option.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Convertible bonds (Continued)

Convertible bonds contain equity component (Continued)
Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bonds are allocated to the liability and equity components
in proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds.
Transaction costs relating to the equity component are
charged directly to equity. Transaction costs relating to the
liability component are included in the carrying amount of
the liability portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible bonds using the effective interest method.

Convertible bonds contain debt and derivative components

A conversion option that will be settled other than by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments
is a conversion option derivative.

At the date of issue, both the debt component and derivative
components are recognised at fair value. In subsequent
periods, the debt component of the convertible bonds is
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
The derivative component is measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bonds are allocated to the debt and derivative components
in proportion to their relative fair values. Transaction costs
relating to the derivative components are charged to profit
or loss immediately. Transaction costs relating to the debt
component are included in the carrying amount of the debt
portion and amortised over the period of the convertible
bonds using the effective interest method.

4. TEEFEE (&)

CRTIA (&)
THEEREZXTA (&)

AR B ()
EEEmA T AT RKES (&)
HBETABREEFBEBZIRIRAZAE
FRBRBEAOEL AN EEERERERED o
HESHO BB IR IRAEERN Em
B-BBEHIEBIRIKNAFARR
Mo ZEREE XN AT REREFHRAR
BFRA RE S -

SHERERITET AR D 2 TR RIES
NEE &R T R H M REERIEE
BB ZARAEE TR RS
B RSRBEITET A

RETRH AESS MTETARSGR
EEB D 5 A B BR A ORI M SH A AN B B

FiETABS DEATENE ATES
DESEEL TR

pafy

HBEITARBRESFAEBE IR HMATIAZ
FEFNEBRIFEZLIISEZEAER
TTETARD HBUTAETATNBHE IR
ZRANER B NG -RBERIBEH
ZRHEATFABBEED ZREE ER
AR AR B 55 H R IR B R A ROA S o

PEETEEHRRAT F3F 2018

151



152

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Convertible bonds (Continued)

Convertible bonds designated by the Group as fair value
through profit or loss

Some of the convertible bonds issued by the Company
are designated as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss on initial recognition. At each reporting dates
subsequent to initial recognition, the entire convertible
bonds is measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payments when due in accordance with the terms of
a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts liabilities
are measured initially at their fair values. It is subsequently
measured at the higher of:

(i)  the amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9 (since 1 January 2018)/
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1
January 2018); and

(i) the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised over the guarantee
period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “loss before tax” as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised into profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange
rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Income and expenses items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the year, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve (attributable to non-controlling
interest as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes a financial assets), all
of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect
of that operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on
or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of
that foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“MPF”) and state-managed retirement benefit schemes are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the
benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is
regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are reported
at costs less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with
finite useful lives is recognised on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life
and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination (Continued)

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are
recognised in profit or loss when the assets is derecognised.

Impairment losses on tangible assets and
intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of tangible and intangible assets
are estimated individually, when it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an asset individually, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment losses on tangible assets and
intangible assets other than goodwill
(Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use
(if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset
is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into
consideration all non-market vesting conditions is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant non-
market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.
For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant,
the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to accumulated losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Share-based payment arrangements
(Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

Share options granted to consultants

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties
other than employees are measured at the fair value of the
services received, except where that fair value cannot be
estimated reliably, in which case they are measured at the
fair value of the equity instruments granted, measured at the
date the counterparty renders the service. The fair values of
the services received are recognised as expenses (unless the
services qualify for recognition as assets).

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.
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RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

(@) Critical judgement in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from
those involving estimations (see below), that the
Directors have made in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

(i) Going concern and liquidity

As explained in Note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements, the financial position and
financial performance of the Group indicates the
existence of a material uncertainty which may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. The assessment of
the going concern assumptions involves making
judgement by the Directors, at a particular point
of time, about the future outcome of events or
conditions which are inherently uncertain. The
Directors consider that the Group has ability
to continue as a going concern and the major
conditions that may cast significant doubt about
the going concern assumptions are set out in
Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(@) Critical judgement in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

(ii) Classification of Zhoushan China Ocean
Investment Fund (“Zhoushan Investment
Fund”) as joint ventures
Zhoushan Investment Fund is a limited liability
company incorporated in the PRC whose
legal form confers separation between the
parties to the joint arrangements and the
parties themselves. There are no contractual
arrangements or any other facts and
circumstances that indicate that the parties to
the joint arrangements have rights to the assets
and obligations for the liabilities of the joint
arrangements. Furthermore, under the joint
venture agreement, the significant investment of
Zhoushan Investment Fund requires the consent
and approval from all joint venturers. Accordingly,
Zhoushan Investment Fund is classified as a joint
venture of the Group. Details of the interests in
Zhoushan Investment Fund are disclosed in Note
23 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

5. EESRHE RS

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(@) Critical judgement in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

(iii) A subsidiary controlled by the Group
through contractual arrangement
Jiangxi Shipbuilding an indirect wholly-owned

subsidiary of the Company, entered into the

contractual arrangements with Jiujiang Jinhu

Equipment Manufacturing Company Limited

(“Jiujiang Jinhu”), which enable Jiangxi
Shipbuilding to:

exercise effective financial and operational
control over Jiujiang Jinhu;

irrevocably exercise equity holders’ voting
rights of Jiujiang Jinhu;

receive substantially all of the economic
returns generated by Jiujiang Jinhu by
way of business support, technical and
consulting services provided by Jiangxi
Shipbuilding; and

obtain an irrevocable and exclusive right
to purchase the entire equity interest in
Jivjiang Jinhu from the respective equity
holders.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(@) Critical judgement in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

(iii) A subsidiary controlled by the Group

through contractual arrangement
(Continued)
Even though the Group does not have any equity
interest in Jiujiang Jinhu, however through a
series of the contractual arrangements, the
Group has rights to the variable returns from
its involvement in Jiujiang Jinhu and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
over Jiujiang Jinhu, and is considered to control
Jiujiang Jinhu. Consequently, the Company
regards Jiujiang Jinhu as the indirectly wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company. The Group
has included the statement of financial position,
results and cash flows of Jiujiang Jinhu in the
consolidated financial statements.

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(i)

Construction contracts

The Group recognises contract revenue and
profit or loss on each shipbuilding contract
according to management’s estimation of
the outcome of the contract as well as the
percentage of completion of shipbuilding works.
Notwithstanding that the management reviews
and revises the estimates of both contract
revenue and costs for the shipbuilding contracts
according to the contract progress, the actual
outcome of the contract in terms of its total
revenue and costs may be higher or lower than
the estimates and this will affect the revenue and
profit or loss recognised. The Group also revisits
the estimate of contract profit or loss according
to the contract progress based on the information
available in the market. Foreseeable losses
are provided when identified. During the year
ended 31 December 2018, due to unforeseen
circumstances in certain shipbuilding contracts,
the Group recognised the foreseeable losses in
respect of certain shipbuilding contracts in cost
of sales as follows:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 5. EE2HE RS FEBAE
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION ZZ2ETERER(E)
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (b) AFFFPABAEZZEERIER
(Continued) (£&)
(i)  Construction contracts (Continued) (i) ZBEESH (&)
2018 2017
—E-NF ZE—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Additional costs for raw materials R4 R BRI AR = 3,571
Reduction of contract price THRELHER
(2017: included approximately (ZE—+tF: a1
HK$46,751,000 for fA P E A A AR A KBRS
four out of Six Vessels) #146,751,000 7T ) - 48,585
- 52,156
(ii)  Profit recognition for construction (i) BEBEESAER G F
contracts
The Group commences recognition of profit for REERMMTIA D LLER
each shipbuilding construction contract when 10% W B8 ] & B TE & #) 4
the percentage of completion exceeds 10% for REHEERASERBEEDN
that vessel, assuming that the outcome of the wA - RAREEERARILE
contract can be reasonably ascertained, as the g B EHNBE IS
management considers that after this stage, the CEp

total contract costs attributable to the contracts
can be measured reliably.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 5. EESHHERAST NHEE
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION EZ2ETERR(E)
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (b) HETHBAEEZEERIR
(Continued) (%)

(iii) Allowance for inventories (i) FE#EE

168

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is calculated using the
weighted average method. The Group reviews
its inventory levels in order to identify slow-
moving and obsolete items. When the Group
identifies items of inventories which have a net
realisable value lower than its carrying amount,
the Group estimates the amount of write-
down of inventories to net realisable value is
recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down occur. During the year ended 31
December 2018, write-down of approximately
HK$799,159,000 (2017: Nil) were considered
necessary by the management of the Group
and at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount
of inventories amounted to approximately
HK$327,173,000 (2017: HK$134,988,000).

If the net realisable value of inventories of the
Group become lower than its carrying amount
subsequently, an additional allowance may be
required.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

5. EESR B RS TEIE
EZEERR (H)

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (b) HEFTTFABMEZEZEERIR
(Continued) (%)

(iv) Estimated impairment of property, plant (iv) W¥ BERREZILZHE

and equipment

The carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment is reviewed and adjusted for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets whenever certain events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. The
value-in-use calculation requires the Group to
determine the recoverable amount of the assets
based on the estimations of future expected
cash flows from the usage of these assets
and a suitable discount rate. Where the future
cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. During the year
ended 31 December 2018, no impairment loss
was recognised by the Group (2017: Nil) in
respect of property, plant and equipment. Details
of the calculation on the recoverable amount for
property, plant and equipment are disclosed in
Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
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RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

5. EESF A RMETAABE
EZEERR (F)

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (b) HETHBAEEZEERIR
(Continued) (%)
(v) FEHEEMEZ G5 EE

(v) Estimated impairment of prepaid lease

170

payments

The carrying amount of prepaid lease payments
is reviewed and adjusted for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of
Assets whenever certain events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. The Group determined
the recoverable amounts of the assets based
on the comparison approach assuming sale
with the benefit of vacant possession and by
making reference to comparable sales evidences
as available in the relevant market. Where the
recoverable amount is less than the carrying
value, an impairment loss may arise. No
impairment loss was recognised by the Group
(2017: Nil) in respect of prepaid lease payments
for the year ended 31 December 2018. Details
of the calculation on the recoverable amount for
prepaid lease payments are disclosed in Note 19
to the consolidated financial statements.
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RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

5. EESR B RS TEIE
EZEERR (H)

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (b) HEFTTFABMEZEZEERIR
(Continued) (%)

(vi) Estimated impairment of trade and bills i) EBZEWFTEREWZ1E L

receivables and other receivables
Impairment loss on trade and bills receivables
and other receivables represent management’s
best estimate of losses incurred at the reporting
date under ECL models.

The measurement of the ECL involves
significant management judgements and
assumptions, primarily including the selection
of appropriate models and determination of
relevant key measurement parameters, criteria
for determining whether or not there was a
significant increase in credit risk or a default was
incurred, economic indicators for forward-looking
measurement, and the application of economic
scenarios and weightings, management
consideration due to significant uncertain factors
not covered in the models and the estimated
future cash flow.

KA b W 5B .2 15 a1 el 1E
EE ) RV ES I
HiEEIE L REREEER
HEHEEBHERABRTRR
TRMEENRERRMG -

EHEEBBEZFAESREXN
BEEEHERER TEREE
BEEMERXRETHMEER
AE2H EEEERRES
TR Nk R A IR E AR R
AR ET EMQLEREREARN
RARBRENEATEERR R
Mt RKBREREMHLES
SR EEEEREHEM

PEETEEHRRAT F3F 2018

171



172

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(vii) Provision for warranty

The Group provides the cost of warranties
granted on shipbuilding products and
undertakings to repair or replace items that do
not perform satisfactorily at the time revenues
for the related items are recognised. The
shipbuilding products are covered by warranty
for one year from the date of delivery. While
the Group has put in place product quality
programs and processes, warranty obligations
are affected by actual product failure rates and
by material usage and service delivery costs
incurred in correcting a product failure. The
warranty provision is established based upon
the best estimates at the amounts necessary
to settle future and existing claims on products
sold as at the end of the reporting period. While
management believes that the Group’s warranty
provisions are adequate and that the judgements
applied are appropriate, the ultimate cost of
product warranty could differ materially from the
estimates. When the actual cost of quality of the
products is lower than management originally
anticipated, the Group releases an appropriate
proportion of the provision, and if the cost of
quality is higher than anticipated, the Group
increases the provision.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

5. EESR B RS TEIE
EZEERR (H)

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (b) HEFTTFABMEZEZEERIR
(Continued) (%)

(viii) BEREEEEZ 1G5 HE

(viii) Estimated impairment of goodwill and

intangible assets

Determining whether goodwill and intangible
assets are impaired requires an estimation of
the value-in-use of the cash-generating units
to which goodwill and intangible assets have
been allocated. The value-in-use calculation
requires the Group to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value. Where
the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may
arise. During the year ended 31 December
2018, the Group has recognised an impairment
loss of approximately HK$69,740,000 (2017:
HK$40,771,000), approximately HK$26,000,000
(2017: HK$16,925,000) in respect of goodwill
and intangible assets, respectively. Details of the
value-in-use calculation are disclosed in Note 40
to the consolidated financial statements.
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RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

6. 6. EXEREE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The Group also monitors the current and expected
liquidity requirements regularly to ensure that sufficient
working capital and adequate committed lines of funding
are maintained to meet its liquidity requirements. Upon
the discovery of any default, the Group would negotiate
immediately with the relevant lenders for proper arrangement
in order to maintain sufficient working capital. Upon the
expectation of any cash insufficiency, the Company would
seek new source of funding so as to maintain sufficient
working capital.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts,
which include borrowings, convertible bonds payables, net of
cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners
of the Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves
and accumulated losses.

The Directors review the capital structure on an annual
basis. As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost
of capital and the risks associates with each class of capital.
Based on the recommendations of the Directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through new share
issues as well as issue of new debt or the redemption of
existing debt.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ImE B IRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE
7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. E®MITA
a. Categories of financial instruments a. ZRMIBER
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Financial assets SREE
Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") & RAFEFT AERGE
([ RAFEFAEBE])
Mandatorily at FVTPL: BEHIEAFEEA
Bmite:

— Investments held for trading —BEEBERE 32 54
Financial assets at amortised cost HEBEN AT ECERMEE 974,862 =
Equity instruments at FVTOCI BAFEFAE KSR

i N = 23,598 -
Loans and receivables (including bank B EW A

balances and cash) (BRERTEBLES) - 818,774

Available-for-sale investment AHEERE - 24,840
998,492 843,668

Financial liabilities SREE

Fair value through profit or loss BATER AR

— Contingent consideration payable —EESARE - 170,552

— Provision for financial guarantee — ISR R G = 217,843
Other financial liabilities measured at REHEKAFTE 2 MR

amortised cost =R 4,771,809 3,352,655
Convertible bonds payables &~ AT ¥R A% (B 168,138 148,965

4,939,947 3,890,015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
and bills receivables, other receivables, contract assets,
finance lease receivables, investments held for trading,
pledged bank deposits and restricted cash, bank
balances and cash, amount due from(to) associates,
equity instruments at FVTOCI, trade and other
payables, amounts due to related parties, amounts due
to directors, borrowings, convertible bonds payables,
provision for financial guarantee and contingent
consideration payable. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and other
price risk), credit risk, operational risk and liquidity
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

(i) Currency risk
The Company and its major operating
subsidiaries use RMB as its functional currency
and are mainly exposed to currency in respect
of United States dollars (“USD”), Euro (“EUR")
and HK$, arising from foreign currency
denominated bank balances and cash, trade
and bills receivables, other receivables, trade
and other payables, convertible bonds payables,
provision for financial guarantee and contingent
consideration payable. The Group's other
operating subsidiaries established in Hong Kong
whose functional currency is HK$ and do not
have significant foreign currency exposure.

CHINA OCEAN INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

7. 2RI H (&)

b. MEEREEERREE

AEEZTIZSRTABTEESRE
YRR K e R R - B At FE M SRR
BREE FRUEREEERR FE
BEERE EERRTHERRZRS
Re RITBHNES  BU () B
BRRE BAFESARBEE
W RAT A B 5 K EMEMNR
BENBRBALFE BNES
REEE BNATERRES M5
BEREBIENIARE - ZFE R
TRZFBRERM T E - 2
FeMITAAEZRERBEMSRE
(B RRE FXEREEMER
Rk) EERR- 2ERBRERBE
R o T 3B F AR fA] R bt R e
ZBR-EREGERELEEZER
B DAREGR KB R A U REUVE B 15
¥ o

5B

()  E&EkE
ARG REFEZENB AT
(BUARBIEREINEE)
FTEAZABET ([E7]) -
BT (B ) RAB T2 SMER
B - IASNBEHE Z IR1THESB K
Re BHRKFEBEBRERE
B HAeEUGRIE - B 5 REM
FERFRIE - RS AT IRAR B 55 - BF
BERBERENKARER
EE -AEEZHMEENBR
AN BB - N E BB
T B E KNS R o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

b.

7. 2RI A (&)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)

The Group currently does not have a foreign

currency hedging policy. However, the

management monitors foreign currency exposure

and will consider hedging significant foreign

currency exposure should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign

currency denominated monetary assets and

b. MBEREERBFERBUR
(%)

m5 B ()

()

E¥mE (&)

ZER B B AT SN BB ERR
Al ERESERINERR
TRFRE  HEERETEXN

SN R BR

TRIVRRIRE R - AEREA
SNENECEREERERR

monetary liabilities at the end of reporting period B REE:
are as follows:
Liabilities Assets
=R EE
2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-N\E | ZE—tF | ZB-NF | ZT—+LF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET FExT FHET
usD ETT 17,748 17,748 164,886 191,657
EUR BT - - 2 174,263
HK$ BIT 387,573 283,069 13,394 92,340
Sensitivity analysis BB T

The Group is mainly exposed to the foreign

currency risk of USD, EUR and HKS$.

AEFFEARET  BTlB

TCZ AN LR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. TRITH (&)

(CONTINUED)
b. Financial risk management objectives b. MERKBEEBEERBE
and policies (Continued) (&)
Market risk (Continued) miE R (&)
(i) Currency risk (Continued) () BEEERE(E)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) B E T ()

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity
to a 5% (2017: 5%) increase and decrease in
RMB against the relevant foreign currencies.
A 5% (2017: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used
when reporting foreign currency risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translations at the end of the
reporting period for a 5% (2017: 5%) change in
foreign currency rates. A positive number below
indicates a decrease in post-tax loss where RMB
strengthens 5% (2017: 5%) against the relevant
currency. For a 5% (2017: 5%) weakening of
RMB against the relevant currency, there would
be an equal and opposite impact on the post-tax
loss and the balances below would be negative.

TRV EEAEED B A
REABBINETHEREZES%
TR Fb%)ZBEE
5% (ZF—+F:5%) /AR
AERERABHRSINERR
REAMBERENE SIEE
BEEHERTREAEEH 2T
ity - URE D ITE BIEASNE T
BEzHARFREERERR XNHK
FHRFARE LA RBRIMNE
ERZ25% (ZF—+EF:5%)
EF o TIERRTARELS
AEEFAE% (ZT—+t5F:
5% ) FiT 8 LAY BR B 12 85 RUR
Do ANRELABERRE
5% (ZT—+F:5%) K&
HEDRBBEEKEST AR
ZHE MATZEBRERSE
8o

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FAT
Decrease (increase) in loss EER A (38m)
— USD Impact —ETTE (7,357) (8,695)
— EUR Impact —BTRE - (8,713)
— HK$ Impact —BrEE 18,709 9,536
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to variable-rate pledged bank
deposits and restricted cash, bank balances and
borrowings, and exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to fixed-rate finance lease
receivables, fixed-rate borrowings, the liability
component of convertible bonds payables.

The Group currently does not have an interest
rate hedging policy. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure should
the need arise.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk
management section of this note.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for variable-rate bank balances and
borrowings at the end of the reporting period.
The analysis is prepared assuming the amounts
outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. A 5 and
50 basis points (2017: 5 and 50 basis points)
increase or decrease in interest rate for bank
balances and borrowings is used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management'’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.

7. 2RI A (&)

b.

BXEREEBEERBER
(&)

Ak ()

(i) FYE/E

REBARZBERENEKE
BREZECEMRITERRE
BHRe RITERREES
P REEAK 2 N ENRE
SR [E S e W R B EFOR - [
1% BN A BARES 2 B
DBk

W BB

Jﬁf
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

7. 2RI H (&)

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2017:
50 basis points) higher/lower for borrowings
and all other variables were held constant, the
post-tax loss for the year ended 31 December
2018 would increase/decrease by approximately

HK$4,147,000 (2017: HK$4,141,000).

If interest rate had been 5 basis points (2017:
5 basis points) higher/lower for bank balances,
and all other variables were held constant, the
post-tax loss for the year ended 31 December
2018 would decrease/increase by approximately

HK$6,000 (2017: HK$7,000)

(i) Price risk

Price risk on investments held for trading and
equity instruments at FVTOCI (2017: available-

for-sale investment).

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
its investments held for trading and equity
instruments at FVTOCI (2017: available-for-sale
investment). The Group’s equity price risk is
mainly concentrated on listed equity securities
quoted in the Exchange and the National
Equities Exchange and Quotations in Beijing. The
management manages this exposure by closely
monitoring the price risk and maintaining a

portfolio of investments with different risks.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(iii)  Price risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to equity
price risks of investments held for trading at the
end of the reporting period.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments
had been 5% (2017: 5%) higher/lower:

° post-tax loss for the year ended 31
December 2018 would decrease/increase
by approximately HK$2,000 (2017:
decrease/increase by HK$3,000) as
a result of the changes in fair value of
investments held for trading; and

o investment revaluation reserve would
increase/decrease by approximately
HK$1,180,000 for the Group as a result
of the changes in fair value of equity
instruments at FVTOCI for the year ended
31 December 2018 (2017: approximately
HK$1,242,000 for available-for-sale
investment).

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation
by the counterparties provided by the Group is arising
from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

7. 2RI H (&)

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual receivable
at the end of each reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the Directors consider that
the Group's credit risk on receivables is significantly
reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk in finance
lease segment as the entire outstanding finance
lease receivable of approximately HK$3,695,000
(2017: HK$9,353,000) was contributed from a single
customer as at 31 December 2018. The Directors
consider that the risks will be mitigated by exploring
new customers in future.

The credit risk of liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

Operational risk

The Group had improved the operational risk as more
new customers were added to minimise the effects of
over reliance on one customer during the years ended
31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

In management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance
the Group's operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows.

The Group was exposed to liquidity risk at 31
December 2018 as the Group had net current liabilities
and net liabilities of approximately HK$3,376,522,000
and HK$2,178,756,000 (2017: HK$2,136,381,000
and HK$896,130,000), respectively. In order to
improve the Group’s liquidity position, the Directors
have been implementing various operating and
financing measures, details of which are set out in
Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group relied on borrowings as significant sources
of liquidity, details of which are set out in Note 32 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. Specifically, bank borrowings with a repayment on
demand clause are included in the earliest time band
regardless of the probability of the banks choosing to
exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other non-
derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates.

7. 2RI A (&)

M EEEEREEERRR
(%)

HEEZ/EE
NEERBDETRR CBRET  ANE
BEETHFEEERARA/LE
BEERRES Y —EXRFNRER
ReFEMLRERRERETHT
K& o

AEBR-_ZT-—NF+-_A=+—
FHERBESRER WLITEAKXE
BEoRBEEFELFRED RN
3,376,522,000/% 7T % 2,178,756,000
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7T }896,130,000/8 7T ) - REEARE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

=1 =)
7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. @I H(8)
(CONTINUED)
b. Financial risk management objectives b. MERKBEEBEERBE
and policies (Continued) (£&)
Liquidity risk (Continued) mEBEZEE (&)
The table includes both interest and principal cash THREHIMERAEGZHERE
flows. To the extent that interest flows are at floating WF BRI FEFEGE  RAE S
rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest AR RERR ZFRAESE -
rate curve at the end of the reporting period.
Weighted Over Over Over Over
average On demand 1 month 3 months 1 year 2 years Total Carrying
effective or less than butless than bt less than butlessthan ~ butlessthan  undiscounted amount at
interest rate 1 month 3 months 1 year 2 years 5 years cash flows 31.12.2018
RZZ-NE
WETH RERY 1fAARL 3EANUL 150k WHE KEBEEE t-BA=1-B
ERAE SMER  BHN3ER BHi1E BHRE BHH5E FEAE ZEAE
% HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TER T#n TEn Tz TEn Tz
2018 “E-0%
Non-derivative financial liabilites 74 $REE
Trade and other payables BAREMERTE NA R&R 1,211,406 18,069 29,260 88,255 - 1,346,990 1,346,990
Amounts due to related parties EREEBALHE NA FER 721 - - - - 721 721
Amounts due to directors R EES NA RER 21,925 - - - - 21,925 21,925
Amount due to an associate Eft-BBENRE NA FER 16,920 - - - - 16,920 16,920
Convertible bonds payables (Note) ~ FE AT 5 (Hi3E) 10 - - 226,800 - - 226,800 168,138
Borrowings g
- fived rates -8 5.53 1,058,110 135,303 573,868 847,531 26,334 2,641,146 2,555,856
- variable rates -28 6.35 226,909 1,542 136,681 479,702 31,620 876,454 829,397
2,535,991 154914 96,600 1415488 57954 513095 4939947
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

7 = —d
7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. ®®MIA(HF)
(CONTINUED)
b. Financial risk management objectives b. MKREKEEBERBE
- - - = =
and policies (Continued) (#&)
Liquidity risk (Continued) nEELEE (&)
Weighted Over Over Over Over
average On demand 1 month 3 months 1 year 2 years Total Carrying
effective or less than but less then but less than but less than but less than undiscounted amount at
interest rate 1 month 3 months 1 year 2 years 5 years cash flows 31122017
RZF-t%
nEFH BEL 1EANE @AM 15 E i FHBERE T-A=t-A
ERAI= SRIER  BAR3EA BARIE BOHE BHR5E iikEat pd
% HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000
T T T T T T T
17 e
Non-derivative financia liabites HTEEREE
Trade and other payables BARERENTE NATER 717,647 21,022 68,265 5337 = 812471 812471
Amounts due to related parties EREERALRE NA TR 811 S = S = 811 811
Amounts due to directors NAPER 10,034 - - - - 10,034 10,034
Amount due to an associate NATER 15,159 - - - - 15,159 15,159
Provision for financial guarantee ORERER NATER 11573 = 102,108 = = 217,843 217843
Contingent consiceration payable e NA T B 170552 - - - - 170552 170552
Convertile bonds payables (Note) ~ FERTRT iR E (M) 10 = = 18375 208,425 = 226800 148,965
Borrowings 35
— fixed rates -EE 704 672911 177,551 692,708 210,9% 21,720 1,781,886 1,685,909
- variable rates 28 4% 237,606 2,756 244,443 122476 308,578 915,859 828,271
1,940,455 201,529 1,1258%9 547,234 336,298 4151415 3890,015
Note: The undiscounted amount represents the coupon interest and Biet: REER S RBIEMRR R IR I gt 2
redemption amount on maturity on the assumption that there 228 [ 51 AffiE o] 50 7H -

was no conversion prior to maturity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

7. 2RI H (&)

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017,
there was no principal amount of the Group’s bank
borrowings with unconditional repayment on demand
clause.

The amounts included as above for variable interest
rate instruments of non-derivative financial liabilities
are subject to change if change in variable interest
rates differ to those estimates of interest rate
determined at the end of the reporting period.

Fair value measurement of financial
instruments

This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair values of various financial assets and
financial liabilities.

Some of the Group’s financial instruments are
measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market-
observation data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages
third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation.

CHINA OCEAN INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

MERAREEERERBE
(%)

HBELmE (&)
R-E—N\F+-A=+—BR_Z
—tF+=A=+—8 REENHR

TTREAS M E G RERE
BIR

EHFBNEEH RN RE R REE
ZRRfMEG R EAETESRAR
ZEBRITRZFATSBMNE-

EMIAEZAFENE

AW ERHEEHNGANEEAEES
MEERERABEETAFENT
e

RHBHETE AEEETFLBMT
ABRAFEHE-

REFTAFER  AEERBARZ
MR BREIE - HF —ERB AR
BEAARAE ARESREE=14
B ERMETTRE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. EMTA

(CONTINUED)
ETMIAZAFEFE

(%)

c. Fair value measurement of financial C.
instruments (Continued)

Fair value as at

AV

Financial assets/

31 December

31 December

Fair value Valuation technique(s)

financial liabilities 2018 2017  hierarchy and key input(s)
—E-N\% “TtF
HBEE/HEEE t=A=t-8 | TZA=+-H AYEER #“ERARIEGAE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THER
Held-for-trading non-derivative Listed equity Listed equity ~ Level 1 Quoted prices in
financial assets classified as investments securities securities an active market
held for trading in the consolidated in Hong Kong - in Hong Kong -
statement of financial position approximately approximately
32 b4
REaMBRRBERANEAR REBLTZ REBLTZ F-ER ARG RE
RIEEBERECHIEERINE BRAE % - BARE S —
TREE #32 #954
Equity instruments at FVTOCI (2017: Listed Listed equity Listed equity ~ Level 1 Quoted prices in
available-for-sale investment) securities securities an active market
in the PRC - in the PRC -
approximately approximately
23,598 24,840
BRATEFAEMZERR TR RAPBEEHZ RPE T E-EBR PG RTS 2 RE
(Z2—t+5F: LTARHERE) BRAE % - BARE S —
#)23,598 #)24 840
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. €T H (&)
(CONTINUED)
c. Fair value measurement of financial c. EMIBEZAFERE
instruments (Continued) (&)

Fair value as at

AT
Financial assets/ 31 December 31 December  Fair value Valuation technique(s)
financial liabilities 2018 2017 hierarchy and key input(s)
—E-N\E§ T &
HBEEE/HKaE T=ZA=+-H TZA=T-H AVEER M#RERWRIEWAE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT THET
Contingent consideration payable Liability - Liability - Level 2 Reference to the profit for
in a business combination approximately approximately the year ended 31
= 170,552 December 2017
REBEHT 2 BAIARE a8E- BE- FZER SERZE_FT—+F
B"- #9170,552 TZA=T-BILFE
A
Provision for financial Guarantee Liability - Liability - Level 3 Probabilities of
approximately approximately occurrence of default
- 217,843 incidents and the
potential losses upon
the occurrence of such
incidents
HBREREE a8E- BE- F-ER BEENSHNTAM R
#H- #9217,843 RBEEZESHENE
EBE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

c. Fair value measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

7. 2RI A (&)

c. TRMTAZAVHEE

(%)

Fair value hierarchy

AFEEBS
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E-ER E-BR EZBR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER
2018 “E-N\E
Financial assets SREE
Investments held for trading BIEEEZRE 32 = = 32
Equity instruments at FVTOCI BATEFAEMLZE
Wz ERTA 23,598 - - 23,598
23,630 - - 23,630
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. TRITH (&)

(CONTINUED)
c. Fair value measurement of financial c. TRTAZAFEE
instruments (Continued) (&)
Fair value hierarchy
NFEER
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E-ER FER F=ER @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TET FET FAEL
2017 —E—+5F
Financial assets PREE
Investments held for trading HEEB A 54 = = 54
Available-for-sale investment AHHERE 24,840 = = 24,840
24,894 - - 24,894
Financial liabilities SHAE
Contingent consideration payable ~ JEff sk AR (B = 170,552 = 170,552
Provision for financial guarantee BT IER B (M5F1)
(Note 1) - - 217,843 217,843
- 170,552 217,843 388,395
Note 1: As at 31 December 2017, a decrease in default rate used in MfaFl - R=F—tF+=A=+—H FifEA

isolation would result in a decrease in fair value measurement
of the provision for financial guarantee. A 5% decrease in
default rate and holding all other variables constant would
decrease the carrying amount of the provision for financial
guarantee by approximately HK$10,892,000.

As at 31 December 2017, an increase in recovery rate
used in isolation would result in a decrease in fair value
measurement of the provision for financial guarantee. A
5% increase in recovery rate and holding all other variables
constant would decrease the carrying amount of the provision
for financial guarantee by approximately HK$10,892,000.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ImE B IRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE
7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. € RITH (&)
(CONTINUED)
c. Fair value measurement of financial c. TRTEZAFEE
instruments (Continued) (&)
Other than disclosed above, there was no transfer B EXEBEEN FRE— F R
between Level 1, 2 and 3 during the year. BEZEBR B EER-
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value FZERAFEEZHEK
measurements
2018
Convertible Derivative Provision
Notes at financial for financial
FVTPL liabilities guarantee Total
BATETA
Bz
—BE-N\E FEHE
TEREE B  HEERBE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL TEL FEL FEL
At 1 January 2017 R-_F—tF-F—H 92,847 13,872 - 106,719
Exchange realignment RS = = 12,776 12,776
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries Hﬁlﬁ%ﬁﬁ%@ﬂﬁi% - = 208,981 208,981
Settlement ol = - (3,914) (3914)
Conversion of i&ﬁh - \EARRER
2018 Convertible Notes (31,111) - - (31,111)
Early redemption of REEE -2 \FUARE
2018 Convertible Notes (62,980) - - (62,980)
Gain on redemption of 2017 Convertible EI|H3iE[EI —F —+F a2
Notes Il upon maturity ZRI M= = (13,872) - (13,872)
Gain on early redemption of RABE-Z—N\FABR
2018 Convertible Notes \H§ P e (5,003) - - (5,003)
Change in fair value NTEEE) 6,247 = = 6,247
At 31 December 2017 and RZZ—+F+-A=+—-AK
31 December 2018 —E-\E+-A=1+—H - - 217843 217843
Of the total gains or losses for the year ended EM%%/;.\E%&E@%EH%%Z%%

31 December 2017 included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of approximately HK$6,247,000 relates
to 2018 Convertible Notes at FVTPL held as at 31
December 2017.

T tET-A=+—RiEE
Mg 35 55 5 18 4 406,247,000 78
S e = = S =F 0
T AR —F— \FTRBR
AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. €T H (&)

(CONTINUED)

c. Fair value measurement of financial c. EMTAZAFVENE
instruments (Continued) (#&)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value FEZEBRLAFETEZEHE
measurements (Continued) (#&)
The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of BEEZRE NGV BWERAAEE
other financial assets and financial liabilities recorded KAAEZHttemEEREMBE
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial ZEmENEEEERES -

statements approximate their values.

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 8. WaEkosHEHR
INFORMATION
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-_F-N\FE+=-A=+—H
ItFE
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with K EEF &H B K25
customers

Intelligent car
parking and
automotive Steel structure
device engineering Shipbuilding

Segment WAl business and installation business
BEFER HEBIER R AR
REEFEK T BUEETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET FHT
Geographical markets 018 T 5
The PRC H 135,342 21,213 22,912
Germany = - - (649,278)
Total HBET 135,342 21,213 (626,366)
Timing of revenue recognition e 75 HEFR B 2T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET FHT
A point in time fi ) 2 135,342 21,213 =
Over time R— A = - (626,366)
Total HBET 135,342 21,213 (626,366)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

8. WmkoEER (&)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue from

segment information.

TXHEHINKEEF A O E D #BE

contracts with customers with the amounts disclosed in the Friffzemm 2z Bk -

For the
year ended
31 December
2018

B=
—E-N\F
+=A
=+—H
LEFE
Segment
revenue

2 B
HK$’000
FETT

Shipbuilding business
Intelligent car parking and automotive device business
Steel structure engineering and installation

Revenue from contracts with customers
Interest income

Total revenue

BB B
BEEERTEETEY
MEETRRES

XKBEEPAK S
B WA

g

(626,366)
135,342

21,213

(469,811)

1,779

(468,032)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

8. 8.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue from
contracts with customers with the amounts disclosed in the
segment information. (Continued)

ko EHER (&)

TXHEHINKEREFP AL W E D JE R
BRI R (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHE_Z—+H5+_-_A=+—HItFE

Segment
revenue Elimination Consolidated
PoR- i Eisic e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T T FHET
Shipbuilding business R0 B s 2 TS (78,989) - (78,989)
Trading business B 5 EG 26,166 = 26,166
Intelligent car parking and EEEBERAEETER
automotive device business 134,504 (14,077) 120,427
Steel structure engineering and &5 T2 R 2
installation 281,019 - 281,019
Revenue from contracts with REEFP AL
customers 362,700 (14,077) 348,623
Interest income FEHA 6,472 (5,857) 615
Total revenue G 369,172 (19,934) 349,238

Information reported to the board of Directors, being
the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”), for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of goods or services delivered
or provided. No operating segments identified by the CODM
have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments
of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments
under HKFRS 8 Operating Segments areas follows:

a)  Shipbuilding business — provision of shipbuilding
services under shipbuilding construction contracts
and operated in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC").

b)  Trading business — provision of trading of electronic
appliance and operated in Hong Kong.

c) Finance leasing business — provision of direct finance
leasing, sale and leaseback, advisory services and
provision of factoring services in the PRC.

d) Intelligent car parking and automotive device business
— manufacturing and sales of car parking equipment,
investment, operation and management of car parks
and electronic automotive devices in the PRC.

e)  Steel structure engineering and installation —
manufacturing and selling of steel structures and
fittings for ship, marine equipment, mining equipment,
ro-ro equipment, ship, bridge and building steel
structure in the PRC.

8.

Wk o e ER ()

ABME AREREFEMBHRSER
FIACE S FFB 0 2 A 2B 5 BRI
T.

a) MMAREXB-HEPEARKMNE
([HhE ) R RIBEM & KR A A
RERF

b) ERXEB-HEBEKELETEMES
E N

c) MEMEXK-TEPRREHEEME
HE -E%ERE - FERARE MIERR
1B AR 7% -

d) EBEERABETER- EAEF'.TE
HEERENEERHE RE B
%%z%@ﬁu&mﬁﬁ%%%

e) MAEBIRENMLZE -NHERERH
EM MM EE R FUBRE K
BRE RERBARMM BRR
SRR S -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

8.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT 8. WakoHER (&)
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Segment revenue and results PR ERFEE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and AEBIZAI2WMRLEEDEE D 2 Wam Rk
results by reportable and operating segment. EESWTWT -
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-_Z—-\F+-A=+—HLEE
Intelligent car Steel
parking and structure
Finance automotive ~ engineering
Shipbuilding Trading leasing device and
business business business business installation Total
B2
MRgE MEHE RAEET WLRIR
% EREK £% £% RzE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FhL FhEL FHEL FHL
Segment revenue AHE
- External sales -l (626,366) - 1,779 135,342 21,213 (468,032)
Segment result PHEE (603,014) - (34,872) (107,448) (279,233)  (1,024,567)
Unallocated other gains and losses FAEEMNERER (3,803)
Unallocated other income FALEBBA 429
Change in fair value of investments BIEEERECATEEY
held for trading (22)
Share of loss of associates MEBELRCEBR (35,092)
Share of loss of joint ventures MERELECER (472,152)
Unallocated corporate expenses FAELZDARR (960)
Unallocated finance costs FARZBERR (38,099)
Loss before tax BB AR (1,574,266)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IREGMBIMIRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE
8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 8. WamkoHER (&)
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) TEHMEREE (E)
For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-ZT—+tF+A=1+—HIEFE
Intelligent car Steel
parking and structure
Finance  automotive  engineering
Shipbuilding Trading leasing device and
business business business business installation Elimination Total
BEFE
b REME RAEETF HERIE
% BE5ER %% #% k%% gz @

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TETL TET TAT TAL TR TAT

Segment revenue AHKE

- External sales 5l (78,989) 26,166 615 120427 281,019 - 349,238

- Inter-segment sales -AHBHE - - 5,857 14,077 = (19,934) -
Total segment revenue AR AE (78,989) 26,166 6,472 134,504 281,019 (19,934) 349,238
Segment result APHEE (538,213) 130 (29,939) (79,472) 3,779 (643,715)
Unallocated other gains and losses &2 B E iz RIER 14,303
Unallocated other income RAOBREMBA 877
Gain on settlement of contingent & T ER AR E 2 Wiz

consideration payable 39,704
Change in fair value of EASRES A TES

convertible bonds payables (6,247)
Change in fair value of investments ~ #{EEBEREz ATEE

held for trading (143)
Change in fair value of investment % &M%z AFEE

properties 1,730
Gain on early redemption of REBRERTARES 2

convertible bonds payables W 5,003
Gain on redemption of convertible 7 2| H385 21 /& f AT Bk

bonds payables upon maturity B2 E 13,872
Share of profit of associates PbE ‘é NEZ BT 1,692
Unallocated corporate expenses FARZARREY (21,309
Unallocated finance costs %l EZm@ﬁ@W (29415)
Loss before tax BB AIEE (623,648)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

8. 8. WaEkoHESR (&)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies. Segment result
represents the profit earned by (loss from) each segment
without allocation of certain other income, certain other gains
or losses, change in fair value of investments held for trading,
change in fair value of convertible bonds payables, gain on
settlement of contingent consideration payable, change in
fair value of investment properties, gain on early redemption
of convertible bonds payables, gain on redemption of
convertible bonds payables upon maturity, certain finance
costs, share of (loss) profit of associates, share of loss of
joint ventures and certain corporate expenses. This is the
measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ImE B IRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE
REVENUE AND SEGMENT 8. WmknHER (&)
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Segment assets and liabilities PHEERAEE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and REBZAEHREEEDHE D 2 EER
liabilities by reportable and operating segment: BESTWT:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Assets BE
Segment assets DEPEE
— Shipbuilding business — MRS T 802,174 614,424
— Trading business —B 5% - 17,837
— Finance leasing business - MEREXEK 361,392 180,246
— Intelligent car parking and automotive device =~ —EZEEHE K&
business EEHEBFER 615,065 756,908
— Steel structure engineering and installation —MEBITRERTHE 810,733 1,019,399
Total segment assets DEPEEEEE 2,589,364 2,588,814
Pledged bank deposits and restricted cash and ETEET%ETTT*h PR 3
bank balances and cash K RTT 458 DA &fﬁi 12,270 15,524
Interests in associates EA%% EWNEIP o 201,094 249919
Interests in joint ventures NEEDE I ER 5,531 485,980
Investment properties ?x éf%% 21,914 25,104
Amount due from an associate UL — FEj B & A B 5RIR 10,365 10,910
Unallocated corporate assets APBZRAREE 6,136 79,503
Consolidated assets HEBE 2,846,674 3,455,754
Liabilities &
Segment liabilities DEEE
— Shipbuilding business — AR B TS 2,836,999 2,098,246
— Trading business —BH5EB - 17,748
— Finance leasing business —MEREER 587,650 574,063
— Intelligent car parking and automotive device = —EEHEE K&
business HEEBFER 446,341 374,419
— Steel structure engineering and installation —iERIRERTE 777,211 711,663
Total segment liabilities NEPEEBTE 4,648,201 3,776,139
Convertible bonds payables & < AT $R A% (B 168,138 148,965
Contingent consideration payable e SRR AE - 170,552
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEEA 11 68,141 106,971
Amounts due to associates FEAST B 2 B FR0E 16,920 15,159
Unallocated corporate liabilities KOBZ2A 7/@'\@? 124,030 134,098
Consalidated liabilities LmAEaE 5,025,430 4,351,884
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

8.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

° all assets are allocated to operating segments other
than interests in associates, interests in joint ventures,
investment properties, certain other receivables,
pledged bank deposits and restricted cash, bank
balances and cash, investments held for trading,
amount due from an associate, tax recoverable, and
certain corporate property, plant and equipment; and

° all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
other than convertible bonds payables, contingent
consideration payable, deferred tax liabilities, amounts
due to associates, amounts due to directors, tax
liabilities, and certain other payables and accruals.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Other segment information

Year ended 31 December 2018

8.

Wk o e ER ()
Hit o BEH

BE_ZF-/\F+-A=1+T—-HLLFE

Amounts included in the measure of segment result or TENHEEXDBEERTAZEEDN
segment assets: e
Intelligent car Steel
parking and structure
Finance  automotive  engineering
Shipbuilding Trading leasing device and
business business business business installation  Unallocated Total
BEFE
MiRE HEHE RAEET HERIE
% E3%EK % £% k&% KB @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR Ti#n TR TR TiEx TR
Additions to property, plant and RENE BRER&E
equipment 392 - 10 325 29,188 94 30,009
Depreciation of property, plant and nE BERSEINE
equipment 41,781 - 124 6,783 29,033 893 78,614
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments &7 & 508 & 8 7,168 = = 253 1,227 = 8,648
Amortisation of intangible assets BREESHE - = = 37,452 3,601 = 41,053
Impairment loss recognised in HEVEERR
respect of intangible assets REBE - - - 10,000 16,000 - 26,000
Impairment loss recognised in REEER L AERS
respect of goodwill - - - 22,000 47,740 - 69,740
Impairment loss recognised REMEKERZ L
in respect of other receivables HEBE - = = - 120,000 = 120,000
Written-down of inventories recognised  HUH B R A ER A
as cost of sales 5& 799,159 - - - - - 799,159
Finance costs BERAK 136,724 - 32,534 16,909 47,575 38,099 271,841
Other income HilA (1,679) - - (7,131) (662) (429) (9,901)
Other gains and losses EnbERER 1,648 - - 10,644 (12,283) 3,803 3,812
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Other segment information (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2018 (Continued)

Amounts regularly provided to the CODM but not included in

the measure of segment result:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

ko EHER (&)

=

2 HER (&)

BEZz_Z2-\F+-A=t—-HLHFE

—~

=)

=S

EMRERTFEEREREEEETEHY
EERS LR/ AZ ST

Intelligent car Steel

parking and structure

Finance  automotive  engineering

Shipbuilding Trading leasing device and
business business business business installation  Unallocated Total

- {EX

MRS HEHE RAEETF HERIR
% EEEEK % % RRE KR @st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL THERT THET TERT THET TET TERT
Interest income (1) = - (421) (7) - (429)
Share of loss of joint ventures - - - - - 472,152 472,152

Change in fair value of investments

held for trading - - - - - 22 22
Share of loss of associates - - - - - 35,092 35,092
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

Wk o e ER ()

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Other segment information (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2017

Amounts included in the measure of segment result or

segment assets:

=<

B=E

- =

Gl

oEHER (F)

Intelligent car

parking and
automotive  Steel structure

E—+F+-_A=+—HILFE

PREXDMEERTAZSEN

Shipbuilding Trading Finance leasing device  engineering
business business business business and installation  Unallocated Total
BEEE
WisE BERE RAEET HERIE
%  29%% £% % R&# RO b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL THETL FHL THL FHL FHIL THL
Additions to property, REME BERE
plant and equipment 72 - 4 20,473 150,337 1,639 172,525
Additions to property, plant and WERBARMEENDE .
equipment arising through BRRRERE
acquisition of subsidiaries - - - - 210,270 - 210,270
Additions to prepaid lease payments ~ YEE I B A RIFTE £
arising through acquisition of BNAEFRELEM
subsidiaries - - - - 62,342 - 62,342
Additions to intangible assets arising WM BARFHELH
through acquisition of subsidiaries &R/ EEE I - - - - 36,276 - 36,276
Change in fair value of contingent BRI SARENATEERS
consideration payable - - - 5,081 - - 5,081
Depreciation of property, plantand ~ #1% - BERXEZTE
equipment 38,804 - 112 2,902 17863 652 60,333
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments?8 17 & 508 & 5 7232 = = 251 1,171 = 8,654
Amortisation of intangible assets BREERE = = = 39,484 1,887 = 41371
Foreseeable losses (included penalties 7 EEIMEEHALA (F AEMA
due to the Delay) recognised in NRXARBERAHEERT)
respect of additional estimated costs MRz T EREE
(included in shipbuilding contract (Gt REER 2 30
cost and recognised as cost of sales)  (AfF5(b)i))
(Note 5(b)(i)) 52,156 - - - - - 52,156
Impairment loss recognised in REVAERR I RERE
respect of intangible assets - - - 16,925 - - 16,925
Impairment loss recognised in FEERAZAEER
respect of goodwill - - - - 40,771 - 40,771
Finance costs BEMAK 85,292 = 26,479 10518 21,787 29415 173,491
Goodwill arising through WENBARMELBE
acquisition of subsidiaries - - - - 86,488 - 86,433
QOther income EMA (776) = (11) (13,634) (11,522) 877) (26,820)
Other gains and losses EhliskER 7081 - B 165 (3,746) (14,303) (10,803)
DBETEBEBIRAT F3k 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

8. WaEkoHESR (&)

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Other segment information (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2017 (Continued)

Amounts regularly provided to the CODM but not included in

the measure of segment result:

Hftt o & & (8)

o B

FERSWETFAZZENAT

B E—+tE+-_A=+—HBILEE

)

EMRERTFEEREREEEETEHY

Intelligent car Steel
parking and structure
Finance  automotive  engineering
Shipbuilding Trading leasing device and
business business business business installation  Unallocated Total
BEFE
firfngs REME RAEET HERIE
% B5%% 2% £/ k&% RAR @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tisn T T T T T
Interest income FEKA (115) (1) (20) (55) (684) @) (877)
Share of profit of associates MEBE DR EH - - - - = (1,692) (1,692)
Change in fair value of convertible T AT#RR % 2 A FEE
bonds payables - - - - - 6,247 6,247
Additions to interests in associates ~ FABEE N Al Z BRI = = = = = 82,800 82,800
Change in fair value of investments ~ #{EEEREZ ATEEH
held for trading - - - - - 143 143
Gain on settlement of contingent BT RAKE 2 Yz
consideration - - - - - (39,704) (39,704)
Gain on early redemption of RABEENTARES 2
convertible bonds payables Wizs - - - - - (5,003) (5,003)
Gain on redemption of convertible  ZIEAEEIE AT AR ES 2
bonds payables upon maturity W& - - - - - (13872) (13872)
Addition to investment properties  RERENE - - = 7,660 = = 7,660
Change in fair value of REMEL L TER
investment properties - - - (1,730) - - (1,730)
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

Geographical information

The Group's operations are located in the PRC, Hong Kong,

Germany and Northern Europe.

Information about the Group's revenue from external
customers is presented based on the location of customers.
Information about the Group’s non-current assets
(excluded financial instruments) is presented based on the

geographical locations of the assets.

i & &

IE}"\O

Revenue from

external customers

Year ended 31 December

BE+=-HA=+—H

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

8. WmkoEER (&)

AEBZEBURTE FE B8R

ARAEE 2SR Y AR A E PR
R AREST - ARAREERDEE
(BT ABIN) ERNEEFIEHEBE
X2 5]

Non-current assets

at 31 December

R+=ZA=+—-B2

LFEEZIMNBEF W& IRBEE
2018 2017 2018 2017
—EN\F | ZE—+F | ZB-N\F | ZT—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET FHERT T
Germany = (649,278) (78,989) - -
The PRC s 181,246 396,866 | 1,241,574 2,048,994
Hong Kong Ei - 26,166 - 2045
Northern Europe b X - 5,195 = =
(468,032)| 349238 | 1,241,574 | 2,051,039
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RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years

8. WaEkoHESR (&)

EBEEEFZEHN

RERFERAEAEEAWZEAI0%

contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are ERZR&ENT:
as follows:
2018 2017
—E-—N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
Customer A* BEA N/A F3E 3 96,426
Customer B* =FB N/A T3E A3 65,625
Customer Ct BFEC! N/A R3E 3 79,937
Customer D? BFED? 69,609 N/A “1~ 38 A3
Customer E! =PEE! (656,214) N/A N8 F3
! Revenue from shipbuilding business L MR RLE E RS IR

i Revenue from intelligent car parking and automotive device business
& The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% if the total
revenue of the Group

Revenue from steel structure engineering and installation

9(a). OTHER INCOME

? BREEFERAEEFEBRE

: R R R 3 B A R B AR M ER 9 10% A |

¢ S TR R R EB RS

9(a). E g A

2018 2017

—E—N\F —E—+F

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FHERT FET

Consultancy income BRI YA = 8,853
Government grants BUT #E BA 378 1,996
Rental income He WA 2,508 9,428
Interests on bank deposits BITHFRFIE 429 877
Others E Aty 6,586 5,666
9,901 26,820
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

Ib). Eft = R E

9(b). OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

10.

2018 2017
—E-)N\F —ET—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
Loss on disposal of property, HEME BMEREKEZ
plant and equipment &8 (161) (284)
Loss on disposal of an associate HE—E#E AR ZEE - (1,215)
Gain (loss) on disposal of investment property MEREYZE W (Fi8) 174 (224)
Loss on disposal of investments held for trading HE&FEEFRE ZFIE - (149)
Sales of scrap materials SHERER 15,489 (3,069)
Foreign exchange (loss) gain 5 (EE) s (12,460) 15,854
Reversal of impairment loss recognised BBl 5k 8B 5 FE W EIE T R
in respect of trade receivable ZREEE - 77
Penalty arising from litigation SRFAEE RS FK (6,719) -
Others HAh (135) (187)
(3,812) 10,803
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES 10. BEEIE
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FAET
Impairment losses recognised on: B T5IE B R e R EE 1 -
— goodwill (Notes 20 and 40) — & (#E20%40) 69,740 40,771
— intangible assets (Notes 21 and 40) —EEEE
(K17$21240) 26,000 16,925
— other receivables (Note 25) —H b U FRIA (M1 7525) 120,000 =
215,740 57,696
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RO ERMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE
11. FINANCE COSTS 11. @& R
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Interests on borrowings wholly repayable ERAFANBHREEZ
within five years: B8
Convertible bonds payables (Note 35) FERT AT AR E S (HYaE35) 38,073 24,628
Overdue interests on convertible JERT AT AR EH 2
bonds payables B BRI 2, = 4,782
Interests on bank and other borrowings RITRHMEER B 230,944 135,350
Guarantee fee and fund management EREBEZERER
fee incurred in connection with borrowings B ERE 2,798 8,726
Others HAi 26 5
271,841 173,491
12. INCOME TAX CREDIT 12. FrSHIE R
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Current tax B ERFR 18
— PRC tax — B IE 10,801 20,573
Deferred tax (Note 36) EIERLIE (Hf3E36) (38,357) (23,269)
(27,556) (2,696)

CHINA OCEAN INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

12. INCOME TAX CREDIT (CONTINUED)

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017
(the “Bill") which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018
and was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of
the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits
above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of
group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The Directors considered the amount involved upon
implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime as
insignificant to the consolidated financial statements. Hong
Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

Under the law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group has obtained the
qualification of High and New Technology Enterprise from
the relevant PRC government authorities and subject to a
preferential tax rate 15%. Certain subsidiaries of the Group
in the PRC enjoy the tax holiday and the profits are fully
exempted from EIT for three years starting from its first year
of profitable operations, followed by 50% reduction in EIT in
next three years.

According to the applicable PRC tax regulations, dividends
declared by a company established in the PRC to a foreign
investor with respect to profit derived after 1 January 2008
are generally subject to a 10% PRC Withholding Tax. If
a foreign investor incorporated in Hong Kong meets the
conditions and requirements under the double taxation treaty
arrangement between the PRC and Hong Kong, the relevant
withholding tax rate will be reduced from 10% to 5%.

12. FiSBiER (&)

RZZE—NF=A=+—8 BB LEE
B8 20175 HH (1BF]) (HB75) FPIE
) ([ER]) 5 ANEHMAEH -ER
RZB-N\F=ZAZ+N\BEEXREE
YRBEAE-REMNEHRAS - EE
REBERE2H 8B TE N K 128.25%
B HBE2E &8 T b0’ F 1512 16.5%
BR - THAMNSHMEAGERNEEE
RSN EBIRI65%MN B — TR -

ETRAERFNEBRMAH TSRO
ERMAMBREMS L TAEKR - RWRE
FE - BEMNESH IR AFERTOEFIZ
16.5% 2 T ETE -

REBEFBEEEAETE (TREMREHE])
REEMESBORERGED - EHE AR
REZREFE 2 TR B25% °

AEEETHEARCEAREYHRFE
BRERRINBMER WA ZZHERER
15% AEBzETHEMBEARZRER
ME RN EEXRBRANEFE=FH2
2EEEMEHR - HR=FRIER250%1
EES

RIZE R P BEFBER - 1P BRI
RER—FENF— A — B ZERIAFH
HERRIMEEE D IKIRE —RABUKRI0%
MR BTN - S RIMNIEERN TR
AL - WA B ERE BRI LA ST
B BER TR0 AR E - IR TBHI B A
KGHE10%FFEESR °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

12. INCOME TAX CREDIT (CONTINUED)

Income tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the loss
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income as follows:

12. FriEBiER (&)

REFEMREHELERS
Weas R P52 BRI BB 18 2 BBRAA T -

B L EMEE

2018 2017
—E2-N\F —+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Loss before tax BREL AT B 1B (1,574,266) (623,648)
Tax at applicable domestic income R 5 A TS B A R 25%
tax rate of 25% (2017: 25%) —E—t5F:25%)
FE A (393,567) (155,912)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible MBBME TR L2
for tax purpose MG E 164,046 47,191
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose  FLEE M S ﬂi/,\u%fRZ
WAz a2 = (23,362)
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised AERZHBEEB R E 172,932 140,379
Tax effect of temporary difference not recognised RIER 7 B =5~
Mg 2 30,000
Tax effect of PRC withholding tax METEMBR 2 R TE - 4,199
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMAEREREE 2
operating in other jurisdiction WEBARITRBIE w2 452 2,078
Utilisation of tax loss previously not recognised — BB LRI R HER 2 FH B E 18 (1,419) (8,214)
Reduction of income tax under preferential tax [ &% 158 22 1 1 Fr 15 55 S1 K
treatment - (9,055)
Income tax credit for the year REEREHRER (27,556) (2,696)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

13. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 13. FAEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
Loss for the year has been arrived FREEERNBRTHIER®
at after charging: EE
Directors’ and chief executive's emoluments EZRIETBAEBZHS
(Note 14) (Kiat14) 6,739 5,842
Other staff costs: HMETHKA:
— Salaries and other benefits — & R E At gg A 48,660 46,367
— Redundancy fee —HEEH 6,725 =
— Contributions to retirement benefits scheme —RIKEFIET B3k 14,632 8,446
Total staff costs BT ARALRER 76,756 60,655
Auditor's remuneration ZER B
— Audit service — B RE 1,785 2,297
— Non-audit service —EEZRE 580 878
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense WRARLT ZFEKA 181,274 297,968
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥ % - = LR EITE 78,614 60,333
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments AR E R 8,648 8,654
Amortisation of intangible assets A E 41,053 41,371
Minimum lease payments paid under operating St E Y ER B L ETEL
leases in respect of rented premises T &EBEERNK 1,585 7,767
Shipbuilding contract costs recognised as cost of &R A E KR 2 EMA 4
sales DN (265,026) 350,683
Foreseeable losses (included penalties due to PLEBIMEFTACAS (FFAEM
the Delay) recognised in respect of additional BHRAREREEE
estimated costs (included in shipbuilding BRAR) MAERZAITER
contract cost and recognised as cost of sales) 518 (5t R EH BILRE
(Note (5)(b)(i)) Z A (KFEGNb))) - 52,156
Written-down of inventories recognised as ERAEHEEKA 2 FERUR
costs of sales 799,159 -
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RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 14 ESRFETHRAEME

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the years, RUATEEFREBA EMRAUAREER
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and Hong RGP ECEERFTETERABBE U
Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows: T
Year ended 31 December 2018 Year ended 31 December 2017
BE-S-N\FTZA=t-HLFE BE-T-tE+-A=+-ALEE
Contributions Contributions
to retirement to retirement
benefits benefits
Fees Salaries scheme Total Fees Salaries scheme Total
BREA RHREH
e e B3 azt e ¢ HEi5 @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TiEn TEx TAn Thn Tén Tén Fin
Executive directors: BnES:
Mr. Li Ming (‘Mr. L") (Chaimman) 8% % (1554 ])
() - 1431 18 1,449 - 1480 18 1498
Mir. Zhang Shi Hong RIBhE (THEH)
(Chief Executive Officer) - 1,182 18 1,200 - 1,182 18 1,200
Mr. Wang San Long (Note ¢) ToBRE (M) - - - - - 321 - 321
Mr. Liu Jin BErs - 942 18 960 = 942 18 %60
Dr. Zhang Weibing (Note d) REERL (M) - 1,182 18 1,200 = 133 = 133
Non-executive director: FunES:
Mr. Chau On Ta Yuen BRERLE (RELE)
(Honorary Chairman) - 1,430 - 1,430 - 1430 - 1430
Mr. Lin Lie (Note e) MR (Hiite) 200 - - 200 = = = S
Independent non-executive directors: B EHTEE:
Mr. Hu Bai He HRALE 100 - - 100 100 = = 100
Ms. Xiang Siying BREXT 100 - - 100 100 = = 100
Ms. Xiang Ying AERT 100 - - 100 100 = = 100
500 6,167 72 6,739 300 5488 54 5842
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RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

4 EEREFETRAENE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group.

The independent non-executive directors’ and the non-executive
directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services as directors
of the Company.

Resigned as executive director with effect from 21 November 2017.
Appointed as executive director with effect from 21 November 2017.

Appointed as non-executive director with effect from 3 September
2018.

There were no arrangements under which a director waived

or agreed to waive any emoluments during the years ended
31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017. Apart from the
Directors, the Group has not classified any other person as

chief executives during the years ended 31 December 2018
and 31 December 2017.

(%)

s

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

EXFRARTEFNE DREREELRF]
RAEREEZENREHNE -

LB RTEFRIFRITEEFN L I3
EEERNFEEMECIREMEL -

R-ZF—tF+— A=+ HEIHTES-

R-F—tF+—A-1+—AEZERHNTE

RZE-NFAA=ZARZEERINTEE-

BHE_Z—-\E+-_A=+—-HBRER_-Z
—+F+_A=Z+—HILFE BEEEK
EIREREFAHENLH - BE-ZT
—N\F+ZA=+—BRZZE—tF+=
A=1T—BLFE BRES/IN XEBEUE
BEREMATHBERFEFETHAS
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15. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the
year included four directors (2017: four), detail of whose
remuneration are set out in Note 14 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining one (2017: one)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

15. EEBEHMES

REAFE AEBZAEEEFHHMEESR
B (ZF—tF OR)ES HHM
HIFERN EXMIFI4 - FREB—F (ZF
—tF: - R)REHHER ZFMFEN

highest paid individual were as follows: ™
2018 2017
—E-N\F ZE—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Salaries and other benefits e kEMmET 1,260 1,260

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 31
December 2017, the remuneration of the highest paid
employee who is not the Directors fell within the band of
HK$1,000,000 to HK$2,000,000.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the five
highest paid employees as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. None
of the five highest paid employees waived any emoluments in
both years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

16. LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

16. BIRE#E

AEARRRAARGEREARRETE
BIAT I BUR BRI -

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FAIT
Loss &8
Loss for the year attributable to owners of the AU ESRERRE#E
Company for the purposes of basic and BBz ARREES A
diluted loss per share IR FANEE (1,545,435) (611,790)
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
'000 ‘000
T B% Fh&
Number of shares R EE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for FUAFTE GAYE A KL #58
the purposes of basic and diluted loss per [E518 2 TR hniE T 5 8
share 13,636,839 13,119,433

The computation of diluted loss per share for the years
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 does not assume i)
the exercise of the Company’s share options; and ii) the
conversion of the Company’s outstanding convertible bonds
since their assumed exercise or conversion would result in a
decrease in loss per share for the year which is regarded as
anti-dilutive.

HEHE T N\ER-ZE—+tF+=A
=S+—BUEFEZEREEEEN AR
TSR IR & i R KR A R 5
BERFANGREBRLD HERAAR
HEYE RUERRIAARZERED
BEATHE : RINAR B2 8 AR K al AR E 5
EER -
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

17. 9% -BERRE

Furniture and Motor Plant and Construction
Buildings fixtures vehicles  machinery in progress Total
BT HER#EE RE BEREE ERIE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL AL AT THET THET FET
COST B
At 1 January 2017 R-E—+F—H—H 969,291 11,588 24,124 203,358 19,514 1,227,875
Exchange adjustments i 5 A% 147,075 1,062 1,716 3,295 2,598 155,746
Acquired on acquisition of RISEEH B A AEEA
subsidiaries (Note 39) (B7539) 110,200 56 747 93,842 5,425 210,270
Additions NE 126,621 4,703 288 1,016 39,897 172,525
Transfer to inventory (Note) BREEE (i) - - - - (27,633) (27,633)
Disposal HE (641) (25) (1,115) (3,956) - (5,737)
Transfer B 23,241 = = 112 (23,353) -
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+&+-F=+—H 1375787 17,384 25,760 297,667 16,448 1,733,046
Exchange adjustments i 5 3% (110,104) (744) (1,113) (4,807) (846)  (117,614)
Additions RE - 340 12 10,641 19,016 30,009
Transfer to inventory (Note) BREEE (M) - - - = (15,188) (15,188)
Disposal HE - (1,433) (566) (12,389) S (14,388)
Transfer g 2,499 202 = 13,116 (15,817) -
At 31 December 2018 R-ZBE-NE+=ZA=+—H 1,268,182 15,749 24,093 304,228 3,613 1,615,865
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ZAHERAE
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—HF—H 881,227 4,885 21,585 125,156 - 1,032,853
Exchange adjustments Rk 74,125 478 1,586 6,751 = 82,940
Charge for the year FRYH 24,736 2,401 1,509 31,687 = 60,333
Eliminated on disposals o B 3 8 (641) (6) (988) (3,703) - (5,338)
At 31 December 2017 R-_Z—+F+-A=1+—H 979,447 7,758 23,692 159,891 - 1,170,788
Exchange adjustments ELRAE (62,502) (352) (1,070) (8,802) - (72,726)
Charge for the year FREH 44,967 1,872 1,093 30,682 = 78,614
Eliminated on disposals & B I8 - (242) (479) (2,816) - (3,537)
At 31 December 2018 R-ZB-NE+ZA=+—-H 961,912 9,036 23,236 178,955 - 1,173,139
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 December 2018 RZB-NE+ZA=+—-H 306,270 6,713 857 125,273 3,613 442,726
At 31 December 2017 R-_Z—+F+-A=+—H 396,340 9,626 2,068 137,776 16,448 562,258
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RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for
construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-line
basis at the following rates per annum:

Buildings Over the shorter of the term

of the lease, or 5%
Furniture and fixtures 20%
Motor vehicles 12.5%

Plant and machinery 5% —25%
At 31 December 2018, plant and machinery with
carrying values of approximately HK$74,150,000
(2017: HK$84,821,000) and buildings of approximately
HK$227,060,000 (2017: HK$224,204,000) have been
pledged to various banks and a financial institution in the
PRC to secure the Group’s borrowings (Note 41).

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2018, with the amount of
inventories approximately HK$15,188,000 (2017: HK$27,633,000),
the Group has changed its intention from held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services for administrative purposes to held
for sales in the ordinary course of business. Thus, the same amount
was reclassified from construction in progress of property, plant and
equipment to the finished goods of inventories.

Property, plant and equipment for
shipbuilding business segment

For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, the
Directors had considered that, after taking into account the
economic condition and industrial development prospect,
the gross operating loss incurred during both years
indicated impairment issue for the Group’s property, plant
and equipment in the shipbuilding business segment and
therefore conducted an impairment review on the carrying
amounts of the property, plant and equipment.
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment for
shipbuilding business segment (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, an impairment assessment was
carried out by the Directors. As a result of the assessment,
the Directors considered that no impairment on the
property, plant and equipment is required for the year
ended 31 December 2018, as their recoverable amounts,
were determined by the Directors based on the value-in-
use calculations, exceeded their carrying values as at 31
December 2018. The key assumptions for the value-in-use
calculations are those regarding the discount rates, growth
rate and the projected sales volume, selling prices and direct
costs used in the cash flow forecasts.

The Directors appointed an independent professional valuer,
BMI Appraisals Limited (“BMI Appraisals”), an independent
professional valuer not connected to the Group, to perform
a valuation on the property, plant and equipment as at
31 December 2017. No impairment loss was considered
necessary as the recoverable amount based on the valuation
report issued by BMI Appraisals, which exceeded the
aggregate carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
as at 31 December 2017. The value-in-use calculation is
based on a pre-tax discount rate of 16.35% and cash flow
projections prepared from financial forecasts approved by the
management of the Group, taking into account the current
economic condition and operation of shipbuilding industry.
Other key assumptions for the value-in-use calculations
relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which
include budgeted sales, gross margin and relevant facts and
circumstances related to the Group’s current situation. Such
estimation is based on the management’s expectations about
the Group’s shipbuilding business.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment for steel
structure engineering and installation
segment

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the property,
plant and equipment of approximately HK$132,126,000 was
recognised by the steel structure engineering and installation
business which represented the fair value of property, plant
and equipment of a former related company used to settle
the amount due from this former related company to the
Group (Note 49(ii)).

Applications for property ownership certificates of certain
buildings were still in progress and these property ownership
certificates had not been issued by the relevant government
authorities at 31 December 2017 and 2018. The aggregate
carrying amounts of those buildings at 31 December 2018 is
approximately HK$159,756,000 (2017: HK$178,385,000).
The Directors are of the opinion that the Group has acquired
the beneficial title to those buildings at 31 December 2017
and 2018, and the property ownership certificates can be
obtained in the near future.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Directors had
considered that, after taking into account the economic
condition and industrial development prospect, the gross
operating loss incurred during the year indicated impairment
issue for the Group’s property, plant and equipment in
the steel structure engineering and installation segment
and therefore conducted an impairment review on the
carrying amounts of the property, plant and equipment. An
impairment assessment was carried out by the Directors. As
a result of the assessment, the Directors considered that no
impairment (2017: No impairment) on the property, plant
and equipment is required for the year ended 31 December
2018, as their recoverable amounts, were determined by the
Directors based on the value-in-use calculations, exceeded
their carrying values as at 31 December 2018. The key
assumptions for the value-in-use calculations are those
regarding the discount rates, growth rate and the projected
sales volume, selling prices and direct costs used in the cash
flow forecasts.
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17.

(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment for intelligent
car parking and automotive device segment

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Directors had
considered that, after taking into account the economic
condition and industrial development prospect, the gross
operating loss incurred during the year indicated impairment
issue for the Group’s property, plant and equipment in
the intelligent car parking and automotive device segment
and therefore conducted an impairment review on the
carrying amounts of the property, plant and equipment. An
impairment assessment was carried out by the Directors. As
a result of the assessment, the Directors considered that no
impairment (2017: No impairment) on the property, plant
and equipment is required for the year ended 31 December
2018, as their recoverable amounts, were determined by the
Directors based on the value-in-use calculations, exceeded
their carrying values as at 31 December 2018. The key
assumptions for the value-in-use calculations are those
regarding the discount rates, growth rate and the projected
sales volume, selling prices and direct costs used in the cash
flow forecasts.

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Y- BE Kk ()
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18. REWE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Fair value A¥E

At 1 January n—HA—H 25,104 15,745
Exchange adjustments PE 5 58 & (1,697) 1,614
Additions (Note 49(i)) WE (KaE4903)) - 7,660
Disposal HE (1,493) (1,645)

Net change in fair value recognised REZERZ
in profit or loss N EESFE - 1,730
At 31 December Rt+t-—A=+—H 21,914 25,104
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18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

(CONTINUED)

The Group'’s properties interests held under operating leases
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
measured using the fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment properties.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group has
the beneficial interests of certain properties with aggregated
carrying values of approximately HK$21,914,000 (2017:
HK$25,104,000), which were located in Shandong Province
and Shanxi Province through the contractual arrangements
with certain property developers.

Fair value measurement of the Group’s
investment properties

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at
31 December 2017 has been arrived at on the basis of a
valuation carried out by Greater China Appraisal Limited
(“Greater China”), independent qualified professional
valuers, not connected to the Group.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. REWE (&)
(CONTINUED)
Fair value measurement of the Group’s AEERENMEZAFEFE
investment properties (Continued) (#&)
Details of the Group’s investment properties and information rEER-_ZE—-N\F+_A=+—HKZ
about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2018 and E—tF T _A=+—BZEBEVXEFE
31 December 2017 are as follows: RRAFEEFRERDT
Level 3 Fair value
E=ZBR AFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
2018 —E-NEF
Investment properties B 21,914 21,914
2017 —T—tF
Investment properties "EME 25,104 25,104
There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the Hz_Z—N\F+-_A=+—BEK=%
years ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017. —+F+-_A=+—HItFE BEF=
=R YNNG i
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements of BRI EMEE=—EBARNTERECER:

investment properties:

Valuation technique Key input Significant unobservable inputs Sensitivity

RERM TERAYE EATTBEBAR HEE

Direct comparison Recent sale price of comparable Rate of discount on quality of The higher the discount the lower the
properties, time factor and discount  properties fair value of properties
or premium on quality of properties

EE ATV ALBRNECTHER BRRRZ YEEEIHEX hEgE NEZATEYE

NRMEE B NENLE
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18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement of the Group’s
investment properties (Continued)

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 3 fair value

measurements of investment properties:

The fair values of investment properties are determined using
direct comparison approach assuming sale in its existing
state with the benefit of vacant possession and by reference
to comparable sales evidence or asking prices of comparable

properties as available in the relevant market.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of

18. REW= (&)

FEBRENMEZAFEHNE

(%)

KRENMEE=-ZERAFEFEMER 2
B+ M A BUR

KREMEZ A FEDERERLBUERR
MENERARIEHE YREHETH S
AESZABLBYEZAIELEHER
ENAEMETE

BRBUEEEZRENER=ERAFE

investment properties on recurring basis: FFECHEK:
Investment
properties
classified as
Level 3
PERAEZER
ZREME
HK$'000
FAT
At 1 January 2017 R=ZE—+F—H—H 15,745
Exchange adjustments I WA 1,614
Addition nE 7,660
Net increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss R IBZE PR 2 A F(EIEINEE 1,730
Disposal & (1,645)
At 31 December 2017 R-_ZE—tF+-A=+—H 25,104
Exchange adjustments ME 558 & (1,697)
Disposal & (1,493)
At 31 December 2018 R-ZF-N\F+=ZA=+—H 21,914
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"G BImMIRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE
18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. REW = (&)
(CONTINUED)
Fair value measurement of the Group’s AEERENMEZAFEFE
investment properties (Continued) (#&)
The above net increase in fair value recognised in FHRAFEEINFERGEESREME
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other MRz R ER FERREARIEE Y
comprehensive income and is attributable to the change in ZRFEEE-
fair value of investment properties at the end of the reporting
period.
19. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 19. {HERE
The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise: AEBZENEERERIE:
2018 2017
—E-N\E —tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Leasehold land in the PRC R EZHE T
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—RBAZEAEEAE 371,336 290,597
Exchange adjustments PE 3 (5,421) 27,051
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries LN EPNGIET N
(Note 39) (Kfa£39) - 62,342
Additions NE 1,697 -
Amortised during the year FNEEE (8,648) (8,654)
Impairment loss recognised EERREESE - -
Carrying amount at 31 December Rt A=+—HZEAE 358,964 371,336
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MEBREMNSITWT:
Non-current asset ERBEE 349,822 362,093
Current asset mENEE 9,142 9,243
358,964 371,336
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

19. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

(CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2018, the Group’s certain prepaid
lease payments with carrying value of approximately
HK$208,166,000 (2017: HK$221,799,000) have been
pledged to various banks to secure the Group’s borrowings
(Note 41).

Prepaid lease payments for shipbuilding
business segment

Application for land use right certificate of the lake located
in Xiaochao Lake Ruichang City Jiangxi Province (the
“Lake”) with aggregate carrying values of approximately
HK$143,766,000 (2017: HK$149,537,000) was still in
progress and the land use right certificate had not been
issued to the Group by the relevant government authorities at
31 December 2018. The Lake is amortised over its estimated
useful life of 50 years (2017: 50 years) on a straight-line
basis.

The Directors are of the opinion that the Group has acquired
the beneficial interest of the Lake at the end of the reporting
period, and the land use right certificate can be obtained
upon the settlement of the purchase consideration.

For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, the
Directors, after taking into account the economic condition
and industrial development prospect, had considered
that the gross operating loss incurred by the shipbuilding
segment during both years indicated impairment issue for
the Group’s prepaid lease payments and therefore conducted
an impairment review on the carrying amounts of prepaid
lease payments for the shipbuilding segment.

19. AN HEER
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EA_::—/\¢+—H:+—EI *ZMEIBE
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19. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

(CONTINUED)

Prepaid lease payments for shipbuilding
business segment (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, an impairment assessment was
carried out by the Directors. As a result of the assessment,
the Directors considered that no impairment on the prepaid
lease payments is required for the year ended 31 December
2018, as their recoverable amounts, were determined by the
Directors based on the value-in-use calculations, exceeded
their carrying values as at 31 December 2018. The key
assumptions for the value-in-use calculations are those
regarding the discount rates, growth rate and the projected
sales volume, selling prices and direct costs used in the cash
flow forecasts.

The Directors appointed an independent professional valuer,
BMI Appraisals, to perform a valuation on the prepaid lease
payments at 31 December 2017. No impairment loss was
considered necessary as the recoverable amount based
on the valuation report issued by BMI Appraisals, which
exceeded the carrying amount of prepaid lease payments as
at 31 December 2017. The recoverable amount is calculated
by comparison approach assuming sale with the benefit of
vacant possession and by making reference to comparable
sales evidences as available in the relevant market. Other
key assumptions for the prepaid lease payments valuation
relate to (i) the property is sold in the market without the
benefit of deferred terms contract, leaseback, joint venture,
management agreement or any other similar arrangement;
(ii) no account has been taken of any option or right of pre-
emption concerning or effecting the sale of the property
and no forced sale situation in any manner; and (iii) the
proper legal title of the property is in possession and the
property could be transferred freely in the market at no extra
land premium or other onerous payment payable to the
government.
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19. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

(CONTINUED)

Prepaid lease payments for steel structure
engineering and installation segment

Application for land use right certificates of certain prepaid
lease payments for steel structure engineering and
installation segment were still in progress and these land use
right certificates had not been issued to the Group by the
relevant government authorities as at 31 December 2017
and 2018. The prepaid lease payments are amortised over its
estimated useful life of 50 years on a straight-line basis.

The Directors are of the opinion that the Group has acquired
the beneficial title to those buildings as at 31 December
2018, and the land use right certificates can be obtained in
the near future.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Directors, after
taking into account the economic condition and industrial
development prospect, had considered that the gross
operating loss incurred by the steel structure engineering and
installation segment during the year ended 31 December
2018 indicated impairment issue for the Group’s prepaid
lease payments and therefore conducted an impairment
review on the carrying amounts of prepaid lease payments
for the steel structure engineering and installation segment.

As at 31 December 2018, an impairment assessment was
carried out by the Directors. As a result of the assessment,
the Directors considered that no impairment (2017: No
impairment) on the prepaid lease payments is required for
the year ended 31 December 2018, as their recoverable
amounts, were determined by the Directors based on the
value-in-use calculations, exceeded their carrying values as
at 31 December 2018. The key assumptions for the value-
in-use calculations are those regarding the discount rates,
growth rate and the projected sales volume, selling prices
and direct costs used in the cash flow forecasts.
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19. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

(CONTINUED)

Prepaid lease payments for intelligent car
parking and automotive device segment

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Directors,
after taking into account the economic condition and
industrial development prospect, had considered that the
gross operating loss incurred by the intelligent car parking
and automotive device segment during the year ended
31 December 2018 indicated impairment issue for the
Group’s prepaid lease payments and therefore conducted
an impairment review on the carrying amounts of prepaid
lease payments for the intelligent car parking and automotive
device segment.

As at 31 December 2018, an impairment assessment was
carried out by the Directors. As a result of the assessment,
the Directors considered that no impairment (2017: No
impairment) on the prepaid lease payments is required for
the year ended 31 December 2018, as their recoverable
amounts, were determined by the Directors based on the
value-in-use calculations, exceeded their carrying values as
at 31 December 2018. The key assumptions for the value-
in-use calculations are those regarding the discount rates,
growth rate and the projected sales volume, selling prices
and direct costs used in the cash flow forecasts.
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are disclosed in Note 40 to the consolidation financial

statements.

¥R FEA0

20. GOODWILL 20. 58
HK$'000
FHET

COST B
At 1 January 2017 R-—Z—+F—H—H 188,057
Exchange adjustments ME 578 & 3,678
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 39) I BB B A ml ke BE A (B47239) 86,488
At 31 December 2017 RZBE—+tFE+=ZA=+—H 278,223
Exchange adjustments PE 5 58 & (10,850)
At 31 December 2018 R=ZB-NF+=ZHA=+—H 267,373
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT 25 RE
At 1 January 2017 Rn-—Z—+F—H—H 64,483
Exchange adjustments b H 5 (9,176)
Impairment loss recognised ERRAEERE 40,771
At 31 December 2017 RZBE—+tFE+=A=+—H 96,078
Exchange adjustments PE 5 58 & (1,601)
Impairment loss recognised BERRREEHE 69,740
At 31 December 2018 R=ZB-NFE+ZA=+—H 164,217
CARRYING VALUES IREE
At 31 December 2018 R-E-N\E+=-A=+—H 103,156
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+_A=+—H 182,145
Particular regarding impairment testing on goodwill EAEERENRZFBREREENT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

/ ~.
21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 21. B EE
Contracted and
uncontracted
customer
relationships Licenses Patents
(Note (a)) (Note (b)) (Note (c)) Software Total
2R
RATWNZ
EFBR A =i
(HiEt() (it (b)) (Hit(e)) L @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT FTHEL AL THT FTET
COST RA
At 1 January 2017 R-E—+F—H—H 1,625,149 249,000 - - 1,874,149
Exchange adjustments ERAE 128,105 (2,224) 2,247 = 128,128
Acquired on acquisition of G- 10)=IAE |53 N
subsidiaries (Note 39) (F#:£39) = = 36,276 = 36,276
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+=-A=1+—H 1,753,254 246,776 38,523 - 2,038,553
Addition NE - - - 8 8
Exchange adjustments AR (87,743) (5,100) (815) - (93,658)
At 31 December 2018 W-®-NET-A=t-A _ 1665511 241,676 37,708 8 1944903
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION Z&t#8H K rE
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2017 R-E—+F—H—H 1,625,149 43,160 - - 1,668,309
Exchange adjustments [ERAE 128,105 351 82 = 128,538
Amortisation for the year FREH = 39,484 1,887 = 41,371
Impairment loss recognised BRERREEE = 16,925 = = 16,925
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+&F+-A=1+—H 1,753,254 99,920 1,969 - 1,855,143
Exchange adjustments ERAE (87,743) (6,200) (222) - (94,165)
Amortisation for the year FREHE = 37,450 3,601 2 41,053
Impairment loss recognised EERREESR - 10,000 16,000 - 26,000
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NF+ZA=1+-H 1,665,511 141,170 21,348 2 1,828,031
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NF+ZA=1+-H - 100,506 16,360 6 116,872
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+-A=1+—H - 146,856 36,554 - 183,410
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

22

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Contracted and uncontracted customer relationships was arising
from the acquisition of INPAX Technology Limited and its subsidiaries
(collectively known as the “INPAX Group”) during the year ended 31
December 2008 and are amortised over its estimated useful life of 10
years on a straight-line basis. The balance had been fully impaired
during the year ended 31 December 2010.

Intelligent car parking manufacturing licenses was arising from the
acquisition of Success Capture Limited during the year ended 31
December 2015.

Licenses are amortised over its estimated useful life of 6.25 years on a
straight-line basis.

A patent represented “a type of trapped-rail running gear” was arising
from the acquisition of Nantong Huakai Heavy Industry Company
Limited (“Huakai Heavy”) during the year ended 31 December 2017
(Note 39).

Patents are amortised over its estimated useful life of 14.67 years on a
straight-line basis.

. ,\\\ﬁ/ﬁé (?ﬁﬁ)

Htaz -

(a) BEHIRKRTHZEFBEARBEE=-TZEN
F+=F=+—HILF/EUEEINPAX Technology
Limited 5% E. Ff1 /8 22 @] (5578 [INPAXEE B ) if 22
£ LA B A 51 A (& FH F B 10 12 B AR L #E 4
ZEBERBE T —TFF+-A=+—HIF
FEREEE -

(b) BEEEBRAEFIAREZ-_T—AF1T=A
=+—HIEFEHFESuccess Capture Limited B
fFe

A% & FF A LA B AL & AT (% 4 B0 25F IR B AVE
#i-

() ZFEFERBE-FT—t+tF+-A=+—HIF
BWERBENETHRAR ([FHET]) A
feay [—EEBTERE] (F:E39) -

BREFIAR (G5t AT AFRI14.67F I EAE
#i-

Particular regarding impairment testing on intangible assets
are disclosed in Note 40 to the consolidated financial

statements.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

22. RIE R T

ZEm

FRBEVEERBAAZHBRENGS
B 7 $RR P 240

Details of the Group's interests in associates are as follows: REFRBES AR ZERFBEOT:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Unlisted cost of investment in associates REEE QR 2 IEETIRE KA 225,901 225901
Share of post-acquisition profits DG UEE & B T (9,961) 25,131
Share of translation reserve of associates SR E N R 2 MBS (17,368) (3,635)
Share of other reserve of associates DL E N R 2 A EE 2,522 2,522
201,094 249,919
Amount due from an associate — non-current & Ug — R B & A &) FRIE
portion (Note 1) —JERVERER > (BfaED) 5,805 6,110
Amount due from an associate within a year ~— — & E Y — B B & A R 4,560 4,800
Amounts due to associates within a year —FRE T R B FIE (16,920) (15,159)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 22. REE T 2R (4E)
(CONTINUED)
As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, amounts RZE—-NFF+_A=+—Bk=ZF—
due from (to) associates are unsecured, interest free and F+-—A=+—H8 ER(BEE QA
repayable on demand. HAEER RENEREREE-
Note 1: The balance represented secured deposit for borrowings from BiiaEl - ZAESREREBENREREZEHHEFH
associates (Note 32(iv)). (HtaE32(iv) ) °
Details of the Group’s material associates at the end of the AEBMEBHERNANHERR ZFBLN
reporting period are as follow: N
Place of Proportion of
incorporation/ ownership interests/
Principal place Group's effective interest Proportion of voting
Name of entities of operation held by the Group rights held by the Group Principal activities
KEERERE
ERmALY  BER/AREEREZ KBS
BERAH TEEENY te REELA FTEER
2018 2017 2018 2017
ZEB-\E |ZF—tF [ZB-N\E |[ZT—+tF
Zhejiang Ocean Leasing Company Limited PRC/PRC 20% 20% 20% 20% Finance leasing business
(“Zhejiang Ocean”) HRE/HE BEHELER
HDEFHERMERAR (THDEF])
Zhoushan Ocean Leasing Company Limited PRC/PRC 20% 20% 20% 20% Finance leasing business
(“Zhoushan Ocean”)* HE/ REMEEHR
FUEFREERERAR
(TALgE])
Zhoushan Fishing Development Services PRC/PRC 7% 7% 7% 7% Qcean fishery industry and
Company Limited (“Zhoushan Fishing")* HE,/h providing shipyard finance
FUEFAEERREERAA leasing
([ALRE] BARAERRANBRERE
Zhejiang Ocean Lihe Capital Management PRC/PRC 9% 9% 9% 9% Asset management business
Company Limited (“Zhejiang Line")* I/ REEEEY
MIEENEEAERERAE
(MIHED >
Beijing ZhongShou Intelligent Parking PRC/PRC 25.24% 25.24% 25.24% 25.24% Investment and management of
Management Company Limited HRE car parks
IRPEEEEEERERAA BREREEEFES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

22. NIt E N E 2R (&)

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
(CONTINUED)

Place of Proportion of
incorporation/ ownership interests/
Principal place Group's effective interest Proportion of voting
Name of entities of operation held by the Group rights held by the Group Principal activities
rEBFAHE
EMRLNE EED AREERER rEEfE
EREE TEEERY 4] BREELH TEEYR
2018 2017 2018 2017
ZE-\E |ZE—+F [ZB-N\E [ZT—+tF
Qiandao Financial Leasing Company Limited ~ PRC/PRC - - - - Finance leasing business
(“Qiandao Financial Leasing”) (Note ¢) HE/F HEMERH
MITEREREERAA
([Tepanrsgl) (M)
Nantong Xiangyu Ocean Equipment Company ~ PRC/PRC 24% 24% 27% 27% Shipbuilding, shipping logistics,
Limited (“Nantong Xiangyu") (Note b) HmE (Note b) (Note b)  leasing of ports, shipbuilding
ERRESFEREREMLA (#fzb) | (H15Eb)  financial leasing
([FBREL) (Fztp) B R HEED  Eh
BEME
China Ocean Intelligent Equipment PRC/PRC 40% 40% 20% 20% Research and develop intelligent
Manufacturing (Shenzhen) Company Limited R El,/# (Note d) (Note d)  equipment, automate
(“China Ocean Intelligent Equipment”) (Bfd) | (B:#d)  equipment, industrial robot;
(Notes a & d) import and export business
REE R EERE (RINERAR MEgwiE adRE T2
([ha8akE]) (Mitakd) BBEANELOER
Jiangxi Yihangcheng Port Logistics Company ~ PRC/PRC 36% 36% 36% 36% Port logistics business
Limited (“Jiangxi Yihang”) (Note a) HE/ EONRER
IEEREEONRERAR
(DIAEMI) (Kzta)
JiuJiang BaoPu Assets Management Company ~ PRC/PRC 20% 20% 20% 20% Asset management business
Limited (“JiuJiang BaoPu’) (Note a) HE/ BEEEEHR
NIBEEEERERAR
(ThI#l) (Kata)
Zhoushan Sea Rent New Energy Company PRC/PRC 20% 20% 20% 20% Technology invention of new types
Limited (“Zhoushan Sea Rent")* (Notea) B/ of energy business
FILEEERERAF MERRIREES
(TALgR]) 7 (Hita)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
(CONTINUED)

*

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Zhoushan Fishing and Zhejiang Lihe are associates of Zhejiang Ocean

Zhoushan Ocean and Zhoushan Sea Rent are wholly-owned
subsidiaries of Zhejiang Ocean

Those associates were newly incorporated/acquired during the year
ended 31 December 2017.

According to the shareholder agreement of Nantong Xiangyu, China
Ocean Industry (Shenzhen) Company Limited, an indirect wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, has 27% proportion of voting rights
of Nantong Xiangyu.

In January 2017, Merge Limited, the wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, has disposed of its 25% equity interest in Qiandao
Financial Leasing to an independent third party at a consideration
of approximately HK$29,118,000. The consideration was settled by
offsetting the other borrowing from that independent third party to the
Group. (Note 49(iii)).

The disposal of Qiandao Financial Leasing is accounted for as a
disposal of an associate, and resulted in a loss of approximately
HK$1,215,000 in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income during the year ended 31 December 2017,
calculated as follows:

22. NIE R T

Fitat -

(a)

(b)

(c)

Z iR (

el
0

FHLUB R RAT N & BT EF 2 E RN A

FHLEE RAHL G RATEE 2 2 BB A
a]

ZEBRERFARBE_FT—tF+-_A=+—
H L FE# ML W -

WRIEF BRI RE 3% - A AR 2 EIER BN
BRAIFEET (FY)BRAA]ZH AR
27% I E W o

RZF—+tF— A AREI2BENBRAFEEE
BAGBIA—EBULE=THEARFEREH
B25%m R HE - (B4 /529,118,000 7T - % £
EBEBBHAZBUE= R AEENHME
B m A8 (KaE49(ii)) -

HETBRABREEIELE— BB EAT
BHAE =T+ A=+ — B
£ 182 R A f 2 MK 3 FAEADAS18491,215,000
BT BT

HK$'000

FHIT

Fair value of consideration received BRREZRAFE 29,118
Less: Carrying amount of 25% equity interest of Qiandao ~ J&l: T &R A E25% 5 MR EE

Financial Leasing (30,333)

Loss recognised BEREE (1,215)

According to the shareholder agreement of China Ocean Intelligent
Equipment, China Ocean Industry (Shenzhen) Company Limited, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has 20% proportion
of voting rights of China Ocean Intelligent Equipment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 22. A& NT 2= (18)
(CONTINUED)
Summarised financial information of BENTRZHBERBE
associates
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s AEEFZHERNR M BERBEEHR
material associates are set out below. The summarised TX - TXEIN 2T EERBRERBRESR
financial information below represents amounts shown in the BB RS ERREAEE ARG B W
associates’ financial statements prepared in accordance with KHSREHE-
HKFRSs.
Set out below is the summarised financial information for FRAEREAR B E A MBEERBE
associates which is accounted for using the equity method. £ NN

Consolidated

Nantong Xiangyu Zhejiang Ocean
BAERE REMIEE
2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-N\E| ZZ+F| ZB-NF| —ET+F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TR TET
Current assets mENEE 1,363,947 274,369 655,832 1,693,329
Non-current assets EMENEE 778,063 683,709 3,400,738 2317917
Current liabilities mENAE (1,905,882) (662,012) (2,182,698) (1,843,457)
Non-current liabilities EMEBEE (202,159) (120,000) (1,020,009) (1,291,941)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

(CONTINUED)

Summarised financial information of

associates (Continued)

22. RE R R 2w ()

BREARZUBENMRE (F)

Consolidated

Nantong Xiangyu Zhejiang Ocean
el RAWILER
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\E ZT—tF —BE-\E ZT—t+F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET TER TET
Revenue Wz 1,119,940 331,340 241,651 236,273
(Loss) profit for the year FR(EE)ZF (137,971) (61,270) 22,572 93,724
Other comprehensive (expenses) FREME2E (FAX)
income for the year Wz (4,125) (2,664) (53,180) 10,718
Total comprehensive (expenses) income  FRE2ME (FAXX)
for the year W 4858 (142,096) (63,934) (30,608) 104,442
Dividends received from associates FABWEERT 2
during the year & 2 - - - -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

22.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 22. REE QT 2R (8)
(CONTINUED)
Summarised financial information of BERNT2HBERBE (&)
associates (Continued)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information LB EEREEERYBRERER 2R
to the carrying amount of the interests in associates BN Al 2w s REERER

recognised in the financial statements:

Consolidated

Nantong Xiangyu Zhejiang Ocean
EpEEL REMITEE
2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-N\F| TtE| ZB-NF| ZT-t%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TET THT
Net assets BEFE 33,969 176,066 853,863 875,848
Unpaid registered capital KEGERER = = 152,455 160,479
33,969 176,066 1,006,318 1,036,327
Proportion of the Group's AEE A REERLD
ownership interest 24% 24% 20% 20%
Unpaid registered capital by the Group ~ RNEE K& E A - - (46,980) (46,860)
Exchange adjustments B R - = 13 13
Goodwil B - - 640 640
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest ~ AEEEZH 7 REE 8,152 42 256 154,937 161,058
During the year ended 31 December 2018, Merge Limited, HE_Z2—N\F+ZA=+T—HILFE"
the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, had unpaid ARBZEEMBARREBRATAR
registered capital of USD6 million (2017: USD6 million) to S T8 2 #E & 786,000,000 7T
Zhejiang Ocean. (ZZF—+%:6,000,000%7T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
(CONTINUED)

Aggregate information of associates that are

not individually material

22. Rk

:!u!s

=

DAz ER

&)

BRIFEEBRE AR ZERER

2018 2017
—E-N\F ZE—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
The Group’s share of loss REBDIREE (6,493) (2,348)
The Group’s share of other comprehensive AEES(HEMEERE
income (expenses) (%) (2,107) 1,605
The Group's share of total comprehensive REBHEE2E (AX)
(expenses) income Wes4aEs (8,600) (743)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s AEERZEBERNRZ
interests in these associates M7 BEREE 38,005 46,605
23. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 23. REELEER
Details of the Group's interests in joint ventures are as AEEREEDECERFRIOT
follows:
2018 2017
—EBE-—N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Unlisted cost of investments in joint ventures NG ETERE ZIELTAAR 502,578 502,578
Share of post-acquisition profits, DA IR E = A -
net of dividends received kR B Wiz B (472,170) (18)
Share of translation reserve of joint ventures NiheELE I RERKE (24,877) (16,580)
5,531 485,980
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ImE B IRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE
23. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 23. REBLEIER (&)
(CONTINUED)
Details of each of the Group’s joint ventures at the end of the AEEZSEEERNMERRZFBOT
reporting period are as follow:

Place of Proportion of
incorporation/ ownership interests/
Principal place Group's effective interest Proportion of voting
Name of entities of operation held by the Group rights held by the Group  Principal activities
R ve 1y *EEFAEHE *EEfR
ERER TEEERY ERE/ AEEERERLA REELA FTEEY
2018 2017 2018 2017
ZE-N\F |22 +F |ZB-N\F | T +F
Zhoushan Investment Fund (Note a) PRC/PRC 78.74% 78.74% 33.33% 33.33% Equity investment using its own
Rl ER % (Hzta) e capital fund and provision of
management consultancy services
and consultancy services for
setting up enterprises
MAHBRETESETRIERE
REHERFARBI KRR L
RAREEARE
Jiangxi Yan Jiang Industrial Development PRC/PRC 20.79% 20.79% 40% 40% Equity investment using its own
Venture Investment Enterprise HE/h capital fund and provision of
(“Jiangxi Yan Jiang") (Note b) management consultancy services
IENIERERAZRERE and consultancy services for
(DI#®L]) (Kab) setting up enterprises
MAEBRETE R EITRER?
REHEEZAREA RN
RAREFARS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

23. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

Pursuant to a joint venture agreement entered into between an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and two joint venture
partners on 6 August 2014 in relation to the establishment of a joint
venture company, Zhoushan Investment Fund, the Group contributed
RMB400 million to Zhoushan Investment Fund, which represented
78.74% of the equity interests in Zhoushan Investment Fund. Under
the joint venture agreement, all acquisitions and disposals of significant
investments of Zhoushan Investment Fund require the consent and
approval from all joint venture parties. The Directors are of the opinion
that Zhoushan Investment Fund is therefore classified as joint venture
of the Group.

Pursuant to a joint venture agreement entered into between two
indirect non-wholly subsidiaries of the Company and one joint venture
partner on 18 March 2016 in relation to the formation of a joint venture
company, Jiangxi Yan Jiang. Under the joint venture agreement, all
acquisitions and disposals of significant investments of Jiangxi Yan
Jiang require the consent and approval from all joint venture parties.
The Directors are of the opinion that Jiangxi Yan Jiang is therefore
classified as joint venture of the Group.

Summarised financial information of joint
ventures

The summarised financial information below represents

amounts shown in the joint ventures’ financial statements

prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

23. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 23. REBLEIER (&)
(CONTINUED)
Summarised financial information of joint SELECUBERNYE (&)
ventures (Continued)
Set out below is the summarised financial information TXHIILEREARZEECE VB
for joint ventures which is accounted for using the equity ERBE -
method.
Zhoushan Investment Fund Jiangxi Yan Jiang
RLBRELE pIiich pal
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\§ —E—+F —E-N\§ ZT—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TET FET
Current assets MEEE 3,643 93,755 5 243
Non-current assets EMENEE = 600,000 49,020 51,600
Current liabilities MENEE (3,771) (84,155) - -
Non-current liabilities ERBEE - - - =
The above amounts of assets and TEENEBESE
liabilities include the following: BETHEIE:
Cash and cash equivalents RehkReEED 1,978 2,231 5 243
Current financial liabilities (excluding nEEREE
trade and other payables and (TBIEES R
provisions) H b e IE R
B 1E) - (178) = =
Non-current financial liabilities EnEBemas
(excluding trade and (TBIEES R
other payables and provisions) E M RIE R
) - - - -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

23. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

Summarised financial information of joint
ventures (Continued)

23. R

PN
=]

iR (

)

BELRMBENEE (F)

Zhoushan Investment Fund
RLURELE
Year ended 31 December

BZE+-A=t+-HLEE

Jiangxi Yan Jiang
TERT

2018 2017 2018 2017

—E-N\E& Sl of 2 —E-N\E T —+tF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

TER THET TER FTAET

Revenue Yz - - - -

(Loss) profit for the year FR(BR)&EF (599,572) 453 (233) 3
Other comprehensive (expenses) FREMZE (FAX)UaE

income for the year (10,156) 13,602 (1,933) 27,359
Total comprehensive (expenses) FREE(AY) W

income for the year (609,728) 14,055 (2,166) 27,362

Dividends receivable from the FRREKAELEZRE
joint venture during the year - 58,236 - -
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23. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(CONTINUED)

Summarised financial information of joint

ventures (Continued)

The above (loss) profit for the year includes the following:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

23. AR (E)

BELEMBENRE (&)

bR (BE) SN/ ATEIE:

Zhoushan Investment Fund

RURELE

Jiangxi Yan Jiang
IEET

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+-HLEE

2018 2017 2018 2017

—¥-NF| —TtF| =B-NF| ZTLF

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TET TER TR

Depreciation and amortisation mEREE - - _ _
Interest income LM A 53,285 6 115 6
Interest expense FERX - = = =
Income tax expense FERFEX - = = =
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS FEERRMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE
23. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 23. AR (8)

(CONTINUED)

Summarised financial information of joint

ventures (Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information
to the carrying amount of the interest in joint ventures

recognised in the financial statements:

BELXIUMBEMBRE (/)

M BEEREE RN S REER R
AADEEFOREELNE:

Zhoushan Investment Fund

Jiangxi Yan Jiang

RUBRELE PP
2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-N\E| ZEtE| ZB-NE| ZF—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET THET FET
Net (liabilities) assets (BEFR)EEFE (128) 609,600 49,025 51,843
Unpaid registered capital REEMER - = 525,861 554,064
Net assets attributable to owners BAAEGZ
BEFE - 609,600 574,886 605,907
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REE B RER
interest £l 78.74% 78.74% 20.79% 20.79%
Unpaid registered capital AEERGEMER
by the Group (Note a) (Ktiza) - - (114,000) (120,000)
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest ~ AEE % 7 REE - 479,999 5,531 5,981
Notes: Bt et -

(a) During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group had unpaid
registered capital of RMB104,720,000 (2017: RMB104,720,000) to
Jiangxi Yan Jiang.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

24. INVENTORIES 24. FE

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Raw materials FRAF 90,512 54,075
Work in progress =8 215,921 40,670
Finished goods BURK o 20,740 40,243
327,173 134,988

Note: R

At 31 December 2017, finished goods of inventories of approximately
HK$8,904,000 have been pledged to a financial institution in the PRC to
secure the Group’s borrowing (Note 41).

According to the arbitral awards dated 27 December
2018 (“Arbitral Awards”) issued by the London Maritime
Arbitrators Association (“Arbitrators Association”), the
Arbitration Association has made awards in favor of the
customer under the relevant shipbuilding contracts in
relation to the four vessels (“Shipbuilding Contracts”), the
Shipbuilding Contracts had been rescinded and the cost of
sales incurred in relation to the four vessels of approximately
HK$1,012,678,000 had been reversed during the year
ended 31 December 2018. The cost incurred previously
in relation to the four vessels had been recognised as
inventories of the Group of approximately HK$213,519,000,
net of written down of inventories of approximately
HK$799,159,000 as at 31 December 2018.

RZF—+F+=F=+—H" #8904,000/ T2 17
BB T —RIFPES mEE  ERAEEER
(KtaE41) »

BEARBEEFHEERS ([FHER
e )EGAPRA-SE—N\F+_A=-++
BzMmEBEHEA(THEZER]) HHE
HEREEBEEMMZEBERE LD
(MEMENDBHZEPBF EMELN
ERE R EEMMEENEER AL
1,012,678,0008 TEREEZE T — \F
FTZA=FT—BIEFEHRER - RN
F+ZA=+—8 " kAt OEMmMHEED
PRAE R AN EBFE#213,519,000%
70 B BT EMUR 47799,159,0007% 7T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

25. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES/ 25. S EWFIER EWEE 1R
DEPOSITS/OTHER RECEIVABLES/ ® HihEWRE FBNARE
PREPAYMENT

2018 2017

—E-N\EF Tt F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Trade receivables — non-current portion B 5 RWEIE-FERB D - 1,391

Trade receivables — current portion B S RWEIE-REEH 186,407 215,147

Bills receivables fE E 15 - 1,214

Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEEEE (4,135) (4,135)
Trade and bills receivables — current portion B 5 W FIE K B R E

—mENEB D 182,272 212,226

Total trade and bills receivables, net of allowance 2B 5 & W 5k 18 & fEI Z 15

for credit losses (Note a) wEE (kR EEEEEE)

(Ktzta) 182,272 213,617
Other receivables (Note b) E b e YR IE (K aEb ) 521,723 280,047
Value-added tax recoverable Ak Bl 3E B 7 IE 72,535 139,633
Amounts due from the former shareholders of  FEUY — &M B A &)

a subsidiary (Note c) BIERR 3R 2 7038 (M atc) 270,935 264,102
Deposit paid for the construction BENEEES 19,380 22 581
Deposits placed to agents and a stakeholder MRE R —E M=

(Note d) A FER (MiEd) 7,584 26,330

892,157 732,693
Less: Allowance for credit losses W EEEERE (143,690) (23,690)
Other receivables, net of allowance for H b e R IE

credit losses (I EEHERE) 748,467 709,003

Prepayment (Note e) TAfTFRIA (Kite) 191,751 271,458
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & & —

25. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES/
DEPOSITS/OTHER RECEIVABLES/
PREPAYMENT (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a)

25. EZ EWE

e B MRMEE
F-NEtZAS+-ALEE

RIENEWREE &
(\ﬁéz\f&@q&zﬁlﬁ/fﬁ'ﬁ%}\lﬁ

WHiaz -
At 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the Group’s trade (a) RZF—NF+ZA=1+—HR=ZF—+tF+=
receivables include (1) trade receivables from factoring services with A= + H REE 2 B S ERFIARIE)RE
one year credit period; (2) trade receivables from intelligent car parking REIR%EZ BSEWFE (EEHA—F) (2
and automotive device business with average 90 days credit period: FHEEFEERAEEFER B ZERNE
and (3) retention receivables for intelligent car parking with range from (‘FHEEHAOX)  RI)VEASERE EE’]A@%
one to two years under the respective terms of contract; and (4) trade WIRE £ (IRIFIFE S A BRI —ZImF)
receivables from steel structure engineering and installation with 30 RAMEETIERZREZENFTE (58
days credit period. B AR30K) -
At 31 December 2018, trade receivables are non-interest bearing, R-F—N\F+-A=+—H BZEKRFEL
except for trade receivables from factoring services with aggregated T&t B EREREREZ B S EINKFIE LT
amount of HK$4,184,000 (2017: HK$4,920,000) which bear interest 4,184,000/ 7T ( =F—+1F : 4,920,000/ T ) 1%
rate of 12% (2017: 12%) per annum. FFRIEKIZH (ZF—LF:12% )i E -
The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills receivables, net of T AREE L BE X HH 25 & S REK
allowance for credit losses, presented based on contract date/delivery B RERZR (HkEEEREE) RIRER
date at the end of the reporting periods: K2R
2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAET
0-90 days 0—90K 42,205 156,508
More than 90 days but not exceeding one year HBAOKRET BB —F 34,572 42,227
In more than one year HBiE—F 105,495 14,882
182,272 213,617
At 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the aging analysis of RZZE—N\F+_A=+—HBEK=ZT—+tF+=
trade and bills receivables that was past due but not impaired are as A=+—B BAaHERREZE S EEGRIER
follows: BRERZERRIITET
Past due but not impaired
ERHBERRE
Neither
past due nor More than
Total impaired 1-30 days 31-60 days 61-90 days 90 days
BRBH
@t RRRE 1308 31600 612900 90R Bk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FET THT FHT
At 31 December 2017 “Z—+5+-A=1+-H 213,617 172,229 855 11,926 15,958 12,649
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

=+ ral
25. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES/ 25. B ENRIEREWEE &
= =+
DEPOSITS/OTHER RECEIVABLES/ € HbEWREE FE M FOE
A— —
PREPAYMENT (CONTINUED) (&)
Notes: (Continued) Kiat: (48)
(a) The Directors considered no impairment loss was recognised on trade (a) EFRAR=_F-NF+ZA=+—HAK=F
and bills receivables that were past due as at 31 December 2018 and —tF+—A=+—HEBAHZEZENKE
31 December 2017. The Group did not hold any collateral over these R JEW R 1R S R AR (BT 18 o N SR B A%
balances. FRBFEEMEHASG-
Movement in the allowance for credit losses for trade and bills B SN IR ERE RS BEEEREZ ZE) -
receivables:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
At 1 January ®—A—H 4,135 801
Acquisition on subsidiaries U B B /BB R ) - 3,207
Reversal of impairment loss B ERERE - (77)
Exchange adjustments & H - 204
At 31 December W+=-—A=+—~” 4,135 4,135
At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s trade receivables were RIFeHIAR - N5 B B 5 [EN TR REAE | E
individually determined to be impaired. AE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

25. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES/
DEPOSITS/OTHER RECEIVABLES/
PREPAYMENT (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(c)

At 31 December 2018, other receivables mainly represents:

(i) At 31 December 2018, the amount mainly represents the non-
refundable deposit paid to a property developer for acquisition
of certain carparks for re-sales purpose of approximately
HK$68,400,000 (2017: HK$66,600,000) (RMBGE0,000,000)
which located in the PRC with the total consideration of
approximately HK$149,511,000 (2017: HK$145,577,000)
(RMB131,150,000).

(ii) As at 31 December 2017, dividend receivables
of approximately HK$60,083,000 (approximately
RMB50,069,000) was attributed from Zhoushan Investment
Fund. The balance has been off-set with the payable to
Zhoushen Investment Fund during the year ended 31
December 2018.

(iii) Movement in the allowance for credit losses for other

25. BEZ BWRER BN RE &

(\ﬁ/)ﬁi\ﬂﬁ@%%ﬁtlﬁ/ﬁﬁ%ﬁtlﬁ

Ftet: (&)
(b) RZF-NF+—A=+—H HMEKRZKEE

215

(i) RZFE—NF+=ZA=+—H Z=28H
F BRI A B 4149,511,000% 7T
(= F—+%:145577,00087T) (AR
#131,150,0007T ) W BB U R B 2 5 F
FAEBENEEE N —BZYERLEE
2 T A iR 38 1% % #968,400,0005% T (=
T —+4F 166,600,000/ L) (AR
60,000,0007T )

(il  RZF—+F+-A=1+—H BKKE
#960,083,000;% 7T ( #IA K #50,069,000
TL)REALBELZE - REE=F—N
F+-A=Z+—HILFE ZiEHEHE
JEISAHLIR B 1R 3B 3 -

(i) EAERFIR I BB RBEEEE:

receivables:
2018 2017
—2-n% e
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FTT
At 1 January »—A—8 23,690 15,622
Exchange adjustments S - 1,697
Acquisition on subsidiaries U BE B B A 7 - 6,371
Impairment loss recognised EERBERE 120,000 =
At 31 December R+-—A=+—A” 143,690 23,690

As at 31 December 2018, approximately HK$229,527,000 (2017:
HK$217,800,000) included in the amounts due from the former
shareholders of a subsidiary of approximately HK$270,935,000
(2017: HK$264,100,000) represented the amount under the counter
guarantee which were to be provided by the Vendors of Huakai Heavy
in favour of the Group under the Acquisition to indemnify the Group for
all losses arising from the corporate guarantee referred to in Note 45 to
the consolidated financial statements.

(c)

R-FE—NF+-_A=1+—08 EK—FHE
2 A BT E AR B 2 3K IH 49270,935,000/8 7T ( = F
— - 4F : 264,100,000/ it ) 7 A #1229,527,000
BT (ZF—+4:217,800,00087T) BEHE
TEHNIEFEANEE BT AMEERAR
JEREIBEIFIE - LA A EE St & BT &R
B 45T i 23 Al HEGR BT EE £ B BTG BT 18 ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

25. B EURIER BN ERE 1R

25. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES/
DEPOSITS/OTHER RECEIVABLES/
PREPAYMENT (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(d)

(e)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, certain vessel buyers have
made progress payments for shipbuilding contracts to three agents and
one stakeholder (2017: three agents and one stakeholder) rather than
directly to the Group. The Group has the entitlement to these progress
payments in accordance with the contracts but the balances are in
custody of the agents/stakeholder to ensure the progress payments
are used to pay for the costs to relevant shipbuilding contracts. The
progress payments held in custody will be paid over to the Group
based on the shipbuilding progress.

Prepayment represents amount paid for purchase of raw materials,
steel plates and vessel components for shipbuilding, intelligent car
parking and automotive device and steel structure at 31 December
2018 and 31 December 2017.

Included in trade and bills receivables, deposits, other receivables and
prepayment are the following amounts denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency of the Group:

gﬁéﬁ\f&@%fﬁﬁ/ﬁﬁﬁlﬁ

et (%)

(d)

(e)

BE—F—\F+-A=+—HILFE EFM
MERBEA=ERER—EF=EHEE (=F
—tF ZERER—BFEEES) MIEEE
[ EE S A A K2 B TE - K EE
BRERIEA AR Z S E 8 - BB TI K
B tHAERE  UERZZHEEREAR
FHARGEM A HELM KA - B HEE
IR E MR L FAEE -

FERMFEER=FE—NF+=—A=+—HE=
T+ FF+ A=+ ABEEN BEEER
STEEFLARIMAEEZ BRS04k R ARG S0 1
Ltz &a-

SRR RIERTIR  EE AR IE R AN
KRB TIARE B Ge T AN EHEHEZ R

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

000 '000

Fx FIit

usD x5t 9,651 24,483
EUR BT = 18,570
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

26. INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING 26. FEEE 2 RE
Financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value through EHIMIR AT EA BRI EZVBEE
profit or loss:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Listed securities: ETES
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong REB LM ZRAFES 32 54
27. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 27. B mEEERKE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT T T
Finance lease receivables within one year —FREKmERERE 4,758 10,570
Less: Unearned finance income B AR BRERLE WA (771) (925)
Present value of minimum lease payment FEWREHE S HIERE
receivables 3,987 9,645
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEERE (292) (292)
3,695 9,353
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Allowance for credit losses FEBERE
At the beginning of year REH) 292 270
Exchange adjustments PE 5, 38 & - 22
At the end of year RER 292 292
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

27.

28.

FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

There was no unguaranteed residual value in connection
with finance lease arrangements or contingent lease
arrangements of the Group that need to be recorded as at
the end of the reporting period.

The finance lease receivables bear interest rate at 7.6%
(2017: 7.6%) per annum.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND
RESTRICTED CASH/BANK BALANCES
AND CASH

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range
from 0.01% to 0.35% (2017: from 0.01% to 0.35%) per
annum.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the pledged
bank deposits carry fixed interest rate ranging from 0.01% to
0.35% (2017: 0.01% - 0.35%) per annum and were pledged
to a bank to secure the Group’s borrowings (Note 41).

Included in the pledged bank deposits and restricted cash
and bank balances and cash are the following amounts
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the Group:

27.

28.

s EEERER (&)

MEARASERENERFAHARTEE
LHORERRGEBEARRERRAIK-

EWBmMEHERBRENRTIE6% (ZF
—+F:76%)5tHE

CHEMBITERRZRE
Be SBOEBRRAS

RITERET BN KX EZF0.01%%0.35%
T —+%:001%%035% )5t E°

BE-_ET-N\E+-_A=+—BILEE"
BHEBEITERIRE TR EZF0.01%E
0.35% (ZT—+t%:0.01%ZE0.35% ) 5t &
WEBFRITEARNEBEBENER (W
FT41) ©

ERRRITERRZREIBEARRITE
HEIREBEE THNAEEEEE LA
EH¥FHEZ R

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

'000 ‘000

F T T

HKD BT 1,107 1,194
usSD ETT 23 23
EUR BT 1 1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

28. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND
RESTRICTED CASH/BANK BALANCES
AND CASH (CONTINUED)

28. B HFRIT K Z R
Be SBOEBRRAS ()

Included in the pledged bank deposits and restricted cash EEABITHEREZRGIR S A RIRITE
and bank balances and cash are the following amounts B RINEBE THIZINEE IR 5135 R =
which are subject to foreign exchange control regulations or TEe BRI

not freely transferable:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—LtF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Amounts denominated in RMB ARG EZKIA
— pledged bank deposits — B FRITFERK 235 248
— restricted cash —ZRERE 2,030 =
— bank balances and cash —RITEBHR KRR 8,788 13,761
11,053 14,009
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

29). EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE 290 IR A FEEFAHM2EHKE 2

THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE =
INCOME
2018
—E-N\F
HK$’000
FET
Equity securities listed in the PRC KR ET 2 RAES 23,598

The equity securities are listed in the National Equities
Exchange and Quotations in Beijing, the PRC. They are
measured at fair value determined with reference to quoted
market prices. The Directors have elected to designate
these investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI as
they believe that recognising short-term fluctuations in
these investments’ fair value in profit or loss would not
be consistent with the Group’s strategy of holding these
investments for long-term purposes and realising their
performance potential in the long run. During the year
ended 31 December 2018, no change in fair value on equity
instruments at FVOCI was recognised.

29(b). AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT

ZERABHRARILREEFA/PDEER
MEERG LT -HIRE2EMSRES
EHAFEFZE - HREERE NIERE
REERE 2 AP EEREEEANE B
ERSREFREENRERAERERR
BRERMERBIF ABUHDEEREZERE
mTAREETEARKZATEFAREMEZE
Wm-HEz2ZFT—N\F+ZA=1+—HIL
ir‘ W ERREAFEFAEMEEK
mIERT A N EEE-

9b). TR HERE

2017
—+t
HK$'000
TET

Equity securities listed in the PRC

The equity securities are listed in the National Equities
Exchange and Quotations in Beijing, the PRC. They are
measured at fair value determined with reference to quoted
market prices. During the year ended 31 December 2017,
change in fair value of approximately HK$9,240,000 is
recognised in investment revaluation reserve.

CHINA OCEAN INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

AP L2 RAES 24,840

ZERAFBSHFRFBEILREEFNEER
NEERS Limoﬁ&?&%%m WEES
EHAFEFAZ- BE_ZT—+tF+=A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 30.ES REMENRRIE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZE—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Consideration payable for acquisition of property, EEWE W= LxE 2
plant and equipment — non-current portion FERRE—-FERBNEL D 5,070 5,337
Trade payables (Note i) B SN FIE (Mati) 139,291 165,939
Consideration payable for acquisition of WETENHEERE
prepaid lease payments ERRE 42,997 45,260
Payable to guarantors (Note i) FERTHE R ASRIR (B aLii) 708 746
Contribution payables to labour union and BERIgkHEESHK
education funds 13,565 14,278
Accrual of contractor fees FEET AR B 37,463 16,204
Accrual of government funds EET BT ES 2,152 33,466
Other payables and accruals (Note iii) EmpE AR ETE A
(Kt aiii ) 1,121,052 539,616
1,357,228 815,509
Notes: et
(i) The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based () UTFRDFIRERZAAXE L ARZSES

on invoice date or issue date, respectively, at the end of the reporting

FERTHERIREH R 2R

#r:

periods:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —B—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TAT
0 - 30 days 0—30H 6,640 22,843
31 - 60 days 31—60H 16,809 6,173
61 - 90 days 61—90H 1,261 17,304
Over 90 days #8390 H 114,581 119,619
139,291 165,939

Payment terms are generally 60 to 180 days (2017: 60 to 180 days).

Trade payables are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on

demand.

KR —AR B60E180H (= F —+F : 60F

1808 ) »

EBENAARELRR 2ERBLBELEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B WRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

30. EZ R H AR RROE (&)

et : (%)

30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Notes: (Continued)
(i) (Continued)

Included in trade payables is the following amounts denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the Group:

0}

(%)

B SRENHACE TR EE L) 5 & LA
B¥AHEZNIR:

2018 2017

S —T—t%

'000 '000

T T

usDb E 2,271 2,271

(ii) The balances represented guarantee fee payable to several guarantors
in relation to their guarantee on the banking facilities and borrowings
obtained by the Group at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017.

(iii) Material balances included in other payables and accruals are as
follow:

(a) The Group has accrued the land use tax of approximately
HK$41,993,000 (equivalent to RMB36,836,000) at 31
December 2018 (2017: approximately HK$44,204,000
(equivalent to RMB36,836,000)).

(b) The Group has accrued salaries of approximately
HK$62,302,000 (equivalent to RMB54,651,000) at 31
December 2018 (2017: approximately HK$70,819,000
(equivalent to RMB59,016,000)).

(c) The Group has accrued the social security fund for its
employees of approximately HK$47,289,000 (equivalent to
RMB41,482,000) at 31 December 2018 (2017: approximately
HK$49,002,000 (equivalent to RMB40,835,000)). Pursuant to
a repayment agreement signed between Jiangxi Shipbuilding,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and the relevant
government authority on 26 January 2015, the amounts
of accrued social security fund should be repaid before
December 2019.

(d) As at 31 December 2018, included in other payables
and accruals of approximately HK$52,000,000
(2017: HK$52,000,000) and HK$45,000,000 (2017:
HK$45,000,000) respectively represented the outstanding
principal amount of 2017 Convertible Notes | and 2017
Convertible Notes Il where were matured and redeemed by the
Company in 2017.
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(ii)

(iii)

ZERBER-—F-\F+-_A=+—HR=
E—tF+_A=+—ARETERAREE
BRI IR TRE R (B B IR (2 JE R 1 1%
EZERER-

HEtENABEREFERTAEZEREHN
T

(a RZFE-—NFF+-A=+—A Fr£H
B RERT 1 (E FIF 941,993,000/ T (18
FH R A R #36,836,000) (—E—+
F 1 #944,204,000/8 7 (HHE RARK
36,836,0007C) ) °

(b) R-_E-NFF+-_A=+—H &%
B A FE 5 3 % #962,302,000% 7T (18
HRA R #54,651,000T) (—ZFE—+
4F : #970,819,000/8 ¢ (HHE RA R K
59,016,0007T) ) °

(0 RZFE-—NF+-A=+—A F£H
FIEETHE B 1 IRE £ 4947,289,0007% 7T
(HHERARB41,482,0007T) (= F
—4F 1 #749,002,000 7T (1HERAR
#:40,835,0007T) ) * R1& A 1 7] & & WY
B R AT A AR T SO PIR = F
—AF— A=+ NAFTZEX S
ZERMHRESHBARZT—NF
+=AAiEE-

(d R-ZFE-—NF+-A=+—8 Hft
JE 11 3038 % fE 51 B A # 4952,000,000
#iL (ZF—+4:52,000,000% )
K 45,000,000 L (=ZF — £ F:
45,000,000 7T ) 73 BlltE —F —+ F A #&
BREEIR —F—F o R REEIIE R
EEASHE ZERBECIHLHAR
FIR = FE—+FfE[L -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

30. EZ R H AN ROE ()

Notes: (Continued) fitat - (#8)
(i) (Continued) (i) (&)

(e)  As at 31 December 2018, included in other payables and (e) 54‘1?—/\% +=ZA=+—A8 ﬁi@ﬂ?
accruals of approximately HK$170,552,000 represents the fjfi{ﬁﬁ/@g#gﬁﬁ?‘?ﬁ ,%’9170,55(2,000;%
amount payable to the Vendor of Huakai Heavy in relation to E}%Eyﬁi@%{ff?l@fﬁiﬂ%IEﬁZﬁ‘(
the contingent consideration and the balance was reclassified Bz fE = §¢ l% e ﬁ/E/W% & (Mt
from Contingent Consideration Payable (Note 38). The amount 38)E#r ﬁ ;tﬁ A ERELR 2 BR
was unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. RIRESANAE -

() As at 31 December 2018, included in other payables and ) ﬁf\:gfﬂﬁ‘flﬁEJf*E ﬁf@/’éﬂj
accruals of approximately HK$229,527,000 (equivalent to fx%&\/@ﬁgﬁ?*ﬁ§7229,5250(?0/‘%7t
approximately RMB201,340,000) represents the payment (?HS%‘E@%’ZAEMZOL%0,000E)Z%TE}E?
obligation on the corporate guarantee granted to Huatai Heavy R fﬁﬁ/ﬁ\%ifé THERRAZR
Industry Limited pursuant to the arbitral award and the balance AIERZ 150 A (£50 E% A ‘% MRERHF
was reclassified from Provision for Financial Guarantee (Note PRI (H1it45) ERf D AE
45).

PaN p?

31(. CONTRACT ASSETS NE.BHEE
31 December 1 January
2018 2018
—g-N\f | —z-N%F
+t=A=+—-H —A—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAR FAx
Construction contracts BEAL 90,328 =
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RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z — T — \F+ - F =

31(h. AMOUNTS DUE TO CUSTOMERS FOR

CONTRACT WORK

T-HIEFE

3. ENEFENIRERIEA

2017
—ET—tF
HK$'000
FHET

Contracts in progress at the end of RBERARETREL:

the reporting period:

Contract costs incurred to date ESBEEBLHKAK 1,188,365
Recognised profits less recognised losses B m MR B R E 1B (635,798)
552,567
Less: progress billings W HEE IR (888,736)
Amounts due to customers for contract work ENREAHIIEFIEA (336,169)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

32. BORROWINGS 32. 88
2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Bank borrowings RITIEE 1,967,413 1,273,581
Other borrowings HEmfaE 1,417,840 1,240,599
3,385,253 2,514,180
Secured BHEM 481,357 815,737
Unsecured EAEA 2,903,896 1,698,443
3,385,253 2,514,180
The carrying amounts of the above borrowings are repayable FiEEZRAERER TS HAMEE (K
as follow (Note): ER
2018 2017
—E-N\F —t
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
On demand or within one year BERKIR—FA 2,803,397 1,932,324
Within a period of more than one year but not N —F LA EETBR
exceeding two years 4 HA R - 309,621
Within a period of more than two years but not ~ R A B RB B
exceeding five years hFHMAE - 272,235
2,803,397 2,514,180
The carrying amount of borrowings that are RiEg R EREHMA
repayable on demand due to breach of loan REREEZEED
covenants (shown under current liabilities) BREE (BIEREEE) 581,856 =
3,385,253 5
Less: Amounts due within one year shown under & : /A — 45 R I HASE 1] ¢
current liabilities mBBEZNRIE (3,385,253) (1,932,324)
Amounts show under non-current liabilities TIESERBI BE A = 581,856
Note: The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in Wit . BEIAETIA B g Frdiat EE s B B2 2E -

the loan agreements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

"G BImMIRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE
32. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 32. 5 & (&)
The exposure of the Group's fixed-rate borrowings and the AEETEEEMNRBRESNEIEBEMT

contractual maturity dates were as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Fixed-rate borrowings repayable: AR T HREEE 2
EBEE:
On demand or within one year BERKIN—FA 2,555,856 1,472,618
Within a period of more than one year but not R —F LA E{ETEBIBE
exceeding two years 4 HA - 195,291
Within a period of more than two years but not BRI BT IR
exceeding five years A HAME — 18,000
2,555,856 1,685,909

The exposure of the Group’s variable-rate borrowings and the
contractual maturity dates were as follows:

AEEZREENAREAOIIHAMT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT
Variable-rate borrowings repayable: AR THIHREER
FEEE:
On demand or within one year BERFINR—FR 829,397 459,706
Within a period of more than one year but not ~ B—%F A BT BAE
exceeding two years A HAfE - 114,330
Within a period of more than two years but not ~ AR LA F{E BB
exceeding five years HFHE - 254,235
829,397 828,271
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

32. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal to

contracted interest rates) on the Group’s borrowings are as

32. & (%)

AEEEEZERANEX (TFHASEREFTH
FX)BEMT -

follows:
2018 2017
=t SV —E—tf
Effective interest rates: EIRFIE
Fixed-rate borrowings (bank and TEEEE
other borrowings) (RITREME 0.35% - 36% 0.35% - 36%
Variable-rate borrowings (bank and FEEE
other borrowings) (RITREME 4.75% - 5.66% 4.75% — 5.66%

The details of other borrowings are as follows:

(i)

(if)

At 31 December 2018, the Group has loan advances
from employees of approximately HK$1,404,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB1,232,000)
(2017: approximately HK$1,480,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB1,232,000)) which bears interest
rate of 15% (2017: 15%) per annum and was
repayable on demand (2017: repayable with one year).

At 31 December 2018, the Group has loan
advances from several independent third parties
of approximately HK$997,442,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB874,949,000) (2017:
approximately HK$734,632,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB612,193,000)). The proceeds
were used to finance the daily operation of the Group.
The borrowings carry variable interest of a range from
0.35% to 36% (2017: 0.35% to 36%) per annum
repayable on demand.

HtE B ZFBWT

(i)

(ii)

R—ZZE—NF+=-_A=+—8"
AEEBBRERBIZERBRY
1,404,000 L (HHE RO AR
1,232,000) (ZE—+EF: 4
1,480,000 T (FHE RO AR
1,232,0007T) )R F F E15% (= F
—tF:15% ) R RERERER
ZE—EF AR —FREE) -

RZE—NF+ZA=+—H &%
EESEBILF - HIRHZERR
FX#9997,442,0007%8 7T (FHE R LA
R #874,949,0000T) (ZZF—+H4&F:
#)734,632,0007 ¢ (FHE RO AR
#612,193,0007T) ) - FTB X EE A
RENAEEZBELE - ZEEE
BB RETF035%E36% (=F
—+ & 035%%E36% ) it B RBRE
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RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

32. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 32. 88 (&)

(i) At 31 December 2018, the Group has loan advances
from one of the shareholders of the Group’s associate,
Zhejiang Ocean, of approximately HK$275,805,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB241,934,000)
(2017: approximately HK$358,240,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB298,533,000)). The proceeds were
used to finance the daily operation of the Group. The
borrowing carries interest of 8.5% (2017: 8.5%) per
annum and repayable on demand. Mr. Li, the executive
director of the Company and an independent third
party have provided a personal guarantee to secure the
payment obligations of the borrowing.

(iv) At 31 December 2018, the Group has loan advances
from an associate, Zhejiang Ocean, of approximately
HK$143,189,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB125,604,000) (2017: HK$146,247,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB121,872,000)). The
proceeds were used to finance the daily operation of
the Group. The borrowing bears interest rate ranging
from 5% to 7.6% (2017: 5% to 7.6%) per annum and
secured by deposit as details in Note 22 and repayable
on demand.

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, there was no repayment
on demand clause on the Group’s bank borrowings and other
borrowings.

At 31 December 2018, borrowings of approximately
HK$481,357,000 (2017: HK$815,737,000) were secured by
collaterals as details in Note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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(il RZFT—-NF+-_A=+—H XK
SEEAKEBERRNITIEFZ
EHp—ZRERREZERBRLY
275,805,000/ 7t (M E R AR
241,934,0007T) (=& —ti )
358,240, OOO/ETEH‘H R AR
298,533,0007T) ) ° %EL?XIEEJEHEA
BNAEE 2z AELE ZEERF
FE85% (ZF—+LF:85% )5 &

RARBREE NARZHITES
FEER—BBILE=FERHEMBEA
BR UERZEENNHEE-

vy, RZZE—N\FE+ZA=+—0 &%
BEBERRINTEFREZER
BIN#7143,189,000/8 7T (HHERLA
R #125,604,0007T) (_ —+tF:
146247000,a7z<7fﬁ R AR
121,872,0007T) ) ° ’%?KIEEﬁHb’é
BNAEBHEEE -ZEEIRF
FEE%ET 6% (ZT—LF 5%E
7.6%)EF B BIERER (FEHRN
MisE22) RBIREREE -

$ By EBTEEREMEERSE

R-B-NFR-_F—tF+-_A=1+—
=S[

REREEGK-
R_F-NF+-_A=+—RH BE
#47481,357,0008 L (Z T -+ F -
815,737,000/ 7T, ) 5 LA B8 K 48 an (E 4K 3
(FBHERGZE PRI EAL)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 32. 58 (#&)

At 31 December 2018, a bank borrowing of approximately
HK$122,452,000 (equivalent to RMB107,414,000) (2017:
HK$128,897,000 (equivalent to RMB107,414,000)), which
bears interest at 5.75% (2017: 5.75%) per annum, will be
repayable on 7 March 2019 and was secured by the entire
equity interests of Jiangxi Shipbuilding (Note 41).

All the borrowings are denominated in RMB as at 31
December 2018 and 31 December 2017.

R—_ZE—NF+_A=+—8
TEREH122,452,0008 T (BER
AR®107,414,000L) (Z 2 —+
:128,897,000/8 T (HHE RN AR
107,414,0007T) ) F | %&5.75% (=&
—tF:575% )T B RER-ZZT—NEF=
AtBEE WARNTHEERZ 2B
VEER (MH3E41) »

RZE—N\F+—_A=+—"HEZZ—+
FE+-A=1+—H FFAEEEHUARE
HE -

33. PROVISION FOR WARRANTY 3. RERE

HK$'000

FHET

At 1 January 2017 Rn-—Z—+F—H—H 3,357
Additional provision for the year FNEEINEE 3,998
Exchange adjustments PE 78 & 173
Reversal of provision BiErm (3,357)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+=—A=+—H 4,171
Additional provision for the year FNFEINEE 2,103
Exchange adjustments PE 5 58 & (69)
Reversal of provision B R E (4,171)
At 31 December 2018 R=ZB-NFE+ZA=+—H 2,034

The Group provides a one-year warranty on shipbuilding
and undertakes to repair or replace items that fail to perform
satisfactorily. The provision is estimated based on historical
data of the level of repairs and replacement.

AEBBERBH - FOREH  WAE
MIES BB ARERBRANER -BE
RIBHEE RERKTE ZBEBRER MG e
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RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

34. SHARE CAPITAL

34. B

Number of ordinary shares Amount
LEREE &8
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\F T+ —E-N\E “E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FEL
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each ~ BREE0.05%E L2 EB%K
Authorised: ETE
At 1 January n—A—H 20,000,000,000 20,000,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Increase in authorised share capital &A% E R (#istc)
(Note c) 30,000,000,000 - 1,500,000 -
At 31 December R+=A=1+-H 50,000,000,000 20,000,000,000 2,500,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRER:
At 1 January »—A—8 13,636,838,840 12,002,758,840 681,842 600,138
Issue of shares upon conversion of 7 {8 = T — N\ F %
2018 Convertible Notes F& (T& AMH35)
(as defined in Note 35) BBITRG (Hzfa)
(Note a) - 163,580,000 - 8,179
Issue of shares for settlement of TR ANBEREN
contingent consideration ARIE (Kzb)
payable (Note b) - 1,470,500,000 - 73,525
At 31 December R+=A=1-8 13,636,838,840 | 13,636,838 840 681,842 681,842
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

34. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the holder of 2018
Convertible Notes converted HK$32 000,000 of 2018 Convertible
Notes for 163,580,000 new ordinary shares at conversion prices
varying from HK$0.1884 to HK$0.2121.

On 27 April 2017, the Company has allotted and issued
1,470,500,000 new ordinary shares to the vendor upon the fulfilment
of profit guarantee relating to the acquisition of the entire equity
interests of Success Capture Limited at market price of HKO.189.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution at the annual general meeting
held on 22 June 2018, the authorised share capital of the Company
was increased from HK$1,000,000,000 divided into 20,000,000,000
ordinary shares to HK$2,500,000,000 divided into 50,000,000,000
ordinary shares by the creation of additional 30,000,000,000 shares.

All new shares issued during the years ended 31 December

2018 and 2017 ranked pari passu with the existing shares in
all respects.

35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS PAYABLES

(a)

Issuance of convertible bonds — 2017
Convertible Notes |

On 27 June 2014, the Company issued convertible
bonds with the aggregate principal amount of
HK$1,000,000,000 (the “2017 Convertible Notes 1").
The 2017 Convertible Notes | is denominated in HK$.
The 2017 Convertible Notes | carries interest at 7.5%
per annum and is payable annually. The holder(s) of
the 2017 Convertible Notes | may convert the whole or
part of the principal amount of the 2017 Convertible
Notes | into ordinary shares of the Company from the
issue date to the date before the maturity date (on the
third anniversary of the issue date, i.e. 26 June 2017),
at an initial conversion price of HK$0.20 per share,
subject to certain customary anti-dilutive adjustments.
If the 2017 Convertible Notes | have not been
converted before the maturity date (the conversion is at
the option of the holder of the 2017 Convertible Notes
1), they will be redeemed on maturity date at principal
amount plus the accrued interest. Both the principal
and interest will be settled in RMB based on a fixed
exchange rate as set out in the agreement.

34. 7 (48)

EE

(a)

(b)

(c)

REZ—F—+F+_A=1+—HIFE —F
—NFA[RREIRZ 1FH AL TO0.188478 T
F0.2121F 7.2 7 #(E 532,000,000/ L2 =F
—/\4F A] $2 iR B 15 4 #4245 163,580,0008R 37 & i
A& °

REZF—EFOUAZF B ARAREXB
B 4 BESuccess Capture Limited 2 25 B% 1 &Y 5%
Fi (R 35 14 1% 7 (B0. 1898 T [F1 B 7 B 3 R %17
1,470,500,0008% #7 2 8 % °

BER-_F-NENA-F+-ARTZRE
BAFRE LR EERER  ARAETRAE
i 18 3230,000,000,0008% A% 17 £ 1,000,000,000
3 IT (4 /A20,000,000,0008% & 38 I8 ) 12 h1 =
2,500,000,0007% 7T ( 5 £A50,000,000,0004% &
BRR) °

REE-_ZE—)\FER_E—tF+=A
T —RLEFERTZMAETROESH
HHBEERHZEBREHAL -

35. BEY mT R & 3

(@

RTUEREZR-—F—t
FARRREI

R-ZE—MFERA-_++EH ARQF
1T E #5E%1,000,000,0007 7T HY
THES ([ =B ETRERE
1) e SE - FTRRBERAET
SHE =T — L TRRBR IR F
%75% BABGERM  —F—+
FARBBRIGEATRETA
WA (FTAB=BEZA 8
—E—+FRAZTXRR)AI—HI
$IRD IR 5 R B SRR 150,207 7T
(TR E TEERBEAR) =
— L THRBRRBIN 2 BLBHA
SHRBAATNEAR BT+
FRRERIFR DB EA LR (R
BHBRT - E— L ETRRER
1455 A DR 1) - AR BN B B
& AR B R A% RIS 12
1535 7 51 BF E EE AN R M 57
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RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

35. B HRES (&)

35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS PAYABLES
(CONTINUED)

(@)

Issuance of convertible bonds — 2017
Convertible Notes | (Continued)

The 2017 Convertible Notes | on initial recognition
was considered as a compound financial instrument
that includes a debt element and a conversion option
classified as an equity element. Also at the initial
recognition, the liability component was measured
at the present value of the redemption amount.
The equity element is presented in equity heading
“convertible bonds reserve”. The effective interest
rate of the liability component is 18.27% per annum
determined at the initial recognition.

On 26 June 2017, the Company was required
to redeem the 2017 Convertible Notes | at the
outstanding principal amount of HK$52,000,000 on
the maturity date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS PAYABLES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Issuance of convertible bonds — 2017
Convertible Notes Il

On 8 July 2015, the Company issued convertible
bonds with the principal amount of HK$200,000,000
(the “2017 Convertible Notes I1"). The 2017
Convertible Notes Il is denominated in HK$. The
2017 Convertible Notes Il carries interest at 7.5% per
annum and is payable semi-annually in advance. The
holder(s) of the 2017 Convertible Notes Il may convert
the 2017 Convertible Notes Il into ordinary shares
of the Company from 8 July 2015 to 8 July 2016, at
an initial conversion price of HK$0.2481 per share,
subject to certain customary anti-dilutive adjustments.
Unless previously converted or cancelled or unless
the holder has previously issued an event of default
notice of repayment, the Company shall redeem on
the maturity date all the outstanding principal amount
of the 2017 Convertible Notes Il at an amount equal
to the aggregate of the outstanding principal amount
plus interest accrued. The 2017 Convertible Notes Il
on initial recognition was considered as a compound
financial instrument that include a debt element and
a conversion option derivative and other derivative.
Also, at the initial recognition, the liability component
was measured at the present value of the redemption
amount. The conversion option derivative and other
derivative was classified as a derivative liability and
was measured at FVTPL at initial recognition and each
reporting date. The effective interest rate of the liability
component is 14.9128% per annum determined at the
initial recognition.

35. BN AR ES (&)

(b) BITARRESF-—FT—+

FARRIEE

R-ZZE—RAFEtANB RNRFET
X & §8200,000,0007% 7T 2 Al # iR (&
F ([ ZT—LFABREREI]) - =
T FAMERERIIZETE
“E-LEFARRERIIRFRN X
75%it 8 BABFFELEIMN -
E—tEFABREERIFAEAITR
Z-RAFLtANBEZZ—RFLA
J\ B BEHR ) 2 2 (B B A0.248178
T (FHEHETEERESAR)E
“ELEFABRBERERILBRARRD
BB AR - RIEEA D B R
ERFBEALRCELETEOEME
o BRARRRERBH B R AR
BASHENEAMNEBEL T —+
FABMBRERIZAAERARLRAE
BRI ERR —T— L Fr#k
BEERIRESESEHBY Lk
HETETAREMITETAZES
TR E - O MY HERE - A&
Mo RBEOSENREFE - LBRH
BIUTETAREMITET AN BRTT
FRETRIRERE kEHRE B
BRAFEF ABIRE R IARTHER
B AERS CERNEXEERAEF
14.9128% -
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RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

35. B HRES (&)

35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS PAYABLES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Issuance of convertible bonds — 2017
Convertible Notes Il (Continued)

Pursuant to the relevant bond instrument, if agreed
in writing by the Company and the holder(s) of
2017 Convertible Notes Il at least ten business days
prior to 8 July 2016 (“Initial Maturity Date”), the
maturity date of the 2017 Convertible Notes Il can be
extended to a date falling on the twelve months after
the Initial Maturity Date (“Extended Maturity Date”,
i.e. 8 July 2017). On 7 July 2016, the Company
and the 2017 Convertible Notes Il holders entered
into an acknowledgement and confirmation (the
“Acknowledgement and Confirmation”) confirming that
the maturity date of the 2017 Convertible Notes Il shall
be extended to 8 July 2017 and all other terms and
conditions of the 2017 Convertible Notes Il remained
unchanged. The modification is not accounted for as
an extinguishment under HKAS 39 as the terms are
not substantially different taking into account that the
discounted present value of the cash flows under the
new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees
received and discounted using the original effective
interest rate, is less than 10 per cent different from
the discounted present value of the remaining cash
flows of the original financial liability using the original
effective interest rate. Accordingly, any costs or fees
incurred will adjust the carrying amount of the liability
and are amortised over the remaining term of the
modified liability.

The 2017 Convertible Notes Il after modification
contains a debt component and a conversion option
derivative and other derivatives. The derivatives are
measured at fair value through profit or loss with
changes in fair value being recognised in fair value
through profit or loss.
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RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

35. BN AR ES (&)

35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS PAYABLES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Issuance of convertible bonds — 2017
Convertible Notes Il (Continued)

No conversion had been made by the holders of the
2017 Convertible Notes Il during the year ended 31
December 2017. On 8 July 2017, the Company was
required to redeem the 2017 Convertible Notes Il at
the outstanding principal amount of HK$200,000,000
on the maturity date.

Issuance of convertible bonds — 2018
Convertible Notes

On 6 December 2016, the Company entered into
a subscription agreement with Macquarie Bank
Limited (the “Subscriber”) in respect of the issuance
of convertible bonds with the aggregate principal
amount of not more than HK$400,000,000 (the “2018
Convertible Notes”). The 2018 Convertible Notes is
denominated in HK$. The 2018 Convertible Notes
comprises of four tranches with each tranche with
an aggregate principal amount of HK$100,000,000.
Each tranche of the 2018 Convertible Notes will be
subscribed at a price equal to 94 per cent of the
principal amount of the relevant tranche of the 2018
Convertible Notes. The aggregate principal amount
for each tranche will be deposited into a non-interest
bearing bank account of the Company opened with the
Subscriber which will be subject to a charge for the
benefit of the Subscriber as a restricted bank balance
(“Restricted Cash Account”) without interest.

The Company shall not make any withdrawal from
the Restricted Cash Account except with the prior
consent of the Subscriber. If the Subscriber is satisfied
that all amounts which may be or become payable by
the Company under or in connection with the 2018
Convertible Notes have been irrevocably paid in full,
the Subscriber will release, reassign or discharge the
security asset.

(b)

(c)

BITABRRESF-——2—+
FORBREEI ()

“ELFABREERIFAARE
E_E—+F+_A=+—HLFE
WEETHB - R_T—+FLAN
B RAARHERNEAHBELD —F
—EFABMEERIZHREERNE
#6200,000,0007% 7T °

BRITUBRREZF-—F-N
FARRRE

RZZE—RE+ZANA KAAFEHE
ERERITAERAA ([REBADR
AT AR & #58  #8 38400,000,00078
T AR ES ([ ZF— \FalRR
R RBHH  —F—/\FA
BIRRBEZETTE —T— \FH
BEREES /O SRS EBRA
100,000,000/ 7T » &# —F — \FA]
BRERSZEABMRAZ —T—\F
AR RIEN AT RRIA% 2 BIRETT
RBE - ZSUEASEEETRRALRA
N RIBAR 2 Nt BIR1TRP - 1
R—EURBAR/IAANTHER
RHRITAESR ((XRBIBEERSL)
-

(RERBASZERRBIN RRBTE
e 52 PR 1128 & B 5 42 BT (2] B8 - fid
REBAGRARRREBEIHE TN
FHBBEEBRAERNKBEN A
B RIS AR E 3 B - RIR
BAKRE BHERKAERERE
7o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

35. B HRES (&)

35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS PAYABLES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Issuance of convertible bonds — 2018
Convertible Notes (Continued)

On 15 December 2016, the 2018 Convertible Notes
with principal amount of HK$100,000,000 (i.e. the
first tranche) were issued by the Company to the
Subscriber. Proceeds of HK$94,000,000 were received
by the Company on 15 December 2016 and deposited
into the above mentioned Restricted Cash Account.
Due to the restriction as explained above, the bank
balance had been classified as “restricted cash” and
separately presented in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position. The 2018 Convertible
Notes carries interest at 2 per cent per annum and is
payable quarterly in arrears on 31 March, 30 June,
30 September and 31 December each year. The
conversion right in respect of the 2018 Convertible
Notes may be exercised, at the option of the holder
thereof, at any time on or after the issue date up to
the close of business on the date falling one day prior
to the maturity date (i.e. on the second anniversary of
the closing date i.e. 14 December 2018, which is no
later than five business days after all the conditions
precedent are satisfied), at a conversion price which
is 100% of the volume weighted average price of the
shares traded on the Exchange on the day on which
the Exchange is open for trading and the shares are
freely available for trading immediately preceding the
date on which such holder submits an irrevocable
notice of conversion to the Company, provided that
no conversion right may be exercised at a conversion
price which is lower than the floor price (i.e. minimum
conversion price of HK$0.18 per share (subject to
adjustment)). Unless previously redeemed, converted
or purchased and cancelled, the Company will redeem
the 2018 Convertible Notes at 94 per cent of its
principal amount on the maturity date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS PAYABLES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Issuance of convertible bonds — 2018
Convertible Notes (Continued)

The Company may declare a committed conversion
period (the “Committed Conversion Period”) by
delivering to the Subscriber a one prior trading day
notice. The Committed Conversion Period is a period
of twenty qualified trading days during which the
Subscriber shall convert all outstanding convertible
bonds currently held by the Subscriber with the date of
issuing the first tranche 2018 Convertible Notes.

The Company may declare up to three non-conversion
periods by delivering to the Subscriber a three prior
trading days’ notice. Each non-conversion period
may last for up to 10 trading days, during which the
Subscriber may not issue a conversion notice.

The 2018 Convertible Notes contains a debt
component and conversion option derivative and other
derivatives.

The 2018 Convertible Notes had been designated by
the management of the Company at fair value through
profit or loss at initial recognition and at each reporting
date.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Subscriber of the 2018 Convertible Notes had
exercised the conversion option to convert the
principal amount of HK$32,000,000 in consideration
for conversion of 163,580,000 ordinary shares of the
Company at certain conversion prices varying from
HK$0.1884 to HK$0.2121.

35. BN AR ES (&)

(c)

BRTUTRREZ-—F-—N
FHBRERE (&)

AR A AL #E ) SR AR BB AT — X
5 A BNE MAEERERE ([ AHEE
B - ARBREES - TEE
BRI ZE BMARBAGLRAE
BRERBABEBHR T~ /\Fr#
BREEHITERERA 2 ARE R
BERES-

R A AL RE A R AR IR AT = (A2
ZHBNE xS —([EFBHRHME-
EEBRYH A RZHEIOER S
B BRI AN 2 s E A -

—E-N\FABREREREEKED
RGBT ETARRMITAT
Ao

“E-\FARERBEEAARBE
B EHETE AR HERE RN & RS
BERAFEAER-

REBEEZFT—tF+=-A=+—H
HFE - N\FARKREEZ
RBABTTERRBESR RS
32,000,000 7T * A 3% 1 F-0.18847%5
TTE02121F LM E TR EBREUAR
A 7)163,580,0000% & 3@ A% °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

35. B HRES (&)

35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS PAYABLES
(CONTINUED)

(c) Issuance of convertible bonds — 2018

(d)

Convertible Notes (Continued)

On 26 July 2017, the Company received a Relevant
Event Notice (as defined in the Company’s
announcement dated 27 July 2017) from the
Subscriber, being the Subscriber of the 2018
Convertible Notes, to require the Company to early
redeem all the outstanding 2018 Convertible Notes
at 94% of the total amount of such 2018 Convertible
Notes held by the Subscriber together with accrued
interest. On 23 August 2017, the Company had
redeemed the balance of the principal amount of
the 2018 Convertible Notes and interest amounted
approximately of HK$62,980,000, including
outstanding principal and interests approximately of
HK$62,303,000 and HK$677,000, respectively and
the restricted cash approximately of HK$94,000,000
was released.

Issue of convertible bonds — 2019
Convertible Notes

On 10 November 2017, the Company issued
convertible bonds with the aggregate principal amount
of HK$189,000,000 (the “2019 Convertible Notes”).
The 2019 Convertible Notes is denominated in HKS.
The 2019 Convertible Notes carries interest at 10%
per annum and is payable annually. The holder(s) of
the 2019 Convertible Notes may convert the whole or
part of the principal amount of the 2019 Convertible
Notes into ordinary shares of the Company from the
issue date to the date before the maturity date (on the
second anniversary of the issue date, i.e. 11 November
2019), at an initial conversion price of HK$0.07
per share, subject to certain customary anti-dilutive
adjustments. If the 2019 Convertible Notes has not
been converted before the maturity date, they will be
redeemed on maturity date at principal amount plus
the accrued interest. Both the principal and interest will
be settled in RMB based on a fixed exchange rate as
set out in the agreement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS PAYABLES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

Issue of convertible bonds — 2019
Convertible Notes (Continued)

The 2019 Convertible Notes on initial recognition was
considered as a compound financial instrument that
includes a debt element and a conversion option that
was classified as an equity element. Also, at the initial
recognition, the liability component was measured
at the present value of the redemption amount.
The equity element is presented in equity heading
“convertible bonds reserve”. The effective interest rate
of the liability component is 25.5578% per annum
determined at the initial recognition.

35. BN AR ES (&)

d) RITARRES-—FT—H
FHBRERE (&)

—jli—Hﬁ BREBE LR

’*’tﬁtj‘% DR AR ERE (DB A
BEED)ZEAEMIT A I R
R BERSIEERZIEN

REE- %’\* DR [T AR (B 55
1.:%1%J HTN25 AR R TR

BEMINERNXEERESSF
25.5578%°

2019
Convertible
Notes at

10 November

2017

R=-ZB—+tF

+—A+HZ

—E-NE

ARRERE

Share price gl HK$0.062

0.0627& 7T

Exercise price THE HK$0.070

0.070/%8 7T

Contractual life AHFH 2 years

2%

Risk-free rate % 7 & 3.5721%

Expected dividend yield %EHJ%J& BX 0%

Volatility ] 40.88%

No conversation had been made by the holders of the REEZZ—NEFERZZE—tF+=A4

2019 Convertible Notes during the years ended 31 =+—HUEFEE - NLFaBREE
December 2018 and 2017. ZHEHAAGEELD -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS PAYABLES
(CONTINUED)

(e) The movements of the liability, derivative and equity
component of 2017 Convertible Notes |, 2017
Convertible Notes I, 2018 Convertible Notes and 2019
Convertible Notes were as follows:

35. B HRES (&)

() — =T tFHRER —T—+F
AHRRER —F— \EAHBRKRE
BR-_E-NEURRERZEE-
PTHETARERBO ZEEHWT :

2018
Convertible
Liability Derivative Notes at Equity
component  components FVTPL component Total
BAYE
FABREZ
fT4TIE ZB-N\F
BEDS Ba TRREE BB @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL TEL TEL THL THL
At 1 January 2017 W-Z—tF—A-H 242,160 13872 92,847 11,343 360,222
Issuance of 2019 Convertible Notes %7 =T — 1%
HRRER 146,373 = = 42,127 189,000
Conversion of 2018 Convertible Notes %38 —F— \F
THREE - = (31,111) = (31,111)
Interest charged (Note 11) BRUKHE (HF11) 23950 = 678 = 24,628
Interest paid BFE (12,018) - (678) - (12,696)
Transfer of 2017 Convertible HHEE—T—+F
Notes | and 2017 Convertible HEREEIR =%
Notes Il upon maturity —tETHRREEI (252,000) - - = (252,000)
Redemption of 2017 Convertible JHER T —+4F
Notes | upon maturity RREE = = = (11,343) (11,343)
Early redemption of 2018 RABE-T-N\F
Convertible Notes RRER - - (62,980) - (62,980)
Gain on redemption of 2017 IHBE T —+F
Convertible Notes Il upon maturity AT R &1 2 Izs = (13,872) = = (13,872)
Gain on early redemption of RABE-_S—N\F
2018 Convertible Notes PRl ES e - - (5,003) - (5,003)
Change in fair value ATEEY = = 6,247 = 6,247
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+=A
=t+—H 148,965 = = 42127 191,092
Interest charged (Note 11) BRIKHE (Ff311) 38,073 = = = 38,073
Interest paid ERFE (18,900) - - - (18,900)
At 31 December 2018 R-ZZ-NE+=A
=t+-H 168,138 = = 42,127 210,265
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS PAYABLES 35. B Es (&)
(CONTINUED)
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Convertible bonds — liability and ABmEESF-aBE R
derivative components: PTHET A :
Analysed for reporting purpose as: MERENSTA:
Non-current liabilities ERBEE = 148,965
Current liabilities mEaE 168,138 =
168,138 148,965
36. DEFERRED TAX 36. ELEBE
2018 2017
—EBE-N\EF —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Deferred tax assets FEIEFRIAE E 459 130
Deferred tax liabilities BRERIEBA R (68,141) (106,971)
(67,682) (106,841)
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36. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

The following are the major deferred tax (assets) liabilities
recognised and movements thereon during the current and

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

36. JEFER IR (&)

TIARAFERBEFECHERIER

EXEHE(BEE) AEREARE

prior years:
Fair value
adjustments on
prepaid lease
Withholding payments,
tax on goodwill,
undistributed intangible
earnings of assets and
the PRC investment
Provision subsidiaries properties Total
B
HEXE:
R mE
HEAR ENEER
ADKE REMEZ
B 2R ATEAE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR AL THTL THT
At 1 January 2017 R-ZE—+&—H—H (120) 21,297 64,774 85,951
Exchange adjustments bE Ji % (10) = 18,712 18,702
Acquisition of subsidiaries NG
(Note 39) (Hi5#39) - - 25,457 25,457
Charge (credit) to profit and RIBENBR (FTA)
loss (Note 12) (Kf7t12) - 4,199 (27 468) (23,269)
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—tF+-A=+—H (130) 25,496 81,475 106,841
Exchange adjustments B 5 B 6 - (808) (802)
Credit to profit and loss (Note 12) RiE&E A (HE12) (335) - (38,022) (38,357)
At 31 December 2018 R=ZB-NE+=ZA=+—-H (459) 25,496 42,645 67,682

In accordance with the PRC laws and regulations, tax losses
could be carried forward for five years to offset against its
future taxable profits.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had estimated unused
tax losses of approximately HK$212,565,000 (2017:
approximately HK$212,565,000) and approximately
of HK$2,273,671,000 (2017: approximately
HK$1,581,943,000) available for offset against future profits
in Hong Kong and the PRC respectively. The Group has not
recognised deferred tax assets in respect of the unused tax
losses due to unpredictability of future profits streams.

CHINA OCEAN INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

RIEFBEARMEAR HBABRAINDE

M AR R R FERR B A -

RZE-NF+ZA=+—B £&H
SAEBERAREKERARPE R R
F 2 A& 5T < B) A B4 15 /&5 18 £9212,565,000
BT (ZT —tF:4212,565,0007% 7T )
N #92,273,671,0008 L (ZE—+HF: 4
1,581,943,0008 7T ) © R AR 2 F AR
ATER - iR E W ESL R E AR IEE R
BRELERIBEE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IREGMBIMIRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE
37. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 37. kR
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that BEERFERERNIEZEM
have material non-controlling interests BEFE
The table below shows the details of non-wholly owned TR ANEEHEA EAFEIERERAIE
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling BB ARFE:
interests:
Place of
incorporation Proportion of
and principal ownership interests and Total comprehensive
place of voting rights held by income allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary business non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
AMRLGER  FERERFEAERERR FEREZEARM
HWEBARER TEEXBY SELA 2EREAE Rt ERER
31 December | 31 December | 31 December | 31 December | 31 December | 31 December
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-NE | ZEtE | ZB-N\E| ZE+F| ZB-NF| ZT-t%
t=A TZA t=A T=A +=A +=A
=1 =+-H =t-H =t+-H =t-H =+-A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET T THET T
China Ocean Materials Trading (Shenzhen) Company PRC 45% 45% (9,034) (9,504) 42,415 51,449
Limited (collectively referred to as the “China Ocean i
Materials Trading”) and its subsidiaries
(“China Ocean Materials Trading Group”)
PEME (RY)BRAR (RE[HENE]) R
EMBRRE (ENERE])
China Ocean Shipbuilding (Hong Kong) Limited HK 40% - 8,112 - 217,409 -
gt (58 BRAR &b
Others (386) (375)
Etft
259,438 51,074
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS FEERRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

37. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 37. kiR iER (&)
(CONTINUED)

Summarised consolidated financial information in respect of
the China Ocean Materials Trading Group that has material
non-controlling interests is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts before intra-
group eliminations.

BRABEERNFERESNTEYEEHE
ZIREHMBERBMEHIMT - TXHAE
MHEMBREEEEARRRR ZEIHA
B

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Current assets mENEE 239,305 260,930
Non-current assets ERBEE 25,194 64,518
Current liabilities mEAE (194,654) (216,859)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (19,289) (38,974)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company KAalEA AELER 8,141 18,166
Non-controlling interests AR = 42,415 51,449
Total revenue BT 5,745 778
Total expenses BHI (22,330) (17,049)
Loss for the year FREE (16,585) (16,271)
Loss attributable to owners of the Company RAEER ARMLER (7,308) (7,244)
Loss attributable to non-controlling interests FEfE AR A o (L BT 1R (9,277) (9,027)
Loss for the year FREE (16,585) (16,271)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

InEBImMRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE
37. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 37. kR fEHE (&)
(CONTINUED)
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Other comprehensive expenses attributable to A FI#EA A FE(S
owners of the Company HEi2mEMAS (1,427) (4,204)
Other comprehensive expenses (income) EfEIR R AL
attributable to non-controlling interests HEmemAs (WA) 243 (477)
Other comprehensive expenses for the year FAEMEERE (1,184) (4,681)
Total comprehensive expenses attributable to ZN/NSIE 2= Nl
owners of the Company ZHERASEE (8,735) (11,448)
Total comprehensive expenses attributable to FE V2R AR 2 A
non-controlling interests >HRMZ B (9,034) (9,504)
Total comprehensive expenses for the year FAZEMAXL BT (17,769) (20,952)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests MFEERR s S T AR B - -
Net cash outflow from operating activities REEBEEZ
Bemb #HE 1,017 (4,674)
Net cash inflow from investing activities KREXEBEEZ
BeRAFRE (61,236) 27,549
Net cash outflow from financial activities BEEBELEL
W mHF5E 32,420 (31,799)
Net cash outflow WE WL FEE (27,799) (8,924)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

37. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(CONTINUED)

Summarised financial information in respect of the China
Ocean Shipbuilding (Hong Kong) Limited that has material
non-controlling interests is set out below. The summarised

37. FFEEp R ()

BRBAEAFERERN T EMMN (F
B)ERAR ZHBEMBERIIM T T
XM BEMBRREEREARRRR S

financial information below represents amounts before intra- AR S -
group eliminations.

2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
FExT
Current assets MENEE 259,255
Non-current assets EMBEE -
Current liabilities MENAE (8)
Non-current liabilities EREBEE (2,879)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ARBHEA AR 38,959
Non-controlling interests e AR A = 217,409
Total revenue FEll g 205,710
Total expenses FEEE (472,586)
Loss for the period HNEBE (266,876)
Loss attributable to owners of the Company NAEHER ARLER (274,988)
Income attributable to non-controlling interests FE 78 A 5 B G W e 8,112
Loss for the period BN EE (266,876)

280 CHINA OCEAN INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

37. kEERERE (&)

37. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(CONTINUED)
2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
FET
Other comprehensive expenses attributable to ARB)EB AEML
owners of the Company HEfE2EMAX =
Other comprehensive expenses attributable to AR E R A
non-controlling interests H b 2 M 2 -
Other comprehensive expenses for the year FAEMEEMAL -
Total comprehensive expenses attributable to RAEIEER AEL
owners of the Company ZHEMAX B (274,988)
Total comprehensive income attributable to FEIE i 2 FE AN
non-controlling interests FHEKEBRE 8,112
Total comprehensive income for the period HAzEWEEEE (266,876)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests MIEER ER TR E -
Net cash outflow from operating activities REEBEEZ
RE ML FEE (171)
Net cash inflow from investing activities WEEBEEZ
REMNFEE -
Net cash outflow from financial activities MEXEBEEZ
REmLFE -
Net cash outflow WM FEE (171)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS FEERRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

38. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION 38. ERFHARE
PAYABLE

Acquisition of Success Capture Limited
During the year ended 31 December 2017

On 27 April 2017, the Company has allotted and issued
1,470,500,000 shares to the vendor of Success Capture
Limited due to the fulfillment of profit guarantee for the year
ended 31 December 2016 relating to the acquisition of the
entire equity interests of Success Capture Limited. The fair
value of the contingent consideration is remeasured at the
market value on 27 April 2017 and the Group recognised
a gain on settlement of contingent consideration payable of
approximately HK$39,704,000 in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as a result
of the decrease in share price of the Company.

Yz & Success Capture Limited

BE-_F—+tF+=-HA=1—HIF
E

NZE—+FWOA-_++8 HEKER
Lz 8% Success Capture Limited 2 30 A% #E B9 &L
EZE—Ft+-A=+—HLEFENS
RRE » &2 Bl [ASuccess Capture Limited
& 5 It 2 & 3 171,470,500,0000% i% 17 ° 72
ZE—tFMAZ+R HAREBAFE
BMEEHTE MEAQRRE TR K
ERNREEEREME2ARERARE
B e £ Bk SR (B T A RR R 25 4939,704,000
BT

HK$'000
FET
At 1 January 2017 R-—ZE—+t&—HF—H 317,628
Gain on settlement of contingent EBRERNIANRE 2 W=
consideration payable (39,704)
Issuance of shares for settlement of contingent MEBENRARERITRG
consideration payable (277,924)

At 31 December 2017 R-B—+HE+=-A=+—H -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

38. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION

PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

Acquisition of Huakai Heavy (as details in
Note 39)

During the year ended 31 December 2017

Since Huakai Heavy has achieved the 2016 Guarantee Profit
(as defined in Note 39) for the First Relevant Period (as
defined in Note 39), the Directors are of the opinion that the
second consideration of RMB54,000,000 shall be paid to
the Vendors of Huakai Heavy in full. And therefore, the fair
values of the contingent consideration payable arising from
achieving the 2016 Guarantee Profit at 11 April 2017 and
31 December 2017 were approximately HK$61,020,000
(equivalent to RMB54,000,000) and HK$64,800,000
(equivalent to RMB54,000,000) respectively.

And after taking into account the expected shortfall of
profit from the 2017 Guarantee Profit (as defined in
Note 39), the Directors determine the fair value of the
contingent consideration payable for the 2017 Guarantee
Profit to be approximately HK$94,591,000 (equivalent to
RMB&3,709,000) at 11 April 2017, with reference to the
valuation carried out by Greater China, an independent
professional valuer.

At 31 December 2017, since Huakai Heavy has not achieved
the 2017 Guarantee Profit for the Second Relevant Period
(as defined in Note 39), the Directors are of the opinion
that the final consideration of RMB&8,127,000 shall be
paid to the Vendors of Huakai Heavy. Therefore, the fair
values of the contingent consideration payable regarding
the final consideration at 11 April 2017 and 31 December
2017 were approximately HK$94,591,000 (equivalent to
RMB83,709,000) and HK$105,752,000 (equivalent to
RMB88,127,000) respectively

A change in fair value of contingent consideration payable of
approximately HK$5,081,000 (equivalent to RMB4,418,000)
was recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2017.

38. BN HANKE (&)

WIBEET (FREEHNKE3)

BEr - tFF+-F=+—HiUtF
E

BAREYEIRFEF —EE@ERRE (EER
MIsE3) ER T —NFRFEHN (EE
RAME39) EERAEMEYETES
BHEZNE ZEMREARKES4,000,000
oA RZE—tFWOA+—BARZ
E—+tF+ A=+ —HREK_-Z
Ef%m/mﬂﬁﬁﬁiZﬁﬁ&Wﬂﬁﬂﬂ?ﬁ
2 Al #) 561,020,000 T (FHERARE
54,000,0007T ) 64,800,000 7t (48 & 7
AR #54,000,0007T ) °

K RZT—EFREBMN (EE M
39)Z%EHH/mﬁ“J DAl EEREFIRE
HEMEEAMEZ HEEETE K22 —+
FNA+—BBEBE_E—tERBENZ
JE - 31 SR R (B A 1B 49 594,591,000/ 7T
(8% M AR ¥83,709,0007T ) °

R-ZE—+F+-_A=+—H BHREY
BT RERF_(EBEAHMB (EERMT
VEXK T —LFRBRN BEFREA
ﬁ%ﬂ%%ﬂél%ﬁiﬁﬁ%ﬁfﬁjxﬁm
88,127,000t At - KW=—ZZF—tF M A
+—BERZZE—+tF+ZA=1+—HE#H
EREZENIARERLESAOR
94,591,000/ 7T (#HE 1 A K 883,709,000
70) }%105,752,0008 7t (FHE R AR
88,127,0007T) °

FENRARBAFEZEEAI5,081,000E T

(HEERARKE4L4180007T) ERBE_F
—tF+ A=+ RIFEZERER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

38. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION 38. ERFHARE (&)

PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

Acquisition of Huakai Heavy (as details in
Note 39) (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2017
(Continued)

The movement of the contingent consideration payable for
acquisition of Huakai Heavy are as follows:

WEEYET (FBERNME39)
(#8)
BE_ZE—+tF+-_FA=+—HitF
;-4

MW ENET 2 ENHARE ZEFHW
—|T:

HK$'000
FHTT
Initial recognition at the date of the Acquisition RKBEHBRVEER(BSEER
(included the second and final consideration) SRRE) (MaE39)
(Note 39) 155,611
Change in fair value of contingent consideration ERSAREN QA FEES
payable 5,081
Exchange adjustments e 7, FH B 9,860
Contingent consideration payable at RZTE—+F+=-A=+—HZ
31 December 2017 e Sk ARAE 170,552

During the year ended 31 December 2018

The Directors are of the opinion that the consideration for
acquisition Huakai Heavy shall be paid to the Vendors of
Huakai Heavy in full. Therefore, the contingent consideration
payable of approximately HK$170,552,000 was reclassified
to other payable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 31 December 2017

On 16 November 2016 and 18 January 2017, China Ocean
Industry (Shenzhen) Company Limited, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Purchaser”), entered
into the sale and purchase agreement and supplemental
agreement (collectively known as the “Sale and Purchase
Agreements”) with Nantong Xinda Shipping Technology
Development Company Limited, Mr. Huo Qi and Mr. Ma
Zhengiang (collectively referred to as the “Vendors”), in
relation to the acquisition of the entire registered capital of
Huakai Heavy (the “Acquisition”) at an initial consideration
of RMB81,000,000, which shall be adjusted upward to a
maximum of RMB270,000,000 if the audited consolidated
net profit after tax of Huakai Heavy and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Huakai Heavy Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2016 (the “First Relevant Period”)
and the year ended 31 December 2017 (the “Second
Relevant Period”) shall not be less than RMB15,000,000
(the “2016 Guarantee Profit”) and RMB50,000,000 (the
“2017 Guarantee Profit”), respectively. The maximum
consideration for the Acquisition is RMB270,000,000 (to
be adjusted based on the 2016 Guarantee Profit and 2017
Guarantee Profit), which shall be satisfied by way of cash by
the Purchaser to the Vendors in following manners:

i initial consideration as to RMB81,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$91,530,000) payable to the
Vendors within 90 days after Completion;

i) second consideration as to a maximum of
RMB54,000,000 (if the 2016 Guarantee Profit for
the First Relevant Period is attained) is payable to the
Vendors within 5 business days upon the 2016 audited
consolidated financial statements of Huakai Heavy is
issued or completion of the registration (whichever is
later); and

39.X BB Y /BB 1n F]

BE-_Z—tHF+=ZH=+—H
ILFE
N-E—AFE+—A+~BR-Z—+F
—A+N\B  AAFRERENBRARTE
ET(CRINERAR([EH))EERE
EMMERERERAT EREERS
H¥kE (BB IEN D ITYBEERERES
ZRE (B IBEERE]) NAAHKE
Y ST Y2 PEMEAR (THEEE]) -
1) # R 1B B A R B81,000,0007T » i 2 8]
BIRHEMBAR (KBAIEYETE
EDRBRE-E—AS+-A=+—81t
sE((E—EEEEE))REE-2—+
E+-A=+—BUEE ((E-A5HH
) 2 BB A BRBB LR D B ER
AR #15,000,0007C ([ Z T —ANFRE &
M) & ARBS50,000,000T ([ ZFE—+4F
RERF) NEBEREALAZTES A
R #270,000,0007T - Y B EIB > H S5 KB
B A R #270,000,0007 (AT R - E— X~
ERERF R B EREENTINR
B) BHEFRUTARUBSABEFX
i

i) ## R (E A KR #81,000,0007T (1HE
7 #791,530,0007% 7T ) 1 5E AKX 190 R
XM TFER:

i) H_ERELKZ AREDS4,000,0007T
(M — AR BEBEER - —RF
REBF)NEGNET —F-NFL
BEREEMBBRRBEMATKERL
(CARR & & R ) 1258 % A RS
TES: R
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39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

During the year ended 31 December 2017
(Continued)

i) final consideration as to a maximum of
RMB135,000,000 (if the 2017 Guarantee Profit for the
Second Relevant Period is attained) is payable to the
Vendors within 5 business days upon the 2017 audited
consolidated financial statements of Huakai Heavy is
issued or completion of the registration (whichever is
later).

On 11 April 2017, the Acquisition was completed. The
Acquisition has been accounted for using the purchase
method. The Directors considered that Huakai Heavy
became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group
and the financial performance of Huakai Heavy would be
consolidated into the consolidated financial statements of the
Group after the completion of the Acquisition.

Huakai Heavy is engaged in manufacturing and selling of
steel structures and fittings for ship, marine, equipment,
mining equipment, ro-ro equipment, ship, bridge and
building steel structure in the PRC. The Directors consider
that the Acquisition could diversify the existing business
activities of the Group.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

39.BKI B R (M)

Bz —tHF+=-A=1+—H
EFE

i) HEKREZRZ AREL35000,0007T
(M —ERBHPEERN _—T—tF
REBH)NENET —FT—LFLK
BEREAMBBRRBEMRNTRERL
(AR & E R &5 % B A
TES-

R-FE—tFHAT - BxEXRKRBE=E-
WBEFEERABEEA AR - EFRR PRI
BERTKE FIEIXNRASEZE
BE2EWBARRENET 2MBEEES
RAARNKEZGEMBEHREK -

FYETRFRNERERFEEMAME
BREM FERE RERE REEE
ARMM - BREEENEE - EFERA
WREHEAIZ T CARB 2R XL RS

Consideration transferred FrEZEE
HK$'000
FHIT
Cash Be 91,530
Contingent Consideration Payable (Note 38) FET AR E (Hf7E38) 155,611
Total consideration BB 247,141
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0.WEEHEBAT (&)

39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

During the year ended 31 December 2017 E-E—+tF+=-A=+—H
(Continued) LEE (&)
Consideration transferred (Continued) FrEZEE (E
HK$'000
FHET
Acquisition — related costs (included in administrative U —#EBEK K (BIENGAERR
expenses in the consolidated statement of HEM2mkzmER 2ITHRAS)
profit or loss and other comprehensive income) 3,718

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of the

REER R E cEERFMERZAR

Acquisition were as follows: wm
HK$'000
FAET
Property, plant and equipment (Note 17) Wz B MR (faE17) 210,270
Prepaid lease payments (Note 19) A EEIE (MaF19) 62,342
Intangible assets (Note 21) mEEE (MiE21) 36,276
Inventories & 97,913
Trade receivables 2 5 IE 25,517
Other receivables and prepayment b fE WO IE M TE N BOE 421,626
Tax recoverable AT U [B] 7578 88
Available-for-sale investment AEHERE 14,690
Pledged bank deposit BEHEFIRITHER 251
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRIRS 194
Trade, bills and other payables B ZEENHMENKIE (210,809
Receipts in advances FE W k1A (9,663
Bank borrowings RITEE (205,095
Other borrowings HifgE (48,509
Provision for financial guarantee WIS EREE (208,981)
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 36) RIERIARE (H1a136) (25,457)
Net identifiable assets acquired T U B8 ] 38 R & = R 160,653
Goodwill arising on the Acquisition (Note 20) W EE 2 & (fa20) 86,488
Fair value of consideration REZAFE 247,141
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 30.EEME AT (&)

(CONTINUED)

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of Huakai Heavy because
the cost of the combination included a control premium.
In addition, the consideration paid for the combination
effectively included amounts in relation to the benefit
of expected synergies, revenue growth, future market
development and the assembled workforce of Huakai Heavy
Group. These benefits are not recognised separately from

WREIETELME ARG HRAE
E—SRHIREMER - 1IN ENEHR
BERSREERHRM S  WasE xR
KR ERENETEEZBLET 27
SBERZEB BRNZEFNETNE A @
RIEFEEMBRRE SULZS ST

goodwill because they do not meet the recognition criteria for
identifiable intangible assets.

Impact of acquisition on the results of the KEHAEEXENTE
Group

WIEEHETHI T Z M4 FH

Net cash outflow on acquisition of Huakai Heavy

HK$'000

FHET

Cash consideration paid BENRERE 91,530
Less: Pledged bank deposit B EERRITER (251)
Bank balances and cash RITHEHR LR ® (194)
91,085

Included in the loss for the year ended 31 December 2017
is a profit of approximately HK$3,779,000 attributable
to the additional business generated by Huakai Heavy
Group. Revenue for the year ended includes approximately
HK$281,019,000 generated from Huakai Heavy.

Had the Acquisition been completed on 1 January
2017, total group revenue for the year would have been
approximately HK$369,350,000 and loss for the year
would have been approximately HK$653,706,000. The pro
forma information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of revenue and results of operations
of the Group that actually would have been achieved had
the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2017, nor is it
intended to be a projection of future results.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

0.WEEHEBAT (&)

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

Impact of acquisition on the results of the
Group (Continued)

In determining the “pro-forma” loss of the Group had Huakai
Heavy been acquired at the beginning of the current year, the
Directors have calculated depreciation of property, plant and
equipment, amortisation of intangible assets, prepaid lease
payments and deferred tax liabilities acquired on the basis of
the fair value arising in the initial accounting for the business
combination rather than carrying amount recognised in the
pre-acquisition financial statements.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL
WITH INDEFINITE USEFUL LIVES AND
INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH DEFINITE

USEFUL LIVES

Impairment testing on goodwill and intangible
assets of intelligent car parking and
automotive device business

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amounts of goodwill
and intangible assets (net of accumulated impairment
losses) relating to the Group's intelligent car parking and
automotive device business segment were approximately
HK$103,156,000 and HK$100,506,000 respectively (2017:
HK$133,594,000 and HK$146,856,000 respectively).

The goodwill with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets
with definite useful lives has been allocated to one individual
cash generating unit (“CGU”) for the acquisition of Success
Capture Limited and its subsidiaries.

40.

WEHASEXENTE (F)

RERENAFENRBEEIETMETE AN
S8 REZ]BERE EFCRENEHA
HRARKELEN A EAEMEED
X BEMRENE BEEESE AN
MEFRBENFELEF AR E MIFREK
BRMBRAER CREENS-

AERERAEHAFHIHER
ERARAERAFH2EBTE
E 2B E R

ERFERAEETEBHER
B\EEERNRERNS

RZE-NF+-A=+t—B XA&EEE
BERERIEETEBDIMHNEENET
BE (M RRERRE) WREED RIH
#103,156,0007% 7T } 100,506,000/ 7T ( =
T —+ 4 : 133,594,000/% 7T & 146,856,000
ABIT)

A Us 8% Success Capture Limited & 2 Wi B 2~
AIMELAMEERIFEAFHOEERA
ERAFERFHNEREE P REE—
MERIREELEN ([REEEBAM]) -
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40. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL 40. EEEREFEAEH2HER

WITH INDEFINITE USEFUL LIVES AND
INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH DEFINITE
USEFUL LIVES (CONTINUED)

Impairment testing on goodwill and intangible
assets of intelligent car parking and
automotive device business (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the intelligent
car parking and automotive device business segment was
downturn due to the Group's failure to realise the expected
objective of adjustment of sales strategies of car-parking
equipment affected by limitations of local policies on car
park construction and insufficient working capital of the
Group. The Directors carried out a full scope assessment of
the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit (“CGU")
of intelligent car parking and automotive device business
segment to which goodwill and intangible assets have been
allocated. As a result of the impairment assessments, the
Directors considered that impairment loss of HK$22,000,000
and HK$10,000,000, respectively (2017: HK$Nil and
HK$16,925,000 respectively), on the goodwill and intangible
assets arising from intelligent car parking and automotive
device business segment were provided for the year ended
31 December 2018. The impairment assessments on
the recoverable amount for the CGU performed by the
Group were based on value-in-use calculations. The key
assumptions for the value-in-use calculations are those
regarding the discount rates, growth rate and the projected
sales volume, selling prices and direct costs used in the cash
flow forecasts.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Directors
conducted a review of the Group’s goodwill and intangible
assets and appointed an independent professional valuer,
Greater China, to assist them to determine the recoverable
amount.
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40. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

WITH INDEFINITE USEFUL LIVES AND
INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH DEFINITE
USEFUL LIVES (CONTINUED)

Impairment testing on goodwill and intangible
assets of intelligent car parking and
automotive device business (Continued)

The recoverable amount of goodwill has been determined
based on a value-in-use calculation. That calculation uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a 5-year period, and pre-tax
discount rate of 24.07%. The cash flows beyond the 5-year
period are extrapolated using a steady growth rate of 3%.
This growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth
forecasts and does not exceed the average long-term growth
rate for the relevant industry. Other key assumptions for
the value-in-use calculations relate to the estimation of
cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted sales and
gross margin, such estimation is based on the unit's past
performance and management’s expectations for the market
development. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions would not
cause the aggregate carrying amount of intelligent car
parking and automotive device business to exceed the
aggregate recoverable amount of intelligent car parking and
automotive device business.

For the purpose of impairment test on the license which
had been allocated to the CGU of the intelligent car
parking and automotive device business segment, the
recoverable amounts were evaluated by an independent
professional valuer, Greater China, by using the Multi-period
excess earnings method applied to the license, covering a
detailed 5-year budget plan plus an extrapolated cash flow
projections, provided by the management, by applying a
long term growth rate subsequent to this 5-year plan, with an
after-tax discount rate of 21.7%.

40. A ERUERAFH HER

ERERAUERAER 2 ETE
EZRENR (8

ERFERAEETEBHER
BEEERNRENSR (F)

FENAKESEREERBEEZE
MEE & EEANEESRER QUE%
RE R EH AR ﬁﬁiﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁkﬁ%ﬁ&
24.07 %M BRI ATIT IR REH E - BB hF 5
HIREMEGUIBERIREREHEF - It
BEXRTDENARITRIE RN M &S
HERITENFHRAERR A tARN
quiﬂiﬁﬁFﬁEﬁExfE““bF& EBREHE
%&%%Umﬁﬁl/m)\/mb n+'gi1ﬁﬁﬂ—
TEREUMNBERAREEEH TS
RHNEH - EERERSTMNZERENE
MAEREEH T EEHBEBEFERRE
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HEPKREEEFENAEETFEK I
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40. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL 40. EEERrAFAEHsHER

WITH INDEFINITE USEFUL LIVES AND
INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH DEFINITE
USEFUL LIVES (CONTINUED)

Impairment testing on goodwill and intangible
assets of steel structure engineering and
installation business

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amounts of goodwill
and intangible assets (net of accumulated impairment
losses) relating to the Group’s steel structure engineering
and installation segment were approximately HK$Nil
and HK$16,360,000 respectively (2017: approximately
HK$48,551,000 and HK$36,554,000 respectively).

The goodwill with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets
with definite useful lives has been allocated to one individual
cash generating unit (CGU) for the acquisition of Huakai
Heavy Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the steel
structure engineering and installation segment was downturn
due to the difficulties facing the shipbuilding industry, the
business of ship equipment and ocean engineering related
equipment experienced a contraction in sales volume,
which fell short of expectation and adversely affected
the performance of the steel structure engineering and
installation segment. The Directors carried out a full scope
assessment of the recoverable amount of the cash generating
unit (“CGU”") of steel structure engineering and installation
business segment to which goodwill and intangible
assets have been allocated. As a result of the impairment
assessments, the Directors considered that impairment loss
of HK$47,740,000 and HK$16,000,000, respectively (2017:
HK$40,771,000 and HK$Nil respectively) on the goodwill
and intangible assets arising from steel structure engineering
and installation business segment were provided for the year
ended 31 December 2018. The impairment assessments
on the recoverable amount for the CGU performed by the
Group were based on value-in-use calculations. The key
assumptions for the value-in-use calculations are those
regarding the discount rates, growth rate and the projected
sales volume, selling prices and direct costs used in the cash
flow forecasts.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

40. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

WITH INDEFINITE USEFUL LIVES AND
INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH DEFINITE
USEFUL LIVES (CONTINUED)

Impairment testing on goodwill and intangible
assets of steel structure engineering and
installation business (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Directors
conducted a review of the Group’s goodwill and intangible
assets and appointed an independent professional valuer,
Greater China, to assist them to determine the recoverable
amount.

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined
based on a value-in-use calculation. That calculation uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a b5-year period, and pre-tax
discount rate of 21.57%. The cash flows beyond the 5-year
period are extrapolated using a steady growth rate of 3%.
This growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth
forecasts and does not exceed the average long-term growth
rate for the relevant industry. Other key assumptions for
the value-in-use calculations relate to the estimation of
cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted sales and
gross margin, such estimation is based on the unit's past
performance and management’s expectations for the market
development. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions would not
cause the aggregate carrying amount of steel structure
engineering and installation to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of steel structure engineering and
installation.

40. ERERAERAFHHER

ERERAEHFH2ETE
EzBERH (F)

HERIERZEREEHERE
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40. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL 40. EEEREFEAEH2HER

WITH INDEFINITE USEFUL LIVES AND BEEERAERFH2ELE
INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH DEFINITE EZ2BENR (&)

USEFUL LIVES (CONTINUED)

Impairment testing on goodwill and intangible HEBIRERTEELKHERE
assets of steel structure engineering and FEENBEUNR (&)
installation business (Continued)

The recoverable amount of intangible assets has been EREER LRSS IREBEEAFEET
determined on the basis of its fair value. Relief-from-royalty M AEMERETEHEABENENERE
method was applied in the valuation of the intangible assets. REGEL - ERZA LK GEEMNEEX
In applying the method, an estimate of a reasonable royalty ZIEET RSB EE BRI A TR E
rate was made assuming that the intangible assets was Be R FBEEEMEL BEEEMRE
licensed at a fair rate as a result of arm’s length negotiations. FIER AR BN #EE X RA5% °

Royalty rate of 4.5% was adopted in the valuation of
intangible assets.
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RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets were

41.

EERH

RBEPR - AAKEIRTRE  BAHRE

pledged for the Group’s banking facilities, bills payables and REEMERCEENT :
borrowings:

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FAIT
Bank deposits (Note 28) RITIF R (M 7E28) 235 248
Property, plant and equipment (Note 17) Yz B MR (FaE17) 301,210 309,025
Prepaid lease payments (Note 19) FEHEERE (HF19) 208,166 221,799
Inventories (Note 24) FE (Kfit2o4) - 8,904
509,611 539,976

As at 31 December 2018, the Company pledged the
entire equity interests of Jiangxi Shipbuilding to secure
a bank borrowing of HK$122,452,000 (equivalent to
RMB107,414,000) (2017: HK$128,897,000 (equivalent to
RMB107,414,000) (Note 32).

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 27
May 2002 (the “Scheme 2002"). Pursuant to an ordinary
resolution passed at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 27 June 2012, the Scheme 2002 was
expired and those options under the Scheme 2002 shall
remain exercisable pursuant to the rules of the Scheme
2002, and a new share option scheme (the “Scheme 2012")
was adopted.

42.

R-_ZE-NF+-_A=+—H" K
ARBEERIAEM 2 2 BRE
EBIRITE E122,452,0008 T (B E
M AR®107,414,000T) (Z T —+
F:128,897,0008 T (HER AR
107,414,0007T) ) 2 A (Hi5E32) o

BB R &

ARRERZET_FAA_+LRARS
— AR ([ ZEZT_F518)) - 1R
BRARABIRZE——F A+ tH&ETT
ZBRBEREG BB —BEBRER
—ET_FFEeER M-TT _F5t
EIETZBREDARE _TT _F518
Z BT W ERA — IR ERESE
(T=2—=%F3)) -

PEETEEHRRAT F3F 2018

295



296

42. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

(CONTINUED)

The purpose of the Scheme 2002 and Scheme 2012 is to
recognise and motivate the contribution of any employee,
adviser, consultant, agent, contractor, client and supplier
and/or such other person who in the sole discretion of the
board of Directors, has contributed or may contribute to the
Group and to provide incentives and help the Company in
retaining its existing employees and recruiting additional
employees and to provide them with a direct economic
interest in attaining the long-term business objectives of the
Company.

The number of shares issued and to be issued in respect of
which options granted and may be granted to any individual
in any one year is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares
of the Company in issue at any point in time without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. Options granted
must be taken up within 21 days of the date of grant, upon
payment of HK$1 per person. Options may be exercised at
any time during the exercise period. The subscription price of
the option shall be determined by the board of Directors but
in any case shall not be less than the higher of (i) the closing
price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet of
the Exchange on the date of grant which must be a trading
day; (ii) the average closing price of the shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheet of the Exchange for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant; or (iii) the
nominal value of a share.

At 31 December 2018, the number of outstanding share
options under the Scheme 2012 and Scheme 2002
were 326,000,000 (2017: 876,000,000) and Nil (2017:
46,449,780) respectively, representing 2.39% (2017:
6.76%) of the shares of the Company in issue at that date.
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42. B ERT & (&)
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42. SHARE OPTION SCHEME
(CONTINUED)

InEBImMRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE
42. B RS E (1)
o

Scheme 2002

The following table discloses details of the options held by
Directors, employees and other persons and movements in
such holdings during the years ended 31 December 2018

TREBRBEE_ZT—N\FR-_T—+F
TA=+—HLEE EF EERHEM
ALFBABREZFE UREBERK

and 2017: -
Number of
share options
outstanding at
1 January
2017, Number of
31 December share options
2017 and outstanding at
Exercise price 1 January Lapsed 31 December
Name Date of grant Exercisable period per share 2018  during the year 2018
R-B-t%§
_H — E N
“E-tF
+=B=+-H
R=ZE-N\E R=Z-N\%¥
-A—-H +=ZA=t-8
i RATE 8 RATHE
a8 REBH ATREEE BRTEE BREHE RERXH BREZE
(Note a) (Note c)
(Kizta) (Kiste)
Directors 5 March 2008 5 March 2008 to 4 March 2018
s “EENF=AEH Z—TE/\E=RREZE HK$5.693
- /\F=AmA 5.693 BT 2,529,600 (2,529,600) =
5 March 2009 to 4 March 2018
—TTNE-RRAZE HK$5.693
—Z-\F=AMmA 5.693 BT 1,897,200 (1,897,200) =
5 March 2010 to 4 March 2018
—T-ZT5-RRAZ HK$5.693
—E-\5=AWEA 5.693 7T 1,897,200 (1,897,200) =
6,324,000 (6,324,000) =
Directors 7 May 2008 7 May 2008 to 6 May 2018
= “TZ\FRAtE ZZETN\FRAtHZE HK$4.523
—Z-/\FaARA 4523 BT 1,644,240 (1,644,240) =
7 May 2009 to 6 May 2018
iy R = HK$4.523

—E-\¥RARA

7 May 2010 to 6 May 2018
“Z-TFRAtHZE
“E-N\FRARA

4523 BTt 1,233,180 (1,233,180) =

HK$4.523
4523 BT 1,233,180 (1,233,180) =

4,110,600 (4,110,600) >

10,434,600 (10,434,600) =
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42. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 42. IBIRFETTE (4E)
(CONTINUED)
Scheme 2002 (Continued) —ETFEE (&)
Number of

share options
outstanding at

1 January
2017, Number of
31 December share options
2017 and outstanding at
Exercise price 1 January Lapsed 31 December
Name Date of grant Exercisable period per share 2018  during the year 2018
RZZ-tF
_ﬁ = El .
—E—tF
+ZB=t-8
R-E-N\F R-B-N\F
—A-H +=A=t-H
i i MR . R
&% REBH ATERY BRTEE BREZE REREH BREZE
(Note a) (Note c)
(Hista) (Histce)
Employees 7 May 2008 7 May 2008 to 6 May 2018
Eg “ZEN\FRAtH ZEE\ERALRZE HK$4.523
“T-\FRAAA 4523 BT 935,952 (935,952) -
7 May 2009 to 6 May 2018
“SENFRALRE HK$4.523
—ZE-\FRARA 4523 BT 701,964 (701,964) -
7 May 2010 to 6 May 2018
—T-THERAtAZE HK$4.523
—E-\FRAAA 4523 BT 701,964 (701,964) -
2,339,880 (2,339,880) -
Consultants (Note b) 7 May 2008 7 May 2008 to 6 May 2018
B/ (fi2b) —TZ)\FRALA Z—ZEEF\FRALHZ HK$4.523
- \FRAAXA 4523 & 7T 33,675,300 (33,675,300) -
46,449,780 (46,449,780) -
Exercisable at the end of the year
RERAITE 46,449,780 (46,449,780) -
Notes: Ffa -
a. The initial exercise prices of the share options granted on 5 March a. R-ZEENFZARAR-_ZTEZENFRAE
2008 and 7 May 2008 are HK$0.18 and HK$0.143 respectively. HIRHZBREZ M2 TIEE S 5 /R0.18% T
Upon the share consolidation became effective on 25 June 2009 and RO.143FBTL - FERIDEHR=ZFZENFANA
the open offer and the related bonus element became effective on 7 T+ RAER KR RFEEE RIBEAFIE SR
September 2010, the exercise prices of share options were adjusted to ZE-FFENAEALENE BREZITEER
HK$5.693 and HK$4.523 accordingly. 53 B FE FE 3 B 25.693% 7T £ 4.523F T ©
b. The consultants provided consultancy service with regard to the b. BB [T BE WG B s AR A8 INPAX SE [Z] 42 (2 B3 27 IR 7% »
acquisition and operation of INPAX Group.
c. 46,449,780 outstanding share options have been lapsed during the c 46,449,78017 4 KT EBERIEEREE=Z—/1
year ended 31 December 2018. FE+— B4 —HIFEEREL-
The weighted average remaining contractual life and R-ZFE—H+F+—_HA=+—H —ZEF—
weighted average exercise price of the outstanding share FEHZTE T 2 MR TE RN INREEY
options under Scheme 2002 is approximately 0.3 years and FIAANEH R NEEHTEES RO A
HK$4.682 per share respectively at 31 December 2017. 03E R EMIH4.6825 T
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42. SHARE OPTION SCHEME
(CONTINUED)

Scheme 2012

42. B REst & (&)

—F——F5tE

Number of share options

Outstanding at
1 January 2017,
31 December 2017 Lapsed Outstanding at
Subscription and during the Reclassification 31 December
Name Date of grant Exercisable period price per share 1 January 2018 year during the year 2018
__H - E N
“E-tF
+=A=+-A
R-E-N\% RZB-NE+
B N —A-A N “A=t-H
£B BiLAH A REE SRABE AT REREH  REAEHIR WA
(Note b) (Note c)
(i) (Hite)
Directors 7 May 2014 7 May 2014 to 6 May 2024 HK$0.211
Ez “T-mERAtA “Z-MERALHE 021187
—Z-MERAKRA 80,000,000 - (16,000,000) 64,000,000
4 November 2015 4 November 2015 to HK$0.28
3 November 2018
“Z-RF+-AMA —T-RE+-AMNAZ 02837
—E-\f¥+-RA=H 270,000,000 (270,000,000) - -
350,000,000 (270,000,000) (16,000,000) 64,000,000
Employees 7 May 2014 7 May 2014 to 6 May 2024 HK$0.211
E& “Z-mERALA “Z-MERALHE 0211 %7
ZZCMERARA 50,000,000 - 16,000,000 66,000,000
4 November 2015 4 November 2015 to HK$0.28
3 November 2018 e
“5-7%+-AmA —Z-1f+-AMAZ 028 BT
“F-\§+-A=RH 280,000,000 (280,000,000) = =
330,000,000 (280,000,000) 16,000,000 66,000,000
Consultants (Note a) 7 May 2014 7 May 2014 to 6 May 2024 HK$0.211
&M (fiita) “Z-MERALA “Z-MERALAZE 0211 %7
ZZCMERARA 196,000,000 - - 196,000,000
876,000,000 (550,000,000) - 326,000,000
Exercisable at the end of the year
RERTITE 876,000,000 (550,000,000) - 326,000,000
Notes: Wt -
a. The consultants provided consultancy service with regard to the a. BRBAEBZ @E FHRERIZEERR
financing, restructuring and development of the Group. e
b. 550,000,000 outstanding share options have been lapsed during the b. 550,000,00017 AT IRBEREEBREE_F
year ended 31 December 2018. —NFF+ZA=+—HIEFERAKXH-
c. There was reclassification of share options from “Directors” to & HRHITEEFHT BRES [EF|EFMSH

“Employees” due to resignation of executive director.

E
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42.

43.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
(CONTINUED)

The weighted average remaining contractual life of options
outstanding at the end of the year was 5.4 years (2017:
2.9 years). The weighted average exercise price of options
outstanding at the end of the year was HK$0.211 (2017:
HK$0.254)

No share options were exercised during the year ended 31
December 2018 (31 December 2017: Nil).

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) for all its qualifying employees in Hong
Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group and in funds under the control of
trustees. The Group contributes 5% or HK$1,500 since
June 2014 in maximum of relevant payroll costs to the MPF
Scheme, which is matched by employees.

The Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC is members of the
state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the
government of PRC. The retirement scheme contributions,
which are based on a certain percentage of the basic salaries
of the relevant subsidiary’'s employees, are charged to in
the period to which they relate and represent the amount of
contributions payable by the subsidiary to the scheme. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefits scheme operated by the government of PRC is to
make the required contributions under the scheme.

The retirement benefit cost charged to the profit or loss
represents contributions paid and payable to the scheme by
the Group at rate specified in the rules of the scheme.
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44. LITIGATIONS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

(a)

At 31 December 2018, the Group has not paid the
social security fund for and on behalf of its employees
which expose the Group to the risk of being imposed
the penalty by the relevant government authority.
The social security fund accrued up to 31 December
2018 of approximately HK$47,289,000 (equivalent
to RMB41,482,000) in aggregate, were recorded
as “Trade and other payables” in the consolidated
statement of financial position (2017: HK$49,002,000
(equivalent to RMB40,835,000)).

A repayment agreement was signed between Jiangxi
Shipbuilding, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and the relevant government authority
on 26 January 2015 in respect of the settlement of
the unpaid social security fund. Per the agreement,
all outstanding amounts should be repaid before
December 2019. The Directors considered that if the
Group could settle the unpaid social security fund
according to the repayment agreement, no penalty
would be imposed by the relevant government
authority.

At 31 December 2018, the Group has not paid the
housing provident fund contributions for and on
behalf of its employees which expose the Group to
the risk of being imposed the penalty by the relevant
government authority. The housing provident fund
contributions accrued up to 31 December 2018
of approximately HK$7,735,000 (equivalent to
RMB®6,785,000) in aggregate, were recorded as “Trade
and other payables” in the consolidated statement of
financial position (2017: HK$8,724,000 (equivalent to
RMB7,270,000)).

44,

(a)

(b)

HFARRIAEE

R-B—-NFE+_A=+—H0 K&
B AARREREEBHMATRE
& FAEBERIWAEBBATIME
NEIRZRB -BE-_ZT—N\FE+=
A=+—BZEFHRESEHL
47,289,000 7T (M E N AR
41,482,0007t) - BFELRA MR R
FU B REMBERAFIE] AR (=
= — 4 :49,002,000/% 7T (FE R
AR #40,835,00070) ) °

RAR 2 2EW B AR T AEMERE
A HPAR —E—RFE—A =+
ARENARALRESETERD
FoBBWHHE EANSBEERC
T-NFT_AREE-ZESRBM
REBRBERBZENRBTRE
& BAERABUS AP iB NS 5K e

R-ZZ—N\E+-A=+—1H &&
BEAARREEEEHAMEE AR
G HERR - {5 N 58 B A 24 A8 R BT 6
FIENEIRZRAR BE-Z—N\F
T A=+ —BZEFEREAESH
A HL7,735,0008 T (HERAR
#6,785,00070) * BEAR A BT ISARR
R E S REAESKIE] AR
— T 487240008 T (HE
WA R#7,270,0007T) ) o
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44, LITIGATIONS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(c)

The Company had recognised the provision in relation
to the litigations of approximately RMB439,110,000
(2017: RMB14,971,000) under “Trade and other
payables” and “other borrowings” in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December
2018. The management are of the opinion that it is not
probable that these claims would result in an out flow
of economic benefits exceeding the provisions made by
the Group. Details are set out as follows:

(i) In 2018, an independent third party filed
litigation to the Intermediate People’s Court
of Nantong City against Nantong Huakai
for outstanding liabilities. At the end of the
reporting period, the litigation was judged
and the outstanding payable of the principal
payment and the relevant interests accrued of
approximately RMB37,478,000 in aggregate.

(i) In 2018, a supplier filed litigation to the People’s
Court of Rugao City against Nantong Huakai
for outstanding liabilities. At the end of the
reporting period, the litigation was mediated
and the outstanding payable of the principal
payment and the relevant interests accrued of
approximately RMB48,000,000 in aggregate.

(iii) In 2018, a supplier filed litigation to the People’s
Court of Chongchuan District against Nantong
Huakai for outstanding liabilities. At the end of
the reporting period, the litigation was judged
and the outstanding payable of the principal
payment and the relevant interests accrued of
approximately RMB8,400,000 in aggregate.
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RRREEZT—NEF+_A=1+—
BZaREMBRARETONES R
HaERE] R [HuEE] B
SR AAFERR B B 49 A R 439,110,000
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BB FERINT

i) RZT-N\F —2BIFE=S
LR AEEABRARATHR
ARIEF IR # S B E S A
AR RIE IR - ZAFATE
HHPR - RHAEE 2 BN A
NRREERFNESHKOR
AR #37,478,0007T ©

(i) M-ZT—N\F —HHEERE
AERBABRMNRT ARZER
RbSHRmBEINFR-R
WERK  ZFASDIELRRE
REREEZBNRNE TR
HERFHNBEARNBARK
48,000,0007T °
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REOHHBBEINFR-R
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K is RIEE 2 BN A2
HEEANEAHOAARY
8,400,0007T °
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FaRkIAEE (F)

44. LITIGATIONS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(c)

(Continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

In 2018, a supplier filed litigation to the
Intermediate People’s Court of Shenyang
City against Nantong Huakai for outstanding
liabilities. At the end of the reporting period,
the litigation was judged and the outstanding
payable of the principal payment and the
relevant interests accrued of approximately
RMB5,000,000 in aggregate.

In 2018, a shipbuilding administrator filed
litigation to the Intermediate People’s Court of
Zhoushan City against Jiangxi Shipbuilding and
China Ocean Shipbuilding Holdings Limited
for bankruptcy revocation, involving litigation
amounts of RMB257,611,000. At the end of the
reporting period, the litigation was not in trial yet.

In 2018, a shipbuilding administrator filed
litigation to the Intermediate People’s Court
of Zhoushan City against Jiangxi Shipbuilding
and Jiujiang Jinhu Equipment Manufacturing
Company Limited for bankruptcy revocation,
involving litigation amounts of RMB63,930,000.
At the end of the reporting period, the litigation
was not in trial yet.

In 2018, an independent third party filed
litigation to the People’s Court of Ruichang City
against Jiangxi Shipbuilding for outstanding
liabilities, involving litigation amounts of
RMB12,000,000. At the end of the reporting
period, the litigation was not in trial yet.

44,

(c)

(%)

(iv)

(vii)

R-ZF-—N\EFE —2HEFR
W AR EE B ERES TR HRA
RIEB iRt B BB E IR
e NMEHR AR AEH
HIR - REAEEZ BNAER
AR R FEE KO BA
R #5,000,0007T

R-T—\F —ZHBEEE
AR AR A RAR 5
BT T PR E s R R S e AR
B IR R R B SR R A
FAeFEARK257,611,000
TCo RIREHIR - AR AR
BE o

R-TB—N\F —ZHEHRE
BEARA LT RARZEE
RESHHTIAEMENAILS
HEBEEAR A ANWE
BHEFD FRATBRARKE
63,930,0007T » I & HI K - #%
EENCENG R

R-E—-)\F —2EIUFE=]
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FAAE AR 12,000,0007T ©
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44, LITIGATIONS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(c)

(Continued)

(viii) In 2018, a contractor filed litigation to Wuhan
Marine Court against Jiangxi Shipbuilding for the
failure to make payment of service fees, involving
the total amount of litigation of approximately
RMB6,691,000. At the end of the reporting
period, the litigation was not judged yet.

On 3 December 2015, Merge Limited and other
shareholders of Zhejiang Ocean as counter guarantors
(collectively referred to the “Counter Guarantor”)
entered into the counter guarantee agreement with
Zhoushan Marine Comprehensive Development and
Investment Co., Ltd (AULIEFEREFAERERRA
A]) (the “Guarantor”), pursuant to which the Counter
Guarantors shall, in proportion to their respective
shareholding in Zhejiang Ocean and upon demand
of the Guarantor, indemnify the Guarantor for all
liabilities and expenses which may be incurred by the
Guarantor under any guarantee given or to be given
by the Guarantor in favour of Zhejiang Ocean during
the period from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2020
in respect of loan agreements and asset securitization
agreements entered into by Zhejiang Ocean (the
“Guarantee”), up to an aggregate amount of
RMB900,000,000, together with any interests, penalty,
compensation and related fees and expenses which
may be payable by the Guarantor under the Guarantee.
Accordingly, the maximum amount which Merge
shall indemnify the Guarantor is 20% of the aforesaid
aggregate amount, being RMB180,000,000.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

44. LITIGATIONS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(e)

As disclosed in the Company’s circular dated 24
February 2017 (the “VSA Circular”), the financial
guarantee of approximately HK$229,527,000 represent
the back-to-back corporate guarantees provided
by Huakai Heavy (which became the Company’s
subsidiary on 11 April 2017 upon completion of
the Acquisition of Huakai Heavy Group) in favour of
Huatai Heavy Industry Limited in 2014 (the “Corporate
Guarantee”) which remained outstanding as at 31
December 2018. The relevant information including
the details of the relevant guarantee agreements are
disclosed in the VSA Circular. Due to the failure of
two ship owners to fulfill its payment obligation under
the relevant shipbuilding contracts, Huatai Heavy
Industry Limited had cancelled the relevant export and
import cooperation agreements with the vessel agency
companies. Pursuant to the terms of the export and
import co-operation agreements and the civil mediation
agreements, Huatai Heavy Industry Limited was liable
to refund the prepaid amount received from the vessel
agency companies (the “Prepaid Amounts”).

The Vendor of Huakai Heavy undertake to use the
consideration payable to indemnify Huakai Heavy
for all losses and liabilities incurred by Huakai Heavy
under the Corporate Guarantee.

Other than disclosed above, the Directors are of the opinion

that the Group has no other material contingent liabilities at
31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017.

44,
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RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

45. B R iR B e

45. PROVISION FOR FINANCIAL

GUARANTEE

As at 31 December 2017, Huakai Heavy provided several
corporate guarantees in favour of Huatai Heavy Industry
Limited in relation to the outstanding payments to five
independent third parties, of approximately HK$217,843,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB181,536,000). As at
31 December 2018, payment obligation of approximately
HK$229,527,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB201,340,000) on the corporate guarantee granted to
Huatai Heavy Industry Limited pursuant to the arbitral award

was reclassified to Trade and Other Payables (Note 30 (f)).

REAH

om o A —

N E = fRdt
7T (HEE R4 A R#181,536,0007T) B &
FEARER RZE-N\FE+A=1—
B BEBEMHRBEARGTERELEARAF
ZARERZ A REEL229,527,0007%8 7T
(FRERL A RE201,340,0007T) EEFHH
HEE S NAEMBERNFKIE (30 () -

46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 46. BEBEHA LR S

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following significant
transactions and balances with related parties during the

year as follows:

(@) Amounts due to related parties

RN -

RZFE—+F+ZA=+—H FEJET
NERETARDAA/Z M ARKERR
£217,843,0007%

BRREGA M HRAEMI D AREE &
SERNFREBREBAL ZERR S RE

(@ ENEEBALIREA

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH T FHET
Mr. Wang San Long (“Mr. Wang”) (Note i) T =#&est4 ([Eh4E])
(Btati)
— consideration payable for the — kBN TS m RS
acquisition of Jiujiang Jinhu and ZREREFES
accrued salaries 483 508
Mr. Wu Ge (“Mr. Wu”) (Note ii) REEE([REED
(Bt azii)
— consideration payable for the — kBN TS m RN
acquisition of Jiujiang Jinhu and ZREREFES
accrued salaries 238 303
721 811
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

46. BERABEA LR 5 (&)

46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(b) Amounts due to directors (b) BENESRE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Mr. Li (Note iii) A (B atiii) 11,530 455
Mr. Zhang Shi Hong (“Mr. Zhang”) RERAE (TREE]D)
(Note iv) (Kiativ) 10,395 9,579
21,925 10,034
Notes: ft &t
(i) Mr. Wang was resigned as an executive director of the Company and () AFER-FE—tF+—A=-+—AFHELL
becomes a senior management of the Group on 21 November 2017. AlZHMITEFUKREAEBSREEEKS -
The amount is unsecured, interest- free and repayable on demand. ZAEREL B RABIZENEE-
Mr. Wang had provided a personal guarantee in favour of the Group REBEE-_ZF—-NF+_A=+—HIEFE T
to guarantee a facility of approximately RMB158,015,000 (2017: SEEEUAEBRZ 2w AEHREAABRUIER
RMB158,015,000) granted by banks in the PRC during the year B SRITHEH 2 B & 49 A R #158,015,0007T
ended 31 December 2018. (ZF—+tF: ARKI1580150007T) °
(i) Mr. Wu is the senior management of the Group. The amount is (il REERTEBSREEBKE - ZHBREL
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. W BB REZEKERE-
(i) Mr. Li, is the executive director of the Company, the amount is (i)  FEERETRBIZHITEF ZHERELA .
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. BERAREKERE-
Mr. Li has provided a personal guarantee in favor of the Group REE-_F—NF+-—A=Z+—HIFE F
to guarantee a facility of approximately RMB692,454,000 (2017 S B AR EE A E AR A ERULIER
RMB701,300,000) granted by banks in the PRC during the year B2 SRITH M2 & AN R #692,454,0007T
ended 31 December 2018. (ZF—+4F : AR¥701,300,0007T) °
Mr. Li also had provided a personal guarantee to secure the payment REZ=ZZF—-NF+ZA=+—HILFE"
obligations of the borrowings of approximately RMB74,659,000 (2017 FHREHEREE—BAL (BEAELHEE
RMB200,000,000) from one of the shareholders of the Group’s WAL G2 BEH —FZRR) BEAXLARE
associate, Zhejiang Ocean during the year ended 31 December 2018. 74,659,0007T ( —=F—+4F : AR#200,000,000
TC) 2 EATIREEEA SE(R
(iv)  Mr. Zhang is the executive director of the Company, the amount is (iv) REFRARNBIZHITESE ZkHRBEEA

unsecured, interest at 12% per annum (2017: 12%) and repayable on
demand.

Mr. Zhang has provided a personal guarantee in favour of the Group
to guarantee a facility of RMB430,000,000 (2017: RMB430,000,000)
granted by banks in the PRC during the year ended 31 December
2018.

BREFIFI2%:1 8 (=B —EF:12% ) RRE

REBE—Z—)/\Fot=A=+—HIFE K&k
FEUFEE R ARREABRAERTD
B2 RITIR H1 2 B & A B #430,000,0007T (=
F—+ 4 AK#¥430,000,0007T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

46. BERABA LR 5 (&)

46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

(e)

The key management of the Group comprises
all Directors and chief executives, detail of their
remuneration are disclosed in Note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements. The remuneration
of Directors and chief executives recommended by
the remuneration committee and with reference to the
market trends.

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 31
December 2017, the Group entered into the following
transactions with several associates.

Rental income He A
Interest expenses FERAX
Service income AR5 W 2=

The Directors are of the view that the terms of
the above related party transactions are fair and
reasonable, based on normal commercial terms where
no charge over the assets of the Group is created in
respect of the above transactions
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

A47. X R T 2 IR R K

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt FET FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Yz WE K& 968 1,416
Investments in subsidiaries RB AR ZIRE - =
968 1,416
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Other receivables H b Wz IE 2,165 23,441
Loan to a subsidiary RBEF—HHEBARZER (b = 60,000
Investments held for trading BEEBEZRE 32 54
Bank balances and cash RITHEB LIRS 203 303
2,400 83,798
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Other payables H b A< 5k 18 106,942 133,632
Amount due to subsidiaries FET MY B A | 5RIE 1,975 466
Amount due to a director JEN—ZEEHIA (a) 11,530 400
Borrowings BEE 62,815 =
Convertible bonds payables FER TR ES 168,138 =
351,400 134,498
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAEFEE (349,000) (50,700)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT #EERARBA®E
LIABILITIES (348,032) (49,284)
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RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

47.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 47. &R 8] 2 AR R 3k & e
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (#8)
(CONTINUED)
2018 2017
—EB-—N\EF —E—+tF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
kA FHET FAET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Financial guarantee B IS EIR 701,043 701,043
Convertible bonds payables JEA Al 2 R & 5 = 148,965
701,043 850,008
NET LIABILITIES EERE (1,049,075) (899,292)
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEAXRREE
Share capital & AR 681,842 681,842
Reserves w1 (c) (1,730,917) (1,581,134)
(1,049,075) (899,292)

The Company's statement of financial position was approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29

EXZeER-FT-NF=ZA-+NLBAESA
REETEARRBHBIRREK L H TS

March 2019 and consigned on its behalf by: EERREERE:

LI Ming ZHANG Shi Hong
% [N

Director Director
EF EF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

47.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 47. &R 8] 2 AR R Rk & e

= —
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (%&)
Notes: itat -
(a)  Amount due to a director is unsecured, interest free and repayable on (a) B —BEFREELMF 2 ERBZENKE
demand. &Re
(b)  During the year ended 31 December 2018, impairment loss of b)) REE=ZF-NF+-A=+—HIFE Ejt
approximately HK$60,000,000 (2017: HK$48,434,000) have been R FIL i 2 B3 ERE 6 (B E5 18 4960,000,000
recognised in respect of the loan to Jiangxi Shipbuilding. BT (ZF—14F 148,434,000 L ) °
(c) Movements in the Company’s reserves (c) KR AlfFEECZ B
Share Convertible
Share Contributed option bonds  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
TRRES
R EE HBABH  BRERE 4 RitER @it
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FHT FET TEL TEL FHT FHT
(Note 35)
(Fizt35)
At 1 January 2017 R=E—+F—-HA-H 1,641,990 3,368 411 129910 11,343 (6,496,366) (1,345,212)
Loss for the year, representing AEEER
total comprehensive expenses (ENZ2ERSBE)
for the year - - - = (505,380) (505,380)
Issuance of shares for settlement of BIRDIVEEERZARE
contingent consideration payable 204,399 - - - - 204,399
Redemption of equity component of | R AT RRR B 5 2
convertible bonds upon maturity Bandn - - - (11,343) 11,343 =
Recognition of equity component of RUBRES 2 EZDD
convertible bonds - - - 42,127 - 42,127
Issuance of shares upon conversion of 1 J R AT IR B4 1% B 4Tk D
convertible bonds 22932 - - - - 22932
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+=-A=+-H 1,869,321 3,368,411 129910 42,127 (6,990,903) (1,581,134)
Loss for the year, representing TEEBE
total comprehensive expenses (MENZERYEE)
for the year - - S & (149,783) (149,783)
Lapse of share options [ TR - - (92,887) = 92,887 =
At 31 December 2018 R-B-NF+=-F=1+-H 1,869,321 3,368,411 37,023 42,127 (7,047,799) (1,730,917)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

48. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF 48. KR T 2 M B A B FF1E
THE COMPANY

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the RBEHKR ALARFEEMEEREN
Company at the end of the reporting period are set out below: AR FFEIBEMT
Paid-up
Place of incorporation/ ~ share capital/ Proportion of ownership effective interests Proportion of voting power held
Name of subsidiaries operation registered capital held by the Company by the Company Principal activities
ERAL/
WEARER BexBny BARA/HRELR KRAFEHERERER 2L E ERARERERZ LA TEER
2018 2017 2018 2017
“2-N\fF ZE-tF -0\ “Etf
Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly
=t k3 H# 5523 i G4 B# 563
% % % % % % % %
INPAX Technology Limited British Virgin Islands* 50,000 ordinary shares of 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - Investment holding
USDI each
INPAX Technology Limited RERGEE" 50,000% BREEIET RARR
LaEk
Merge Limited Hong Kong 300,000,000 ordinary 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - Tradingand
shares of HK$1 each investment holding
FEERAE Bk 300,000,006 5 A AL BHRBERR
B LRk
China Ocean Shipbuilding British Virgin Islands* 1 ordinary share of 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - Investment holding
Holdings Limited USD1 each
PENMERERAR ARRAEE" IRERAHEIET L REBR
&
China Ocean Natural Gas British Virgin Islands* 1 ordinary share of 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - Investment holding
Holdings Limited USD1 each
China Ocean Natural Gas Holdings ~ XBRZEE \hEREEIET ER RERR
Limited &
China Ocean Shipbuilding Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 Inactive
Services Limited HKS$1 each
PERHREERAR Y \REREBIAT LR 100 EEEH
s
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

48. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF

THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the
Company at the end of the reporting period are set out below:

48. X F 2B AR FFE (&)

RBEHR HARREEREARRFER
B RRFBEWT : (&)

(Continued)
Paid-up
Place of incorporation/  share capital/ Proportion of ownership effective interests Proportion of voting power held
Name of subsidiaries operation registered capital held by the Company by the Company Principal activities
HRRL/
hWEARER BExBLY EfRA/RER KRAfRAERERER 2ILA KARAMBEREEZILA TEER
2018 2017 2018 2017
“2-N\f —Et% “Z2-N\EF —E-tE
Directly Indirectly | Directly ~Indirectly | Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly
E# B E% Rl =¢:4 B E% Mk
% % % % % % % %
China Ocean Shipbuilding Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of - 60 S 100 - 60 - 100 Investment holding
(Hong Kong) Limited HKS1 each and sale agent for
shipbuilding
Pl (B8 ARAR 3 IREREEIETL BRABRRERHERE
China Ocean (LNG) Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 Inactive
HKS1 each
PERARARAR % 1REREEIETL BRLH
Lak
Jiangxi Shipbuilding PRC** USD 59,000,000 paid-up - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 Manufacturing metal
registered capital vessel, vessel ancillary
products and reparation
of vessels
TEER i 59,000,000% 1T HESENK BAEE
EgamER ERUREBKMH
Jiudiang Jinhu Equipment PRC* RMB30,000,000 paid-up - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 Metal structure
Manufacturing Company Limited registered capital and component
manufacturing
NIEHEBRERRAT e B 30,000,000 SEERRBIHRE
China Ocean Industry (Shenzhen) PRC** RMB300,000,000 paid-up - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 Provision of financial
Financial Leasing Company Limited registered capital leasing, acquisition and
sale and lease back
of fixed assets and
advisory services, and
business factoring
in the PRC
PEET(RY)RARERRAR RE~ A 300,000,000 RPERERERS W
B MER BRIt ERARERE
BERBERE Uk
*HiRE
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48. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF

THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the
Company at the end of the reporting period are set out below:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

48. AR Tz B2 R 1E ()

RBEEHR HARRERRAEFEH
B RBFBEWT : (&)

(Continued)
Paid-up
Place of incorporation/ ~ share capital/ Proportion of ownership effective interests Proportion of voting power held
Name of subsidiaries operation registered capital held by the Company by the Company Principal activities
ERAL/
KWEARER BEXBBY BARE/ERER ARAFERERERER 2L KRARBRER2ILA TERH
2018 2017 2018 2017
“2-N\EF 5t% “E-N\E “E-rE
Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirecty | Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly
Ei B E% ik EE G4 B# 5673
% % % % % % % %

Jiangxi Jincao New Energy PRC RMB3,000,000,000 - 100 S 100 - 100 - 100 Development of new

Development Company Limited paid-up registered energy technology and
capital energy conservation
facilities

TESEHMRERARAT HE AR #3,000,0000007CE - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 BREMERERMRSER

Brilliant Plus Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands* 1 ordinary share of 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - Investment holding

USDI each
Brilliant Plus Holdings Limited SERSEE” \hEREEIZT ER] 100 - 100 = 100 - 100 - REER
&
Power On Investment Limited British Virgin Islands* 1 ordinary share of 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - Investment holding
USDI each
Power On Investment Limited ERREE” \hEREEIET ER] 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 - REARR
&

China Ocean Prosperity Logistic Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 Import and export
Limited HKS$1 each electronic devices

PEERARAE BE \hEREEIET SR - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 EfdEELD

&

China Ocean Materials Trading PRC** RMB65,000,000 paid-up - 55 - 55 - 75 - 75 Manufacturing and sales
(Shenzhen) Company Limited registered capital and (Note a) (Note a) of intelligent car parking
(Note 2) RMB35,000,000 unpaid (Hiita) (Ktita) in the PRC

registered capital

ENE ORI ARAR e AR 65000000 E RABREREER R

(Hiita) SAMERRARE R
35,000,000 R R

CHINA OCEAN INDUSTRY GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

48. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF 48. KRB M B A 1S (&)
THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the RMERR ARG EZLHEEFEDN
Company at the end of the reporting period are set out below: MEBARGIENT: (&)
(Continued)
Paid-up
Place of incorporation/  share capital/ Proportion of ownership effective interests Proportion of voting power held
Name of subsidiaries operation registered capital held by the Company by the Company Principal activities
ML/
hWEARER BExBLY EfRA/RER KRAfRAERERER 2ILA KRAFRFREE 2L TERH
2018 2017 2018 2017
“2-N\f —E-tE “Z2-N\EF —E-tE
Directly Indirectly | Directly ~Indirectly | Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly
E# B E% Rl =¢:4 B E% Mk
% % % % % % % %
Power On Heavy Lift 1071 Limited Marshall Islands * 1 ordinary share of - 100 S 100 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
USDI each
Power On Heavy Lift 1071 Limited ~~ SABHS* \RERERIETL RERR
LR
Power On Heavy Lift 1072 Limited Marshall Islands * 1 ordinary share of - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
USDI each
Power On Heawy Lift 1072 Limited ~ SABHE* IREREEIET, RERR
Success Capture Limited British Virgin Islands * 10,000 ordinary shares of - 100 = 100 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
USD1 each
Success Capture Limited ARREE" 10,0008 B REEIET REBR
Shandong Ruitong (Hong Kong) Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares of - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
Parking Management Services HKS1 each
Company Limited
WEnE (B%) GEERRE B 10000%EREELETY] RERR
BRAF LER
Shenzhen China Ocean Saige PRC RMB50,000,000 paid-up - 5525 - 5.25 - 5525 - 5525 Investment and
Intelligent Parking Development registered capital and management of
Company Limited RMB8,823,500 unpaid intelligent car parking
registered capital in the PRC
AP EEREEREERARAR P& A #50,000,000E RPERERERERE
AHMERRARE B
8,823 5007 R
HMEAR
Liaochen Dereton Industrial PRC** USD3,500,000 paid-up - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
Development Co. Ltd registered capital
W ERBERERARLA e 3500000% T E & REBR
HMEAR
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I FB M RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

48. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF 48. KR T 2B AR FHE (&)
THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

RBEEHR HARRERRAEFEH

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the =
MEARFBNAT: (&)

Company at the end of the reporting period are set out below:

(Continued)
Paid-up
Place of incorporation/ ~ share capital/ Proportion of ownership effective interests Proportion of voting power held
Name of subsidiaries operation registered capital held by the Company by the Company Principal activities
ERAL/
KWEARER BEXBBY BARE/ERER ARAFERERERER 2L AREFBRERZLA TERH
2018 2017 2018 2017
“2-N\EF 5t% “E-N\E “E-rE
Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirecty | Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly
Ei B E% ik EE B B% ik
% % % % % % % %
Shandong Dereton Automotive PRC** RMB30,000,000 paid-up - 100 S 100 - 100 - 100 Designing, manufacturing
Parking Equipment Co. Ltd registered capital and and installation of
RMB20,000,000 unpaid intelligent automotive
registered capital parking equipment in
the PRC
WERREEREARAT E AR#30,000,000E KBRS REE
SHRBEARARE BRAERER
20,000,0007C A48 fit
Shenzhen Shanling Automotive PRC RMBS,000,000 paid-up - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 Operating of “Internet of
Electronic Technology Co. Ltd registered capital Vehicles” and designing
and manufacturing of
electronic automotive
devices in the PRC
MITEREEFHEARAT P& AR 5,000,000 B4 RPEE [ERE] 8
frax ERRTRRENEE
TRE
Jiangxi Anlianshang Parking PRC RMB5,000,000 paid-up - 60 - 60 - 60 - 60 Investment and
Management Service Co. Ltd registered capital and management of car
RMB5,000,000 unpaid parks
registered capital
IBZHHEEREERERNE +E AR 5000000 E REREERES
SHRBERRARE
5,000,0007c K & &
N
Shandong Anlianshang Parking PRC RMB1,000,000 paid-up - 60 - 60 - 60 - 60 Investment and
Industry Co. Ltd registered capital management of car
parks
WREHHEFEERARAR HE ARE1,000000 B REREREES
&R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

48. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF

THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the
Company at the end of the reporting period are set out below:

48. X F 2B AR FFE (&)

RBEHR HARREEREARRFER
B RRFBEWT : (&)

(Continued)
Paid-up
Place of incorporation/  share capital/ Proportion of ownership effective interests Proportion of voting power held
Name of subsidiaries operation registered capital held by the Company by the Company Principal activities
ML/
hWEARER BExBLY EfRA/RER KRAfRAERERER 2ILA KRAFRFREE 2L TERH
2018 2017 2018 2017
“2-N\f —E-tE “Z2-N\EF —E-tE
Directly Indirectly | Directly ~Indirectly | Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly
E# B E% Rl =¢:4 B E% Mk
% % % % % % % %
China Ocean Shipbuilding Leasing PRC RMB100,000 unpaid - 100 S 100 - 100 - 100 Consulting and advisory
No.1 (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd registered capital services
China Ocean Shipbuilding Leasing & ARE100,000 RS FHRERRE
No.1 (Shenzhen) Co., Lid X
China Ocean Shipbuilding Leasing PRC RMB100,000 unpaid - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 Consulting and advisory
No.2 (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd registered capital services
China Ocean Shipbuilding Leasing & ARE100,0007 R FHRBERE
No.2 (Shenzhen) Co,, Litd Ex
China Ocean Industry (Shenzhen) PRC** RMB100,000,000 unpaid - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
Company Limited registered capital
PRSI (R ERAA M AR #100,000,0007T K4 RERR
HRER
Jiangxi China Ocean Industry PRC RMB100,000,000 unpaid - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 Inactive
Company Limited registered capital
TEREETERAT hE AR 100,000,007 ] REES
HER
Xian China Ocean Huafu Parking PRC RMB50,000,000 unpaid - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 Investment and
Management Company Limited registered capital management of
intelligent car parking
inthe PRC
BRTEEEREERARAT 4B ARH50,000,0007 K4 RERERERERE
HEx B
Shenzhen Qianhai Yuandongi PRC RMB34,500,000 unpaid - 69 - 69 - 69 - 69 Inactive
Communication Technology registered capital
Company Limited
RTHETBNRERIERAR P& AR34,500000T K4 TEZ
HRER
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RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

48. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF

THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the
Company at the end of the reporting period are set out below:

48. AR Tz B2 R 1E ()

RBEEHR HARRERRAEFEH
B RBFBEWT : (&)

(Continued)
Paid-up
Place of incorporation/ ~ share capital/ Proportion of ownership effective interests Proportion of voting power held
Name of subsidiaries operation registered capital held by the Company by the Company Principal activities
ERAL/
KWEARER BEXBBY BARE/ERER ARAFERERERER 2L AREFBRERZLA TERH
2018 2017 2018 2017
“2-N\EF 5t% “E-N\E “E-rE
Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirecty | Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly
Ei B E% ik EE B B% ik
% % % % % % % %
Shenzhen Yuandongli Technology PRC RMB500,000 paid-up - 100 S 100 - 100 - 100 Invention of software and
Company Limited registered capital information technology
services, selling
software
AMITTHNHEERAR HE ARH500,0007 Gt FERHREANER
BR BoHERs
Nantong Huakai Heavy Industry PRC RMB150,000,000 paid-up - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 Manufacture and sales
Company Limited registered capital of steel structures and
fittings for ship, marine
equipment, mining
equipment
HRENETARARA TE AR 150,000,000 £ 4] HERHERREERR
g% R RERE 78
Nantong Fangzheng Ocean Engineering PRC RMB25,000,000 paid-up - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 Manufacture and sales of
Technology Company Limited registered capital steel structure
HARIRFIRNEARAR TE AR 25000000 ES HERMEHLE
Nantong Huakai Ship Painting PRC RMB5,000,000 paid-up - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 Provision of prefreatment
Company Limited registered capital and painting services of
steel plate
HRZINRRRERLA TE AR 5,000,000 &3 REARERERERR
MEx %
Nantong Huakai Software Technology ~ PRC RMB10,000,000 unpaid - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 Inactive
Company Limited registered capital
BREVAMNNRARELLE  FE AR #10,0000007C K& BEXH
AR
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48. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF

THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the
Company at the end of the reporting period are set out below:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

48. X F 2B AR FFE (&)

RBEHR HARREEREARRFER
B RRFBEWT : (&)

(Continued)
Paid-up
Place of incorporation/  share capital/ Proportion of ownership effective interests Proportion of voting power held
Name of subsidiaries operation registered capital held by the Company by the Company Principal activities
ML/
hWEARER BExBLY EfRA/RER KRAfRAERERER 2ILA KRAFRFREE 2L TERH
2018 2017 2018 2017
“2-N\f —Et% “Z2-N\EF —E-tE
Directly Indirectly | Directly ~Indirectly | Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly
E# B E% Rl =¢:4 B E% Mk
% % % % % % % %
Ruichang Jinhai Shipping Company ~ PRC RMB2,000,000 paid-up - 100 S 100 - 100 S 100 Inactive
Limited registered capital
HEMEBARARAR TE ARE2,000000 &G BRLH
MEx
China Ocean Intelligent Equipment ~ PRC** RMB100,000,000 unpaid - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 Inactive
Technology Industrial Park (Shenzhen) registered capital
Company Limited
PEBHRBURERE (R AR pE AR %100,000,0007 K4 BRLH
Ad HMEAR
HuNan China Ocean Saige Intelligent ~ PRC RMB25,500,000 unpaid - 51 - 51 - 51 - 51 Inactive
Parking Company Limited registered capita
HEPEEREEREERARAR P& AR 255000007 K Lazk
Shandong Ruitong Intelligent Parking ~ PRC RMB50,000,000 unpaid - 100 = 100 - 100 - 100 Operating and
Construction and Operation Company registered capital management of
Limited intelligent car parking
in the PRC
URHREEFERRELERAA P& A 50,000,000 R REEEERERESR
HMEAR 8%
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RS IEEMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

48. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

49.

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the

Company at the end of the reporting period are set out below:
(Continued)

*

o

Notes:

a)

The companies are engaged in investment holding and have no
specific principal place of operation.

The companies are registered in the form of wholly foreign owned
enterprises.

Jinjiang Jinhu is controlled by the Company through contracted
agreements.

The Group is able to exercise control over China Ocean Materials
Trading because it appointed three out of four directors of China Ocean
Materials Trading.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities at 31
December 2018 and 2017 or at any time during both years.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

(i)

Repayment of trade receivables by
investment properties

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
revenue of approximately HK$7,660,000 was
recognised by the intelligent car parking and
automotive device business which represented the
fair value of 13 properties located in Shandong
Province and Shanxi Province at the settlement date
in exchange for the intelligent car parking structure.
The properties were recorded as investment properties
as disclosed in Note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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48.

49.

KRB zHBRAFHE (&)

RBEEHR HARRERRAEFEH
B RBFBEWT : (&)

* RZERNRMEREEIR IWEEE T BEFE M
e

*k 220N
ZERN

ARSI\ E B E R R Z A M -

¢ JUT AR R LB BE K32 =l

s

a) BRI EEZEFEYENEEFFH=5
B RE S 2 Y BT TIEPE B -

R-FB-NFR_B—tF+-A=1—
A 3l % 7 18 45 JE R AT B ) - A A B BB

REVEEAIEBES -

ERFBAERS

DIREYREEE Z BWK
|

REBE_ZT—tF+-_A=+—HI
FE BEFERAIEEFERER
2 W 2= 497,660,000/ 7T 8 2 R A5 B
FESHEBAUNLRE RILTAER
I3EYMEREE B2 2 FE - N
e BRI TI8IE - ZEYW
EIRBREME-

(i)
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RSB IMRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

9. ERFRERS (&)

49. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION
(CONTINUED)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Repayment of trade receivables by
property, plant and equipment

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
property, plant and equipment of approximately
HK$132,126,000 was recognised by the steel
structure engineering and installation business which
represented the fair value of property, plant and
equipment of a former related company used to settle
the amount due from this former related company to
the Group (Note 17).

Settlement of borrowing through disposal
of an associate

In January 2017, Merge, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, has disposed of its 25% equity interest
in Qiandao Financial Leasing to an independent
third party at a consideration of approximately
HK$29,118,000. The consideration was settled by
offsetting the other borrowing from that independent
third party to the Group (Note 22).

Transfer of prepaid lease payments from
other receivables

During the year ended 31 December 2018, prepaid
lease payments of approximately HK$1,697,000 was
transferred from other receivables as the land use
right certificate have been issued to the Group by the
relevant government authorities as at 31 December
2018 in which the Group had paid in previous years.

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

LIz BERREEEES
FE W R

REEZZ—+tF+-A=+—HI
FE MERIRERTERERERD
% B REE49132,126,000/8 T15
AIRAE AR AR EE R E QB R
REEBREBENYE BERREHA
FE (EEL7) ©

EBHE—RBEQARER
& &

R-T—+F—f FARAZ2EM
B R B EA B LAREX29,118,00078
T & RN T SRARE025%0
F—EBUE=F - REDEBEH
B E= T AEEN MG
&5 (MiaE22) «

T HERKRE B H b B
THEH

RBEE-_Z-N\F+_-_HA=+—H
IEFE - A 1 & FRIE 491,697,000
BTEBEMERFEEL  RAR
ERABRNEEBEENR - N\F+=
A=+—BRASEZEL - MER
EE MASEEREFINBEBR
I8 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

49. 9. ERFRERS (&)

50.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION
(CONTINUED)

(v) Equity transaction with non-controlling
interest

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
consideration of HK$228,000,000 (RMB200,000,000)
due from the non-controlling shareholder to the Group
pursuant to the Disposal Agreement (as defined in
Note 50) was included in other receivables as at 31
December 2018.

(vi) Settlement of other payables by dividend
receivables

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
dividend receivables of approximately HK$60,083,000
(approximately RMB50,069,000) from Zhoushan
Investment Fund were offset with the payable to one
of the shareholders of the Group’s associate, Zhejiang
Ocean by the Group.

DISPOSAL OF EQUITY INTEREST OF
A SUBSIDIARY WITHOUT LOSING
CONTROL

During the year ended 31 December 2018, an independent
third party acquired 40% issued shares of China Ocean
Shipbuilding (Hong Kong) Limited (“China Ocean HK"),
a indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, with
the consideration of HK$228,000,000 (RMB200,000,000)
(“Disposal Agreement”), the Group’s equity interests in
China Ocean HK was diluted from 100% to 60%. The
difference between the consideration receivable and the
carrying value of net assets deemed disposed of in an equity
transaction with non-controlling interest resulted from the
change in the Group's ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control over the subsidiary
amounting to approximately HK$18,703,000 was recognised
in equity as other reserve and an increase of approximately
HK$209,297,000 was recognised in the non-controlling
interests.
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(v) BIZREZCRERS

RBEE-_FT-NF+_HA=+—
BULEFE FEERRERRELE
W& (F & R MEL0) T A& E
2 R {8228,000,000/% 7t ( A R #
200,000,0007T) ERZE—\F+ =
A=1+—Rat AR RIYRIE

(vi) LEWREENHEMBESRK
|

REBEZE-_FT-NF+_A=+—
BEFE BUEALURELRZ
& B #960,083,000% 7T (49 A R ¥
50,069,0007T ) B F3 1 4K 85 78 5k [ g
NARSBEE S QRN LEF —BR

2 HE-
HE—EHB LRz RE (E
B|REESIE)

NEE-Z-NE+-_A=+—RHIFE-
— H B E = 75 LA [E228,000,0007% 7T
( AR#200,000,0007t) W EEH B (F
BIBRAR ([FEEE] AARzHE
2EMBAR) Z40%EBITHRHD ([HE
W) AEERTEEE ZRER100%
BEE60% - AKBR—HMBARAME
R 2E (TESBAXEHNB QR
Z i) SR ITRE R R AR 5 E
WRERRIEELHELEFEROEZH
K ZRE418,703,0008 T E RN EEFIEA
H b (% B HE SR - I B W 52 FE 18 AR A 25 382 0
#7209,297 000/ Jt °
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B Z T —\F+_A=+—RHIFE

51. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING 51. 2R HEEE

PERIOD

Proposed disposal of an associate EEHE—HEBEQT

On 28 February 2019, Merge Limited, a wholly-owned RZEB-—NRFZAZ+TN\B E&8ERA
subsidiary of the Company, as vendor (“Vendor”) and A (ARAIZEENBRAR) (EBEHR)
China Medical Services Holdings Limited, as purchaser (IEFl)BErMEEEEBER AR (1E
(“Purchaser”) entered into the share purchase agreement BER) (1BH )T BRGE Bt &
pursuant to which the Vendor has conditionally agreed to FEERHGRELEMEAEEKERE
sell and the Purchaser has conditionally agreed to purchase BEMTEFEZ20%EH# TaREAAR
the 20% equity interest of Zhejiang Ocean at a maximum 1708 B L -RARE B - TR KR

i}

<)

consideration of RMB170 million. Completion has not yet

\;

taken place as at the date of this report.

52. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 52. EAEIE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —TLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Contracted for but not provided in the BETHERRERA MK
consolidated financial statement: FHREE
Unpaid registered capital for the associates &N B2 RBGERE KR 100,560 103,260
Unpaid registered capital for the subsidiaries B R R Z REEME A& 604,428 636,240
Unpaid registered capital for a joint venture —EE B RE ARG
=N 114,000 120,000
Capital expenditure in respect of ERAWEDE BE K
the acquisition of property, BECEARTH
plant and equipment 28,023 29,498
847,011 888,998
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T —N\F+_A=+—HIFE

53. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES
ARISING FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash
flows as cash flows from financing activities.

53.MEEHMELARBEZHE

TRAMGAAEEREZDMELRE
228 BRASNIERGEH -BELY
PELAREERAKSESRARERERA
DERBERDMELEZREREIRE
Ren&zaE-

Finance
costs
payable
Convertible Contingent (included
Bank Other bonds  consideration in other
borrowing borrowing payables payable payable) Total
BB
A
[T ’ GGEAEM
RITIEE EifEE  ARESR FARE  ERTE) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
FAT FHT FAT THR FEL TAT
(Note 32) (Note 32) (Note 35) (Note 38)
(Bs32) (Hiz#32) (Bf#35) (Hiz#38)
At 1 January 2017 RZE—tF—-A—-H 992,857 1,095,339 348,879 317,628 1,652 2,756,355
Changes from cash flows: Benegs:
- Borrowing raised -BEBEE 105,590 47581 = = = 153,171
- Repayment of borrowing -HERE (102,019) (124,230) - - = (226,249)
- Interest paid -BERFIE (45,113) (16,040) (12,696) S (9,771) (83,620)
— Net proceeds from issuance of ~HIENTRRESNAERETE
convertible bonds payables - - 189,000 - - 189,000
— Early redemption convertible bonds -REBENEMATRRES
payables - - (62,980) - - (62,980)
Settlement of convertible bonds payables REBREERNTERES
upon maturity - - (155,000) - - (155,000)
Non-cash changes FHEED - - - - -
- Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 39) —WeBEH B A (A1i£39) 205,095 48 509 = 155,611 = 409,215
— Finance costs recognised (Note 11) ~BHERBRERA (f211) 57,241 78,109 24,628 = 13513 173491
— Issuance of shares for settlement of ~BIRHINEEENIARE
contingent consideration payable - - - (277,924) - (277,924)
— Change in far value -NEEES = - = 5,081 = 5,081
— Gain on early redemption of - REEEEMTRRES W&
convertible bonds payables - - (5,003) - - (5,003)
— Gain on settlement of contingent ~RERNIARE 2Nz
consideration payable - - - (39,704) - (39,704)
— Change in fair value of ~ERTARES 2 ATEED
convertible bonds payables - - 6,247 - - 6,247
— Equity component of —EffaRES 2 EETH
convertible bonds payables S S (42,127) - - (42,127)
— Transfer of convertible bonds payables ~REHBEERERTRRES
upon maturity - - (97,000) - - (97,000)
- Conversion of convertible bonds payables ~ —E#EN AR ES - = (31,111) - - (31,111)
- Gain on redemption of convertible bonds ~ — S HEE I fE T AT AR (B 5 2 i
payables upon maturity - - (13872 - - (13,872)
- Effect of foreign exchange rate changes -ExZHye 59,930 111,331 - 9,860 134 181,255
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+=A=+-H 1,273,581 1,240,599 148,965 170,552 5,528 2,839,225
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53.RMEEHMELERZHR

Finance
costs payable
Bank Convertible Contingent (included
and other bonds  consideration in other
borrowing payables payable payable) Total
BB
A
BITR B 25 (FrAEA
Hitfeg  TRRES RARE EARE) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TR TR TER
(Note 32) (Note 35) (Note 38)
(Hf&#32) (H5#35) (Ki£38)
At 1 January 2018 RZE-N\§—-A—-H 2,514,180 148,965 170,552 5,528 2,839,225
Changes from cash flows: RETEEE:
- Borrowing raised -BEBEE 1,411,205 - - = 1,411,205
~ Repayment of borrowing ~BEfEE (434,839) - - - (434,839)
~ Interest paid -BRFE (210,528) - - (21,724) (232,252)
Non-cash changes FReg
— Finance costs recognised (Note 11) -BERBEKAE (Kz11) 229,667 38,073 - 4,101 271,841
~ Interest payable transfer to other payable -ERFSEREAMmEMNTKIE - (18,900) - 18,900 -
Transfer to other payable R EHMEMTR - - (170,552) - (170,552)
— Effect of foreign exchange rate changes -ExgHye (124,432) - - (219) (124,651)
At 31 December 2018 R-B-NE+=A=t+-H 3,385,253 168,138 6,586 3,559,977
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54. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
with tenants for the following future minimum lease

54, K& HERKIE

AEBER/LHEA

REEHR AEBERBFITHOZRK
RIEEEMRDT

payments:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Within one year —F R = 2,176
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_EZERF
(BHEEEMF) - 4,352
- 6,528
The Group as lessee EEBEAEABEA

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments payable
under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as

RBEER AEERBETATREECEE
HMZER T A B X 2 KRR E
SRAERHE -

follows:
2018 2017
—E—N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FAET
Within one year —F R 8,614 10,246
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_FEERF
(BIEEEME) 5,589 13,712
14,203 23,958

Operating lease payments represent rental payables by the
Group for certain of its office premises. Leases are negotiated
and rentals are fixed for terms ranging from 2 to 3 years
(2017: 2 to 3 years).
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DIVIDEND

No dividends were paid or proposed for ordinary
shareholders of the Company during 2018, nor has any
dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting period
(2017: Nil).

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

During the year ended 31 December 2018, for enhancing
the relevance of the presentation of the consolidated
financial statements, reclassifications have been made to
certain comparative figures presented in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the prior year to achieve
comparability with the current year's presentation. As a
result, the following line items regarding comparative figures
have been amended and adjusted, together with the related
notes to conform to the current year's presentations:

55.

56.

iz 5.

R-F-N\FUBRMNIERZRERET
ARRRVEBRRR M A &S RE TN E
BRREREEAKRE(ZT—1LF:8)-

RBE_Z—-\F+_A=+—HILFE"
SRR AWM RERMZ2TIEHAERE -
EHEFGAMBRRMEINNE THR
BFEMO B EEARANERER258
B EMALE-Hit THARLREFH
HEBDRELER R R ERBEMNE
NHEaRFEEZ25773:

Previous
reported | Reclassification As restated
SR 23 R iR | LB
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FHT T
Consolidated statement of 4R&1EZ=E K&
profit or loss and other Hi2mEkamEE
comprehensive income
Administrative expenses THAX Note
B 5 208,525 (57,696) 150,829
Impairment losses REEE Note
B 5 - 57,696 57,696
208,525 - 208,525
Note: ffat -

Impairment loss on goodwill and intangible assets were reclassified from
“Administrative expenses” to “Impairment losses”.

BERELAERERIRS [TTRFAX | BEX2EZ (6
EEE]
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Financial Summary

HEE
Year ended 31 December
BE+T-BA=1+-HLEFE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
2N\ | Z2—tF ZT—RF ZT-hHF ZT0OF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET FET FET FET
RESULTS 4
LOSS FOR THE YEAR REEEHE (1,546,710) (620,952) (359,226) (500,813) (633,177)
At 31 December
Rt+t=-—A=+—H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
“E-N\F | Z2—+tF ZT—RF ZZ-HF T—MNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET FHT FAT THET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ¥ERE&E
TOTAL ASSETS EEBE 2,846,674 3,455,754 2,679,607 2,321,824 1,859,744
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEBR (5,025,430) | (4,351,884) (3,284,359)  (2,708,596)  (2,638,022)
NET LIABILITIES BEFHE (2,178,756) (896,130) (604,752) (386,772) (778,278)
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